NOTICE OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE
LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES & TOWNS
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Friday, November 3, 2017 at 10:00 a.m.
League Office Building
1820 West Washington, Phoenix
Notice is hereby given to the members of the Executive Committee and to the general public that the Executive
Committee will hold a meeting open to the public on November 3, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. Members of the
Executive Committee will attend either in person or by telephone conference call. The Executive Committee
may vote to recess the meeting and move into Executive Session on any item on this agenda. Upon
completion of Executive Session, the Executive Committee may resume the meeting, open to the public, to
address the remaining items on the agenda. A copy of the agenda is available at the League office building in
Suite 200 or on the League website at www.azleague.org.

Agenda
All items on this agenda are scheduled for discussion and possible action, unless otherwise noted.

Call to Order; Flag Salute
1.

Review and Adoption of Minutes

2.

Legislative Policy Discussion
• Construction Sales Tax Update
• PSPRS Update
• Other Legislative Issues

3.

SB1487 Developments

4.

Recap of 2017Annual Conference

5.

League Annual Survey Results

6.

2016-2017 Audit Report

7.

Cities and Towns Week 2017

8.

League Director’s Report

Additional informational materials are included in the agenda packet but are not part of the agenda.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 3, 2017

Agenda Item #1

Review and Adoption of Minutes

Summary:

Minutes of the previous meeting are enclosed for your review and
approval.

Responsible Person:

President Jay Tibshraeny

Attachment:

August 23, 2017 Executive Committee Minutes

Action Requested:

Approval

MINUTES
LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Wednesday, August 23, 2017 at 11:45 a.m.
Hilton El Conquistador Resort, White Dove Room
10000 North Oracle Road
Oro Valley, Arizona

MEMBERS
Thomas L. Schoaf, Mayor, Litchfield Park
Ed Honea, Mayor, Marana
John Giles, Mayor, Mesa
Cathy Carlat, Mayor, Peoria
Daniel Valenzuela, Councilmember, Phoenix
Harry Oberg, Mayor, Prescott
Harvey Skoog, Mayor, Prescott Valley
W.J. "Jim" Lane, Mayor, Scottsdale
Daryl Seymore, Mayor, Show Low
Rick Mueller, Mayor, Sierra Vista
Sharon Wolcott, Mayor, Surprise
Mark Mitchell, Mayor, Tempe
Bob Rivera, Mayor, Thatcher
Jonathan Rothschild, Mayor, Tucson
Douglas Nicholls, Mayor, Yuma

President
Jay Tibshraeny, Mayor, Chandler
Vice President
Mark Nexsen, Mayor, Lake Havasu City
Treasurer
Christian Price, Mayor, Maricopa
Doug Von Gausig, Mayor, Clarkdale
Lana Mook, Mayor, El Mirage *
Linda Kavanagh, Mayor, Fountain Hills
Jenn Daniels, Mayor, Gilbert
Jerry Weiers, Mayor, Glendale
Georgia Lord, Mayor, Goodyear
*Not in Attendance
+ Attended via phone

President Jay Tibshraeny called the meeting to order at 11:57 a.m. He invited the Executive
Committee to join him in the Pledge of Allegiance.
1. REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF MINUTES
Mayor Bob Rivera moved to approve the minutes of the May 12, 2017 Executive Committee
Meeting; Mayor Linda Kavanagh seconded the motion and it carried unanimously.
2. PSPRS UPDATE; NEW LEAGUE STAFF MEMBER
President Tibshraeny asks Executive Director, Ken Strobeck, to introduce new League Staff
Member, Nick Ponder.
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Mr. Strobeck discussed the importance of PSPRS to cities and towns in terms of dealing with the
new Tier 3 and the unfunded liability from Tier 1 and Tier 2. He reminded the Executive
Committee of the League’s involvement over the past two years with SB1428 and SB1063 this
past session and other bills associated with implementing the new tier. The League has still
received a large number of questions in regard to how to manage the debt, how to control it
better, who is watching the PSPRS board, among other questions. In order to better handle these
issues for our cities and towns, the League hired Nick Ponder. Mr. Strobeck noted Mr. Ponder’s
experience with the New York fire pension system as well with ASRS. A lot of people look to
ASRS as best practices when it comes to how public retirement systems should operate.
Executive Director Ken Strobeck invites League Pension Policy Analyst Nick Ponder to give the
PSPRS update.
Mr. Ponder informed the Executive Committee of the League’s top priorities in regard to the
pension systems. He discussed the Tier 3 Implementation and how it will affect the current
system. Mr. Ponder then discussed the ad hoc study committee established by Speaker of the
House, J.D. Mesnard. Mr. Ponder indicated there had been three meetings thus far and he will be
attending any additional meetings moving forward to remain informed on the issues being
discussed. He noted that the idea to repeal the Constitutional pension clause will likely not be
beneficial to Tier 1 or Tier 2 employees and that overall, it would be unsuccessful due to
extensive case law and other factors. Mr. Ponder will continue to monitor the progress of the
committee.
Mr. Ponder reminded the Executive Committee of the bills related to the pension system. In the
most recent session, SB1063 which confirmed the 50/50 employer/employee split and
established risk pools, and HB2485 which allows employer to switch from a 20-year
amortization period to a 30-year amortization period. Mr. Ponder advised against making the
switch as it will extend payments and interest an additional 10 years, costing the employer more
in the long-run. If there is a situation where an employer would need to spread out the payments,
this bill allows you to do so.
Lastly, Mr. Ponder explained the Hall and Parker refunds. The case of Hall was in regard to
Elected Officials whereas Parker was in regard to Police and Fire. When the decision for Hall
was reached, the PSPRS board voted to apply the decision to Parker. The interest to be paid in
the case of Parker remains unknown. Mr. Ponder notes that some cities/towns have started to pay
out interest in advance at a rate they assume will be close to the actual interest rate. The postjudgment interest for Parker should be decided in October. Mr. Ponder also noted that the
League has discussed, and would welcome feedback on, establishing a monthly pension call to
keep members updated on pension issues as well as the makeup of the PSPRS board as it has
increased from seven to nine members.
3. CONSTRUCTION SALES TAX UPDATE

President Tibshraeny welcomed Legislative Director Patrice Kraus to report on the League
Construction Sales Tax Update.
Ms. Kraus reminded the Executive Committee of changes made in 2013 in an effort to simplify
the TPT collection process which included Maintenance, Repair, Remodel and Alteration
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(MRRA) system. This system has created a lot of confusion in the industry and seems to be the
driving force for change at the legislature. The industry is opportunistic and is looking to make
changes beyond the MRRA system. Ms. Kraus reminded the Executive Committee of the most
recent construction sales tax bill, HB2521 sponsored by Representative Cobb. Even though this
bill was unsuccessful in solving the problems of the industry, and was never brought to
Committee of the Whole, Representative Cobb remains intent on this idea moving forward.
If HB2521 had passed in the 2017 Legislative Session, it would have eliminated prime
contracting as we know it and replace it with a materials only tax plus an excise tax. The positive
news is the work done by the League on the Construction Sales Tax Taskforce was used
extensively, particularly as it pertained to the financial impact of the bill. Tax Policy Analyst,
Lee Grafstrom, had calculated a loss of approximately $150 million annually to the state. After
meeting with JLBC, they came back at about $141 million and agreed with our methodology.
These numbers did not include lost revenue at the local level. After these findings, it was
incredibly difficult to move this bill forward.
In addition to revenue loss, there was a section of HB2521 that would have implemented a
revenue sharing scheme based on building permit values. Ms. Kraus noted this was an issue
because different cities use different valuation tables and some construction activities do not
require building permits at all. It was communicated that this would be an issue. However,
Representative Cobb put out a request for information. The League is in the process of gathering
this information from cities and towns and will be providing Representative Cobb with that
information in the next two weeks. Ms. Kraus informed the Executive Committee that the
League continues to meet with representatives from the construction industry. While there is not
a lot of unity from the industry as to what changes are most important, we continue to work
towards a solution.
4. SB1487 DEVELOPMENTS
President Tibshraeny introduced League General Counsel Christina Estes-Werther to report on
the developments regarding SB1487.
Ms. Estes-Werther informed the Executive Committee that there has been a ruling in the SB1487
case against the City of Tucson. She explained there was a question if the court would accept
jurisdiction. In the court’s opinion, the legislation was written clearly and mandates jurisdiction.
The court views it as expanding their original jurisdiction. Moving forward, they will be
accepting similar cases. Another question was in regard to separation of powers. There was
question whether or not there was a violation of the separation of powers when the legislature
mandates that the Attorney General has to investigate, make a determination, and find one of
three outcomes, and is then required to take further action. The court is being mandated to take
these cases, which again the City alleged is a violation of separation of powers. The court
disagreed with all of those arguments and found that it was within the Attorney General’s
executive powers to follow the conditions set by the legislature and that the Attorney General
was simply giving an opinion that is later resolved by the courts.
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Ms. Estes-Werther pointed out that even though there was a bond requirement stated in the
legislation, it was not enforced by either party or the court. While the courts did not say it was
unconstitutional, it appears unenforceable and the court found it is punitive in nature.
The underlying issue had to do with the firearms and whether or not they were property or if they
were subject to state law under police powers. The court agreed with the State that the law came
from police powers and was considered to be a state-wide issue; they ruled State law superseded
the charter city ordinance. Ms. Estes-Werther noted Justice Bolick’s concurring opinion, which
sought to overturn the legal precedent of how we evaluate charter city authority by essentially
throwing out the Strode case that held the provisions of the charter supersede laws of the state
when there is a conflict that is of local interest. Fortunately, other justices disagreed with his
opinion.
Ms. Estes-Werther noted there are certain issues that were not addressed: the Attorney General
not only wanted the courts to side in their favor, but also asked to take the City’s state shared
revenue as penalty, and the court did not discuss this at all. The courts essentially said the city
ordinance is void and did not go after the city for their state shared revenue, which is good news.
The bond provision, which is also seen as punitive, was not enforced. There are certain
provisions in the law that allows the Attorney General to go directly to the State Treasurer to
withhold shared revenue from the city in question. In such circumstances, a city would be able to
challenge that opinion.
There was a Superior Court case which was stayed as we waited to hear from the Supreme Court.
Most of the matters are resolved by the Supreme Court decision and the lawsuit could be
dismissed but we will have to wait for Tucson and follow their lead. There are currently no other
pending investigations or court cases.
5. LEAGUE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
President Tibshraeny welcomed League Executive Director Ken Strobeck to present the League
Director’s Report.
Mr. Strobeck discussed the League’s interim activities including winning the Best Industry Trade
& Professional Association from the Arizona Capitol Time’s Best of the Capital Awards. Mr.
Strobeck also noted staff changes as Amy Price moved to the Town of Gilbert and the additions
of Nick Ponder and Emily Webb.
Mr. Strobeck mentioned the League Legislative “Road Show” presentations, as well as the New
Laws Report which is written at the end of each legislative session, in addition to regularly
scheduled publications. There are a number of workgroups taking place over the interim such as
Construction Sales Tax, Public Utility Easements, Group Homes, etc. League and Affiliate
Groups/Meetings and Conferences for city clerks, finance directors, managers were also
executed. The binder also contains information regarding assistance provided to cities,
conferences attended by staff since the session ended and the Amicus briefs filed by the League.
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Lastly, Mr. Strobeck discussed the League statement in response to the Goldwater
Institute/ACLU paper on City Courts. He noted that the League was not contacted before the
paper had been published.
Executive Committee members clarified issues discussed in the Goldwater Institute/ACLU paper
on City Courts and Mayor Giles inquired about a more aggressive rebuttal.
6. RESOLUTIONS
President Jay Tibshraeny presented the Resolution in Memory of former League Executive
Director Jack DeBolske.
Mayor Mitchell moved to pass the resolution; Mayor Lane seconded the motion and it carried
unanimously.
President Jay Tibshraeny read the Resolution of Appreciation for Prescott Valley Mayor Harvey
Skoog and noted his longtime service to the League and to his local community.
Mayor Rivera moved to pass the resolution; Mayor Rothschild seconded the motion and it
carried unanimously.
President Jay Tibshraeny read the Resolution of Appreciation for Prescott Mayor Harry Oberg.
Mayor Nexsen moved to pass the resolution; Mayor Nicholls seconded the motion and it carried
unanimously.
Seeing no further business, President Tibshraeny adjourned the meeting at 12:54 p.m.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
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Agenda Item #2

Legislative Policy Discussion

Summary:

The First Regular Session of the Fifty-Fourth Arizona Legislature will
convene January 8, 2018. League staff has been working on several
interim legislative projects and will provide an update to the Executive
Committee on these and other topics:
• Construction Sales Tax Task Update
• PSPRS Update
• Other legislative issues that may be discussed:
- EcoATM
- Municipal vehicle fleets
- Short term vacation rentals

Responsible Person:

Ken Strobeck & League Legislative Staff

Attachments:

Final Report of the Construction Sales Tax Task Force
PowerPoint on PSPRS local board consolidation

THE LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND
TOWNS CONSTRUCTION SALES TAX
TASK FORCE REPORT: AN EVALUATION
OF ISSUES; CHALLENGES; AND
OPPORTUNITIES
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The Honorable Jay Tibshraeny, President
League of Arizona Cities and Towns
Dear President Tibshraeny and Members of the Executive Committee,
Over the last year and a half I have had the honor of working closely with fellow municipal
professionals to carefully consider the state’s construction sales tax system and possible reform options
as part of the Construction Sales Tax (CST) Task Force. It has been quite an undertaking. We spent
hours reviewing the history of the construction tax structure, evaluating numerous comparative states’
systems, commissioning the work of consultants, soliciting input from key stakeholders and analyzing
options for possible reform. Our goal was to conduct a comprehensive and exhaustive review of the
system, including the impacts to the state and industry. An important assignment in this overall effort
was to also raise the awareness of the implications of change to major tax policy within the state.
After careful and thoughtful deliberations and weighing of stakeholder concerns, we established six
key principles to guide our evaluation of options. The Task Force feels these principles are critical to
our local economies, assure fairness to all stakeholders, and provide stability for local and state
government’s delivery of services. The CST Task Force evaluated seventeen different options. But,
only three options are offered for further legislative consideration, primarily addressing challenges
with a majority of the contractors that are operating in the maintenance, repair, remodel and alteration
category. However, another option is provided that addresses a more substantive change to the entire
system. The Task Force acknowledges this proposal will require a more thorough analysis by
individual communities in order to fully understand its implications. Again, in all options considered,
the established principles provided the overarching guidance for our conclusions.
The importance of the health of our transaction privilege tax (TPT) systems cannot be overstated. TPT
is the lifeblood of how cities and towns across the state pay for the critical community services they
provide. Oftentimes, construction activity accounts for a significant portion of a city or town’s
revenues – particularly in growing municipalities such as Queen Creek, among many others. TPT
revenues are already vulnerable to volatility which would be exacerbated by changes to construction
sales tax system.
On behalf of the CST Task Force, we are thankful to the Executive Committee for the opportunity to
work on this important economic issue. Our hope is that this research will assist legislators in
analyzing possible reforms and prompt careful consideration of their impacts to local communities, the
state, and our industry partners.
Respectfully Submitted,

John Kross, Chair
Town Manager
Town of Queen Creek
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Transaction Privilege Tax (TPT) is one of the most important sources of revenue for the state
and local governments. These revenues account for as much as half of general operating funds
for cities and towns. Within this category, construction contracting activity is one of the more
significant revenue generating activities.
For decades, there have been numerous attempts to eliminate the contracting tax and to
replace it with a system that taxes only the materials used in a construction project. In an effort
to create credible information about the impacts of moving to a “materials-only” system for
contracting and to work towards identifying an alternative to our existing construction sales tax
system, the League of Arizona Cities and Towns (League) Executive Committee requested a
task force be formed to analyze this policy proposal and to attempt to calculate its fiscal impact.
This report is the result of the work that task force.
Over the years, three main arguments had emerged for a “materials-only” tax. These were:
imposing tax on materials at the retailer would be simpler than our existing contracting tax
system; some other states only tax materials; and, the misuse of exemption certificates under
our current system is so widespread that moving the imposition of the tax to the retail
transaction would make up any revenue loss through a higher degree of compliance.
The analysis of other states did show that most of them do tax materials used in construction.
However, other states imposed additional taxes on contracting activity, such as a real estate
transfer tax, or they had other sources of revenue available to them that have been rejected by
Arizona policy makers.
Additionally, the CST Task Force’s research found that only Utah taxes materials when they are
purchased at the retail location. The other states imposed the tax at the job site so that the
revenues were available to the jurisdiction in which the construction activity was occurring.
The League commissioned a study to determine the revenue loss due to the misuse of
exemption certificates. While the data does not exist that would allow the value of
noncompliance to be precisely calculated, the study did conclude that, while the rate of
noncompliance may be high, the fiscal impact of the tax leakage is relatively small. Based on
this analysis, it is extremely unlikely that capturing this small amount of revenue would make up
the significant loss of moving from our existing contracting tax system to one that taxes only
materials.
The CST Task Force sought to quantify the financial cost of shifting to a “materials-only” tax
policy for construction activity. The members developed a model to test the fiscal impact of the
various contracting tax proposals that have been made. This analysis concluded that eliminating
the contracting tax and imposing a retail tax on materials--only would reduce state revenues by
approximately $150 million annually. While all cities and towns would lose revenue under this
tax proposal, the actual fiscal impact on individual cities and towns varies and is much harder to
calculate as it greatly depends on the mix of construction activity that is occurring within a
jurisdiction.
November 3, 2017
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The CST Task Force also analyzed the reasons for the complexity of the existing system. A
principal reason is the series of approximately ten exemptions and 20 deductions that have
been enacted by the legislature. Currently these exemptions and deductions are subtracted
from the gross proceeds of a construction project before the state and local tax is even applied.
These exceptions create audit risk and often lead to litigation to determine tax liability. It is
politically unlikely that these exemptions will be eliminated, but any tax system that includes
these exceptions will not achieve simplicity.
Another issue that has been raised repeatedly as a source of complexity for taxpayers was the
2013 change that created the category of Maintenance, Repair, Replacement and Alteration
(MRRA). This statutory change moved a portion of contracting jobs in these categories to a
“materials-only” tax. While it was well-intentioned, this policy needs to be modified to create
more clarity. The CST Task Force reviewed two concepts that could potentially help resolve this
issue. Each of these would create a more clear delineation between when a project qualifies for
the “materials-only” tax and when construction sales tax would need to be imposed.
The CST Task Force also analyzed a concept that has been proposed using a materials tax
plus an excise tax. More analysis would need to be done to make this model revenue neutral
and there would continue to be substantial challenges in ensuring local revenues were received
in the locations in which the construction activity is occurring. Additionally, if all the existing
exemptions and deductions were simply recreated in a new system, it is unlikely that any
simplification would be achieved.
Based on its evaluation and analysis the CST Task Force concludes the following:
•

•
•

•
•

The state and local governments will experience a significant loss of revenue if the
contracting tax is eliminated and replaced with a tax only on construction materials.
Furthermore, no other Arizona TPT is imposed only on component materials.
Much of the complexity that plagues the current contracting tax system is related to the
many statutory exemptions and deductions allowed.
The creation of the Maintenance, Repair, Replacement and Alteration (MRRA) tax
system has created more complexity for taxpayers and should be modified to improve
compliance and simplify the system.
Use tax should be made uniform across all jurisdictions with the state, county and local
Use tax rates set at the same rate as Retail in each jurisdiction.
The legislature should avoid undermining the principles of the state’s existing transaction
privilege tax system by making sweeping changes to our tax code for the benefit of one
industry.

November 3, 2017
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PROJECT OVERVIEW
Arizona relies heavily on transaction privilege taxes (TPT) as a key source of revenue for state
and local governments, in many cases comprising as much as half of their general operating
funds. TPT is similar to the sales taxes imposed in most states, except it is imposed on the
seller based on their gross receipts from selected business activities. One of the more
significant revenue generating activities included within this category of taxation is construction
contracting. In fiscal year 2015/2016, this classification generated more than $384 million to the
state general fund, $96 million to the shared revenue distribution base, and more than $200
million in direct city and town revenues.
Although there are key differences between TPT and sales tax, these terms are often used
interchangeably in discussion, and therefore, also in this report. Similarly, there are differences
between the state and local Contracting classifications. However, unless one classification or
another is specifically identified, any reference to the “Contracting classification” or “Contracting
tax” refers to both the state’s “Prime Contracting” classification and the Model City Tax Code
Construction Contracting classifications.
Taxes generated from construction activity have been the subject of much debate and
discussion at the Arizona State Legislature and there have been several attempts over the
years to modify this portion of our tax system. In 2012, then-Governor Jan Brewer established a
Transaction Privilege Tax Simplification Task Force, which recommended a number of changes
to the system – including eliminating the Contracting classifications at the state and local levels
and shifting to a model that only taxes materials used in a construction project. This shift would
be a departure from Arizona’s current tax system that imposes TPT on the gross receipts of the
business activity of all tax classifications, including contracting. That task force asserted the
recognized revenue loss from this change would largely be recovered through reduced
noncompliance accomplished by transferring the tax burden to retail sellers of construction
materials.
Although this idea did not fully make it into the final TPT Simplification bill that was passed in
2013 (HB 2111, 51st Legislature, First Regular Session), the legislation did create a bifurcated
system designed to address the concerns of contractors performing repair and maintenance
activity. The existing tax system remained in place for contractors performing new construction
and major modifications while most repair and maintenance activity would be taxed only on the
materials used in the construction project. When these changes took effect in 2015, the new
rules resulted in some contractors being responsible for the payment of taxes under both
systems depending on the type of construction project they were engaged in. This prompted a
renewed interest in an almost complete elimination of the Contracting classifications, and in the
2016 legislative session this idea was proposed again (HB 2267, 52nd Legislature, Second
Regular Session) but did not move forward.
During the 2017 legislative session HB 2521 was introduced and again included the elimination
of Contracting and a pooling of city Retail taxes for redistribution based on building permits. This
bill progressed further through the process, resulting in the Joint Legislative Budget Committee
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(JLBC) producing a fiscal note on its proposed impact which indicated a loss to the state
general fund of $141 million per year.
In response to these continued reform efforts, the League of Arizona Cities and Towns (League)
Executive Committee instructed staff to oppose the 2016 legislation because the fiscal impacts
were unknown, and directed them to form a new task force to review the issue and develop
information that would be helpful in the policy discussions on this topic.
In June of 2016, the League’s Construction Sales Tax Task Force (CST Task Force) began its
work with a focus on analyzing the key arguments made by the proponents of a “materials-only,
point-of-purchase” tax to determine their validity; examining the various legislative proposals
introduced over the years to assess their fiscal impacts on state and local revenues; and
developing and analyzing alternative plans to see if one might be acceptable to the various
stakeholders. The CST Task Force was open to the public and included a diverse group of
professionals from local government. They met from June 2016 to October 2017 and will
continue to meet as necessary to review and analyze any new proposals.
BACKGROUND
Taxing construction activity has been part of Arizona’s tax system since the 1930s. In 1978,
legislation established the framework for the construction contracting tax system that was in
place through 2014. This legislation clarified two major elements: responsibility for the tax falls
on the prime contractor and 35 percent of the gross income or gross proceeds of sales from
contracting activity (after all other deductions and exemptions have been taken) would be
allowed as a standard deduction for labor costs, with the remaining 65 percent of the gross
proceeds being subject to tax. Prior to negotiating this standard deduction, companies were
required to separately identify their direct labor costs in order to deduct them. This resulted in
many years of audit controversy over which labor costs were actually “direct” and thus exempt
versus which labor costs were not deductible. The 35 percent standard deduction was an
agreed upon percentage negotiated among the stakeholders at that time.
The 35 percent standard deduction is applied to the gross income of a construction project after
all other deductions have been taken. Tax is then imposed on the remaining 65 percent of
income. This 65 percent was never intended to only represent a tax on materials. The standard
deduction was simply a convenient way to allow an exemption for direct labor costs without
controversy or audit risk. In this way, taxing 65 percent of a contract’s value is equivalent to
taxing the gross of any other activity after deductions. No other taxable activity in Arizona is
taxed only on its cost of materials.
Over the intervening years there have been numerous legislative proposals that would shift from
a Contracting tax to a Retail tax imposed only on the cost of construction materials. Proponents
often refer to this change as a “point-of-sale” tax, meaning taxes are imposed on the vendor’s
retail sale of the materials to the construction contractor. However, it is more accurate to refer to
this type of transaction as “point-of-purchase” while “point-of-sale” refers to when the materials
are incorporated into a construction project at the job site and ultimately sold to the end user.

November 3, 2017

Page 4 of 19

THE LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
CONSTRUCTION SALES TAX TASK FORCE REPORT:
AN EVALUATION OF ISSUES; CHALLENGES; AND OPPORTUNITIES

Most notable was the introduction of SB 1206 (sales tax; contracting) in 1995. There was
extensive testimony stating this bill would significantly reduce revenues to the state and to local
governments. But, proponents argued that since construction materials were exempt from retail
taxation, there was a high incidence of misuse of exemption certificates by contractors resulting
in a high level of noncompliance and tax revenue leakage. They argued moving the incidence of
the tax to the retail transaction on materials would increase compliance and any losses in
revenue from the elimination of the tax on construction contracting would be recovered.
The bill passed and was subsequently sent to then-Governor Fife Symington. Governor
Symington vetoed SB 1206 because both the Arizona Department of Revenue (ADOR) and the
Joint Legislative Budget Committee (JLBC) had independently projected a potential revenue
loss in excess of $50 million to the state and an additional $20 million loss to cities and towns. In
his veto message (attached as Appendix 14), Governor Symington cited the lack of reliable
information related to the true financial impact of noncompliance, as well as the actual
percentage that material costs represent in the gross income from construction contracting. He
also stated that, given the public policy agenda he wished to pursue of eliminating the income
tax, the potential revenue loss outweighed the potential simplification.
The issue of noncompliance has remained a primary argument for proponents of taxing
materials only at the retail vendor’s location. In 1999, the Arizona Tax Research Association
(ATRA) commissioned a study by Arthur Andersen titled, “Analysis of the State Revenue Impact
of Shifting the Incidence of the State Transaction Privilege Tax from Prime Contracting to
Materials” (Appendix 13) in an effort to calculate the level of revenue leakage due to
noncompliance. Based on the methodology used in this study, it reported that as much as 43
percent of the taxes owed on construction activity were not being remitted and concluded that
moving to a tax on materials at the point of purchase would significantly increase compliance. It
further concluded that this shift in tax policy would increase state revenues by approximately
$50 million.
This report has been widely cited in subsequent discussions on construction contracting
taxation and has been used as a key argument for moving to taxing materials when they are
sold to contractors rather than taxing the gross income from the activity of construction
contracting. Because of its significant influence on the debate, an analysis of this study was
commissioned by the League as part of its CST Task Force’s work effort (Pollack Study,
Appendix 12). The details of this analysis are included in the section below related to
noncompliance.
In 2012, then-Governor Jan Brewer established the Transaction Privilege Tax Simplification
Task Force (Simplification Task Force). The focus of that task force was: to study simplifying
collection of TPT and the performance of audits; to examine the Retail classification and
recommend changes necessary to take advantage of any future federal legislation (e.g.,
Marketplace Fairness Act) that would allow for taxation of remote sales; and, to review the
Contracting classification.
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At that time 18 cities, including most of the largest municipalities, collected their own transaction
privilege taxes and performed their own audits. The Simplification Task Force recommended
centralizing collection of all TPT with the Arizona Department of Revenue, and requiring all
audits to be performed in a uniform manner for all jurisdictions by auditors trained and certified
by the ADOR. These policy changes were subsequently included in HB 2111 and enacted. The
new audit provisions were implemented in January 2015, and centralized collection and
administration began with the January 2017 reporting period.
In reviewing remote sales and the Retail classification, the Simplification Task Force
recommended bringing the state and local tax bases and exemptions into conformity as much
as possible. The Model City Tax Code (MCTC) was significantly amended to eliminate many
differences. The TPT Simplification bill passed into law also included an elimination of one
state-level exemption for sales to non-residents to match the MCTC. (Note: This exemption was
subsequently reinstated in part by the legislature, reviving the exemption for remote sales of fine
art by an auction house.)
The Simplification Task Force also recommended that counties be allowed to impose Use tax
and that the state’s Use tax should be included in the revenue sharing pool since the Use tax is
simply the mirror of the Retail classification. Influencing this recommendation was the ADOR
statement that the Marketplace Fairness Act would result in remote sales over the Internet being
taxed under the Use tax statutes, so equity for in-state vendors demanded that Use tax be
imposed uniformly to match Retail, including the distribution of shared TPT revenue. Ultimately,
this item was not included in the TPT Simplification bill that was signed into law.
With regard to construction contracting, many presentations were given and discussions of
various concerns about construction sales taxes were raised. The Simplification Task Force
recommended the elimination of the Contracting classification in favor of a “materials-only,
point-of-purchase” tax collected by the vendor, pointing to the effect of assumed noncompliance
in its analysis. For purposes of measuring the fiscal impact of the original draft of legislation, the
ADOR again looked to the 1999 Andersen study’s proposed noncompliance rate of 43 percent.
Although the department did not explain its methodology, it eventually used a 31 percent
noncompliance rate for calculating the fiscal impact on the state and local governments.
Complete elimination of the Contracting classification was eventually removed from the final bill
after resistance by municipalities due to the uncertainty of the many assumptions used in the
analysis of the legislation and the associated risks to state and local government finances.
At the same time, much focus was placed on the existing tax system’s perceived unfairness to
the repair segment of the Contracting classification (for example, plumbers and handymen). The
issues raised included that repair contractors often did not know which local jurisdiction they
were working in, and therefore, which tax rate to apply. Additionally, they stated it was
burdensome to file one tax return with the state and separate tax returns for those cities that
administered their own taxes. They also stated that the 35 percent standard deduction did not
accurately reflect their true labor costs since these costs are typically much higher relative to the
total contract price than for other types of construction activity.
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In response to these concerns, included in HB 2111 was an initial effort to separate most small
repair and remodel contractors from the rest of the Contracting classification, allowing them to
shift their tax method to a materials-only model. Additionally, as part of the resulting TPT
Simplification project initiated under HB 2111, the ADOR added address-specific Geographic
Information System (GIS) capability to its website so contractors can easily identify which city
they are working in and exactly which tax rates to apply. Also, beginning in January 2017 all
taxpayers now file one tax return with the ADOR that includes the state, counties, and all 91
municipal jurisdictions.
Subsequent changes to the 2013 legislation (HB 2389 in 2014 and SB 1446 in 2015) further
attempted to define the break point between a small contractor and larger construction activity.
These changes ultimately resulted in the Maintenance, Repair, Replacement and Alteration
(MRRA) system that exists today. This system allows contractors engaging in certain limited
construction jobs to pay Retail tax to the vendor on materials used in that job, while the larger
construction projects remained taxable under Prime Contracting, based on 65% of the total
contract price.
However, the complexity of this system has led to inconsistent application as reported by the
contractors themselves; particularly about when to apply the MRRA tax on materials-only at the
point of purchase or when a project is subject to the Prime Contracting tax. This confusion over
the new MRRA system prompted some policy makers and industry representatives to continue
to advocate for more change to the Contracting tax system.
During the 2016 session, legislation was again introduced that would largely eliminate the
Contracting tax based on the gross income of the activity and replace it with a tax imposed
exclusively on the retail price of materials to be collected by the vendor (HB 2267). In an effort
to mitigate the negative revenue impact on local jurisdictions, the bill included an additional 2%
state tax on all construction materials, which would be distributed to cities and towns based on
the value of building permits issued by a city or town as a percentage of all building permits
issued statewide.
While this bill did try to address the obvious reduction in revenues to local jurisdictions, the
actual revenue impact had not been determined so it was unclear whether 2% would
meaningfully offset the loss of revenue to local jurisdictions. The proposal also did not address
any revenue losses by the state or counties.
Additionally, there were many concerns raised with the idea of using building permit values as
an accurate measure of construction activity. Concerns included:
• Permits are not required for many construction projects;
• The permitting process is not uniform across jurisdictions;
• Valuation tables used for permitting varies from jurisdiction to jurisdiction;
• Permit issuance does not reflect actual construction activity occurring in any specific
period;
• Permits often do not include changes in value due to change orders;
• Issuance of a permit does not always result in a completed construction project.
November 3, 2017
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During the 2017 session, legislation was again introduced (HB 2521). Similar to the HB 2267
from 2016, this version would eliminate the Contracting classifications and replace it with a tax
imposed exclusively on the contractor’s purchase price of materials to be collected by the
various materials vendors. This bill dropped did not include the additional 2% state tax on all
construction materials, and instead added a proposal for all cities and towns to donate a portion
(4%) of all their Retail taxes collected into a pool, which would be distributed back to the cities
and towns based on the value of building permits issued by each municipality as a percentage
of all building permits issued statewide.
This bill had several challenging aspects. First, by having cities redistribute their local Retail tax
without adding any new revenues, there was little chance this idea would effectively keep the
cities and towns revenue neutral. For example, a city with higher value permits may receive
revenues from another city that actually had a higher quantity of actual permits, negatively
impacting the city with the higher growth curve. Additionally, the same flawed building permit
mechanism for distribution was still in place. There was significant concern about including all
Retail TPT since many sales have absolutely no connection with construction activity. Finally,
this proposal did not address any revenue losses by the state or counties. Later a new 1%
excise tax was suggested to close the state and county gap, but this idea never made it into an
adopted amendment. HB 2521 did manage to move further through the process and the Joint
Legislative Budget Committee provided a fiscal analysis of the bill (Appendix 15) that concluded
the state general fund would lose approximately $141 million dollars per year under the new
plan.
LEAGUE CONSTRUCTION SALES TAX TASK FORCE MEETINGS AND DISCUSSIONS
In June 2016 the League formed the Construction Sales Tax Task Force (CST Task Force)
made up of 16 representatives from a mix of urban and rural communities. The members
included city managers, intergovernmental affairs staff, city finance managers and tax audit
staff. It was chaired by John Kross, Town Manager for the Town of Queen Creek. A list of the
task force members is attached as Appendix 1.
The CST Task Force met throughout the summer and fall of 2016. They reconvened in July
2017 to continue their analyses of new concepts that were proposed during and after the 2017
legislative session. The CST Task Force first worked to identify the concerns of the various
stakeholder groups, included as Appendix 2. Next, the group developed a list of principles the
members believed should be used to guide any change in tax policy. The Principles of a
Construction Activity Transaction Privilege Tax and Use Tax System is attached as Appendix 3.
The CST Task Force then reviewed the history of contracting taxes in Arizona to gain an
understanding of the evolution of our state’s tax policy as it relates to contracting (see History of
Construction Contracting presentation, Appendix 4). The CST Task Force also compared
Arizona’s tax policy to that of nine other states (a mix of neighboring states and others identified
as TPT states). This research was important because the proponents of a “materials-only, pointof-purchase” system often cite other states’ tax policies as a reason to change Arizona’s

November 3, 2017

Page 8 of 19

THE LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
CONSTRUCTION SALES TAX TASK FORCE REPORT:
AN EVALUATION OF ISSUES; CHALLENGES; AND OPPORTUNITIES

system. An analysis of these other states’ tax systems will be discussed in more detail later in
this report.
Another important issue the CST Task Force closely examined was noncompliance. Proponents
of shifting the tax to the vendor where materials are purchased rely heavily on the 1999
Andersen study and its assumption of potential revenue losses due to noncompliance. The CST
Task Force investigated this problem, largely based on an analysis conducted by Elliott Pollack
& Company.
Throughout the process CST Task Force members were invited to submit concepts for changes
to the current Contracting tax system. A listing of all the proposed concepts is attached as
Appendix 6. Three concepts that met all of the principles except revenue neutrality (no proposal
fully ensured that principle) were analyzed by the CST Task Force and are discussed further
below. A summary of the examined concepts is attached in Appendix 7.
PRINCIPLES OF A CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY TRANSACTION PRIVILEGE TAX AND USE
TAX SYSTEM
The purpose of imposing TPT is to collect sufficient revenues to provide those services and
programs needed by a city or town’s residents and local business interests. Thus, an
overarching policy of the entire TPT system is that tax revenues should be available to the
jurisdiction where the activity and its impacts occur.
As it relates specifically to Contracting tax, Arizona has a long-standing tradition, arguably
culminating with the 1998 Growing Smarter Act, of articulating the policy that development
activity should pay its proportionate share of the needs it creates on the jurisdiction where
growth and development activity is occurring.
In addition to having the necessary revenues to provide the services residents and local
businesses require, municipalities also have other important considerations. These include: the
integrity of the TPT system as a whole; effects on other related policies and financial
considerations such as revenue bonding and the calculation of impact fees; ease of compliance;
and fairness among similarly situated taxpayers.
The CST Task Force identified the following set of principles that should be considered in the
development of any Contracting tax system:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Ensures tax revenues are remitted to the jurisdiction in which the activity occurs
Does not result in a significant reduction in revenues for the state or local
governments
Maintains the integrity of other tax systems and policies
Provides fairness for all similarly situated taxpayers
Easy to determine tax obligation and to comply with remittance
Prevents tax avoidance by relocating or restructuring businesses
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These principles were used by the CST Task Force to evaluate proposals brought forward by
the members and reflect the concerns from taxpayers, the state, municipalities, counties, and
the industry. Some proposals were ultimately rejected because they violated one or more of
these principles. The only principle that could not be met under any of the new concepts was
fully maintaining revenues. However, the members of the CST Task Force were willing to review
options that resulted in changes in revenue provided these modifications to the construction
contracting tax system would meet the intent of the other principles. More importantly, cities and
towns are hopeful that any resulting agreed-upon changes will finally put this issue to rest
allowing for stability and certainty for long-term financial planning of services, programs and
projects.
COMPARISON OF OTHER STATES’ CONSTRUCTION SALES TAX SYSTEMS
One repeated argument for moving to a “materials-only, point-of-purchase” system has been
that many other states use this method to tax construction activity.
The CST Task Force reviewed the tax systems used by all neighboring states as well as other
TPT states. In total nine states were evaluated. This examination revealed that many of these
states do in fact apply tax based on the materials in one form or another. However, all but one
imposed the tax on the contractor based on the job site where the materials are used or
incorporated into a project (point-of-sale). Additionally, many of those states had access to other
methods of raising revenues that fell on the contractor, including real estate transfer taxes;
inventory-based property taxes; or local income taxes. Of all the states examined, only Utah
imposes tax at the retail location where the actual purchase of the materials occurs, however, it
also imposes a significant fee on real estate transfers.
While applying the tax at the job site is not as simple for the construction industry as paying the
tax on materials at the time they are purchased at the retail location and does not eliminate the
use of exemption certificates, it does alleviate the issue of municipalities receiving tax revenues
at the location of the construction activity and, therefore, where the impact of that activity
occurs. It also eliminates concerns the CST Task Force had with out-of-state purchases and
with companies changing their business practices in ways that could help them avoid paying the
tax altogether simply through relocation or reorganization.
While many other states’ tax systems have evolved around taxing only materials, looking at a
single element of a system does not provide a full understanding of how total revenues are
derived. All states’ tax systems, including Arizona’s, are made up of many components. These
have evolved based on the unique events which have influenced the specific legislative and
administrative changes that ultimately shape their individual tax structures. Many other states
also generate revenues to pay for the cost of growth from sources that are unavailable in
Arizona or that have been previously rejected by Arizona policy makers (e.g. real estate transfer
taxes, a higher reliance on property taxes, or local income taxes).
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ANALYSIS OF NONCOMPLIANCE
Noncompliance is also an issue frequently cited as the reason to change to a construction sales
tax system that taxes only materials. The premise is that contractors are misusing their tax
exemption certificates to purchase construction materials, and then using these materials in
projects without paying contracting taxes. Advocates of a materials-only tax argue if the
imposition of the tax were at the point when the materials were purchased at the retail location,
there would be less likelihood of tax avoidance.
As mentioned earlier, the 1999 study by Arthur Andersen titled “Analysis of the State Revenue
Impact of Shifting the Incidence of the State Transaction Privilege Tax from Prime Contracting
to Material” (Appendix 13) concluded that the noncompliance rate could be as high as 43% and
that, if the tax were imposed on materials at the point of the retail sale, rather than on the gross
receipts of the construction project, the state would actually see an increase in the tax revenues
generated by construction activity.
This study also provided information related to the percentage of a project that is based on
material costs. It concluded that this percentage varies widely depending on the type of
construction activity. Looking at underlying data, materials could account for as little as 9% for
some road projects, up to as much as 40% of a high-end custom home.
The Andersen study advances the idea that if the misuse of exemption certificates were curbed,
the difference between the amount of revenues collected under the current system and the
amount collected on only materials would be closed. Municipalities have long questioned the
results of this study. The evidence they have seen in collecting TPT on construction activity
does not support this conclusion. While it is possible there is noncompliance by a high number
of the smaller taxpayers, the experience at the local level does not demonstrate that this
translates into a significant amount of revenue. That is, these small taxpayers are not
generating the level of business activity and the amount of tax revenues that would be
necessary to make up the loss in tax revenues the Andersen study argues.
In an effort to determine the validity of the Andersen study, the League retained Elliott Pollack &
Company to review the study’s methodology and conclusions. The Pollack report states the
methodology used in the Andersen study significantly overstated the potential value of
noncompliance. Several critical flaws were identified including an extensive overestimation of
revenues generated by “non-employer businesses” – small construction companies that do not
report any employees.
In the Andersen study, these businesses were assumed to generate the same amount of
revenues per company as larger construction companies. This assumption was made in spite of
the data supplied by the U.S. Census Bureau that shows the largest construction entities,
making up approximately 17 percent of the total of all construction companies, paid about 88
percent of the total contracting tax collected.
Additionally, the Andersen study overestimated the revenues generated by contractors
registered with the Registrar of Contractors who did not have a TPT license. While a variety of
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reasons could explain this discrepancy (for example, no longer in business, changes in
business entity name, etc.) the Andersen study assumes that all these contractors are active but
not remitting any contracting taxes.
Finally, the Andersen study did not account for any of the differences between how
homebuilders and developers of new construction likely report their revenues to the U.S.
Census Bureau versus how they report these to the ADOR. Almost all homebuilders and
developers operating in Arizona employ the “Contracting Arm/Marketing Arm” strategy. Under
this method, state tax is based on construction cost plus a mark-up, normally 5 percent,
reported by the designated “Contracting Arm” entity. Local tax however is based on the actual
selling price of the new construction which is reported by the “Marketing Arm” of the builder.
When the Census Bureau surveys these companies regarding their total sales for the year, it is
far more likely they are reporting the company’s actual gross receipts based on the selling
prices of all projects, rather than the limited construction cost plus markup values created solely
for tax planning purposes that are reported to the ADOR.
While all of these erroneous assumptions taken together suggest the value of noncompliance is
significantly overstated in the Andersen study, determining the real value of noncompliance in
terms of revenue is extremely difficult. Since the data is unavailable, turning to past audit
information and the experience of the previously self-collecting cities provides some insight.
As noted in the Pollack study, a very high percentage of the tax revenues come from a small
number of large construction companies. Their projects are typically larger and highly visible in
the community in which they are being built. City staff has access to specific details about these
projects through the land use process. Anecdotes about entire homes or commercial projects
being built without being taxed are unsupported. Any such activity would require building
permits and inspections, attachment to water and sewer systems, addition to the County
Assessor’s tax rolls, and recording of title transfer with the County Recorder. All of these events
are public information readily available and regularly examined by local tax auditors making it
unlikely that such activity escapes notice for any period of time. Additionally, these large, more
sophisticated companies have the resources available to ensure tax compliance. Aggregated
audit information from the former self-collecting cities shows a high degree of tax compliance
among these taxpayers, resulting in little leakage of tax revenue.
Experience in these self-collecting cities has also shown that small construction companies may
have a higher incidence of noncompliance, but only a small amount of revenue has been
generated from compliance efforts undertaken by these municipalities.
In order to conceptualize the level of noncompliance envisioned in either the Andersen study or
used by the 2013 Simplification Task Force, every year the state and cities would have to be
missing tax revenues equivalent to missing the construction of a multi-billion dollar project like
an Intel plant or thousands of new home sales through the misuse of exemption certificates.
Some materials are being purchased exempt from tax by contractors that subsequently do not
report and pay as required. However, the likelihood that this illegal activity results in a level of
revenue loss that exceeds the total of all taxes paid by several of the largest home builders
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combined is inconceivable. Further, failure to identify, investigate and mitigate losses of the
magnitude described in the Andersen study would be a gross dereliction of duty by both city tax
auditors and the ADOR.
OPTIONS SELECTED FOR FURTHER ANALYSIS
Seventeen concepts were developed and examined by the CST Task Force. Three concepts
met five of the six principles and were analyzed further. These three concepts are referred to
here as Dollar Limited, Percentage Limited, and the Arizona Contracting Excise Tax (ACET).
To compare the impacts of these various plans on local governments, a common set of
assumptions was developed. These assumptions were applied to ten sample scenarios based
on several different types of construction projects and then analyzed to determine the tax
outcomes under each plan. In addition to the concepts developed by the CST Task Force, the
2014 tax policy, the current tax system including MRRA, the policy as proposed under the
original 2013 legislation, and the policy proposed in 2016 were also analyzed using the same
set of assumptions and scenarios. These individual project results were then extrapolated over
a full year of revenue using the mix of actual 2014 revenues for the City of Chandler. Chandler
was selected as the test city because all of the required data was readily available. Recognizing
that there are clear differences among cities statewide, special attention was given by the CST
Task Force to ensure the analysis was structured to allow variability in the mix of activities in
any given city or town. In this way each jurisdiction can adjust these outcomes based on their
local experience by identifying their revenue mix per scenario from 2014.
Each of the following concepts developed by the CST Task Force include the following
properties:
•
•
•
•
•

Expands the state shared revenue pool to include Use tax at the same rate as Retail.
Eliminates MRRA in its current form.
Allows “handymen” as defined by the Registrar of Contractors (ROC) to pay tax on the
purchase price of materials to the retail vendor.
Exempts construction materials purchased by all other licensed contractors from the
retail tax at the vendor’s location.
Maintains the current Prime Contracting method for all “heavy” construction involving
infrastructure (highways, streets and bridges) and all contracts with a governmental
body.

Dollar Limited
Establish a modified version of the prime contracting system, with two options for tax imposition
determined by a specific dollar amount without any other limitations:
1. If the total contract price is less than X times the current ROC Handyman exemption amount
($1,000), charge the customer tax on the materials selling price only, based on the Retail
rate at the job site (Example: if X = 5, then any job < $5,000 the contractor pays Retail tax
on selling price of materials at the job site).
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2. If greater than the limit, Contracting tax on 65% of the total contract price at the job site.
Pros:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Places revenues in the location where the construction activity occurs.
Does not adversely impact the overall TPT system or other tax and fee systems.
Provides fairness to small contractors by removing them from the 65/35 system.
Relieves material sellers from the tax liability created under MRRA.
Has simplicity and clarity regarding which jobs are not subject to Prime Contracting tax.
Eliminates confusion over how to bid a given job.
Threshold is indexed to ROC handyman exemption, allowing it to rise over time without
legislative intervention (when the ROC exemption rises, so does this threshold).
Does not create new opportunities for tax avoidance.

Cons:
• Does not ensure revenue neutrality for the taxing jurisdictions – revenue reductions will
occur.
• Causes some contractors who have canceled TPT licenses to come back into the
system.
Percentage Limited
Establish a modified version of the prime contracting system, with two options for tax imposition
determined by a percentage of the total contract price without any other limitations:
1. If the price of the materials is less than X% of the total job, charge the customer tax on the
materials selling price only, based on the Retail rate at the job site (Example: if X = 15, then
any job where the value of materials is less than 15% of the total contract price, the
contractor pays Retail tax on selling price of materials at the job site).
2. If greater than the limit, Contracting tax on 65% of the total contract price at the job site.
Pros:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Places revenues in the location where the construction activity occurs.
Does not adversely impact the overall TPT system or other tax and fee systems.
Provides fairness to small contractors by removing them from the 65/35 system.
Relieves material sellers from the tax liability created by MRRA.
Provides better clarity regarding which jobs are not subject to Contracting tax.
Reduces confusion over how to bid a given job.
Does not create new opportunities for tax avoidance.

Cons:
• Does not ensure revenue neutrality for the taxing jurisdictions – revenue reductions will
occur.
• Percentage based threshold will mean each job must be calculated with knowledge of
material prices and total contract price.
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•

Causes some contractors who have canceled TPT licenses to come back into the
system.

Arizona Contracting Excise Tax (ACET)
Eliminate current Contracting classification. Establish a new system where all contractors are
considered to be the Retailer of all parts and materials they install. Create a new excise tax to fill
the gap in revenue that results from this systemic change.
1. ALL Contractors are taxed on Building Materials
•
All materials and supplies that are consumed in a construction contracting job are
purchased exempt from tax by all contractors.
•
All contractors are subject to Retail tax on all building materials and supplies based
on the selling price to the property owner/customer and are taxed at the job site.
•
All current Retail deductions and exemptions allowed under ARS 42-5061 remain in
place.
2. ACET is applied on new construction only
•
Any contractor who meets any of the criteria below will be subject to the Arizona
Contractor’s Excise Tax (ACET):
1.
A prime contractor that builds a new structure (Residential/Commercial), or
2.
A prime contractor that adds to the square footage of an existing structure
(Residential/Commercial), or
3.
A
prime
contractor
who
sells
“improved”
real
property.
(Residential/Commercial, similar to current Speculative Builder Tax).
•
Tax is on gross receipts of any project listed above, sourced to the job location.
•
The only allowable deduction is the factored ACET tax.
•
Subcontractors continue to deduct their income from subcontracting as they do
today.
•
No 35% standard deduction nor any other deduction, exemption or exclusion
allowed.
•
The State rate should be based on a calculation that closely maintains revenue
neutrality.
•
The local ACET rate is to be determined by the city and paid to the city on the ADOR
tax return, thus allowing the local control over a rate necessary for local revenue
neutrality.
•
This is an additional tax that is limited to “new” construction as identified above. It
does not apply to any maintenance, repair, replacement, or remodel contract that
involves an existing building unless there is an addition of new square footage. This
tax is in addition to the tax to be imposed on contractors for the sale of materials
used on a job.
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Pros:
•
•
•
•
•

Places revenues in the location where the contracting activity occurs.
Provides fairness to small contractors by removing them from the 65/35 system.
Relieves wholesalers from the tax liability created by MRRA.
Provides simplicity and clarity regarding how to bid a job.
Does not create new opportunities for tax avoidance.

Cons:
• May not ensure revenue neutrality for all taxing jurisdictions – revenue reductions may
occur.
• High likelihood that future changes such as adding exemptions for special interests will
require frequent rate increases to maintain revenue levels.
• May adversely impact other tax and fee systems (development impact fees, etc.).
• Requires most contractors who have canceled TPT licenses to come back into the
system unless exempt under the new “ROC Handyman” exemption.
The summary of the examined plans is attached in Appendix 7. An explanation of the
assumptions and identification of the ten construction scenarios is in Appendix 8. Calculations of
each scenario and its tax outcomes are in Appendix 9. The extrapolated impact of each plan on
the annual revenues for the City of Chandler is attached as Appendix 10. The same
extrapolation exercise was also performed for the state’s revenues, attached as Appendix 11.
OTHER ISSUES
Out of State Purchases & Use Tax
A portion of construction materials are purchased out of state. The state relies on the purchaser
to self-report and pay Use tax on these materials. Compliance is an ongoing issue and would
need to be addressed, first by providing more information and education to taxpayers and,
ultimately through an audit program to ensure the appropriate taxes are being remitted. Use tax
enforcement is necessary to ensure a level playing field for Arizona vendors that are liable for
the full tax on Retail.
Unlike other forms of TPT, Use tax is not shared with local governments. In an analysis of the
impacts of eliminating construction contracting and imposing a materials tax, the 2013
Transaction Privilege Tax Simplification Task Force assumed Use tax would be shared with
cities and counties in the same manner as Retail taxes. The CST Task Force also recommends
sharing of the Use tax revenues with cities and towns on the same basis as the Retail
classification it mirrors as part of any reform efforts.
Development Impact Fees
Arizona has long had a policy of growth paying for itself. Any significant modification to our
existing construction contracting tax will have a ripple effect on other policy areas, particularly
on other revenues that have traditionally been used to fund the costs associated with growth,
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such as development impact fees. Currently, there are 34 cities and towns that have impact
fees.
Under the existing development impact fee program, a city or town with a higher sales tax rate
for construction activity is required to offset the difference between the revenues collected from
the higher rate against the amount of impact fees collected. Twenty-three cities and towns have
a differential rate for construction sales tax. Since moving to a “materials-only” system would
result in an elimination of the differential tax rate, there would be less revenue to these cities
and towns. A consequence of this shift in tax policy would result in development impact fees
increasing in these communities and/or tax burden shifts to other parts of the system.
Additionally, projected contracting tax revenues from new growth are also currently treated as a
reduction of impact fees. This provision should be eliminated so these revenues could be used
to mitigate the revenue loss associated with construction sales tax reform.
Impact of the Differences in Mix of Construction Activities
Each city and town has a different mix of construction activity. Some communities see a high
degree of new construction while others may have very little new construction and a large
amount of repair and remodel. Any change in construction contracting taxes will have an
uneven effect on the various municipalities in the state. It was in an effort to address these
differences that our current Maintenance, Repair, Replacement and Alteration (MRRA) system
was developed.
Bonding and Pledged Revenues
Another consideration that would need to be addressed if Arizona’s construction sales tax
system is changed is the impact on existing financial obligations of cities and towns. Most cities
and towns engage in long term forecasting and planning. Capital programs are developed and
service levels are established based on anticipated revenues. In some cases revenues
generated from the existing construction sales tax system have been pledged to repay bonds
that have already been issued. Bond repayment terms are typically 20 to 30 years. Any
significant reduction in this revenue stream could jeopardize the ability to repay this existing
debt or require shifting resources from other critical municipal services.
Additionally, if a change in tax policy results in significantly less revenue for local governments,
this could adversely impact bonding capacity and available interest rates, potentially leading to a
disruption of service delivery. For communities that are growing, this could unfavorably impact
the delivery of needed infrastructure unless alternative revenues are found such as increasing
other TPT rates.
Litigation & Protests
Proponents of a materials tax often cite the number of protests and the amount of litigation as a
reason to modify our existing Contracting tax system. However, the majority of current litigation
related to the Contracting classifications is due largely to interpretations of the many exemptions
and deductions on specific materials or charges within this class. Since almost all of the most
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protested issues are exemptions that also exist under the Retail classification, a shift to
imposing tax on the vendor would simply result in shifting the litigant to the retail seller in the
future. Moving to a tax on materials would not reduce any of the tax controversy or audit risk if a
new contracting tax system recreates all of the existing exemptions. It would simply shift those
risks to a different taxpayer.
The CST Task Force contacted their counterparts in other states and found that litigation and
protests are not uncommon in any state, and usually follow the ever-shifting rules and statutes
relating to taxation. Annual statutory changes made each legislative session require almost
continuous interpretation as taxpayers try to determine which of these changes impact their
businesses and how. Similarly, constant legislative changes require the ADOR to adjust its
position on settled issues, opening the door to new interpretations and new litigation.
FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS
Arizona relies heavily on a consumption-based tax policy. This policy creates a high degree of
uncertainty in the revenues that can make up as much as 50 percent of the general fund for
some communities. Construction sales taxes are a significant portion of this revenue stream.
Over the last several years, there have been many legislative proposals to change Arizona’s
construction sales tax policy. These legislative proposals have placed Arizona cities and towns
in a reactive position. The work of the CST Task Force is an effort to provide an in-depth,
comprehensive analysis of this issue that can be used to shape any proposed legislation and
includes principles for stability, fairness and economic growth. Significant time and effort was
spent in truly understanding the widespread implications on the construction industry, the state
and its diverse communities.
In an ideal situation, the League would work with the legislature to propose legislation
proactively that includes the findings of this report and the legislature would enact this legislation
intact so that the ongoing discussions on this issue could be settled for the foreseeable future.
Resolving this long-standing debate on construction sales tax would allow for better financial
planning for the business community, the state, counties and cities and towns. However, the
lack of consensus on this issue continues to make this difficult.
There is no simple solution that resolves every stakeholder’s concerns but, as a result of the
CST Task Force’s exhaustive study process, there are fundamental conclusions that can be
used in the analysis of any future legislation. These include:
•

The state and local governments will experience a significant loss of revenue if the
contracting tax is eliminated and replaced with a tax only on construction materials.

Through separate analyses, both the League of Arizona Cities and Towns Construction Sales
Tax Task Force and the Joint Legislative Budget Committee have determined that eliminating
contracting tax and replacing it with a tax only on materials will cost the state in excess of $140
million annually. Counties and municipalities will also lose significant revenue under a
“materials-only” tax. Additionally, if this tax is imposed at the retail location of the purchase of
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construction materials, the remaining revenues will not necessarily go to the communities in
which the construction occurs.
•

Much of the complexity that plagues the current contracting tax system is related to the
many statutory exemptions and deductions allowed.

While it is politically unlikely these exemptions and deductions will be eliminated, any new tax
policy that maintains these exemptions and deductions will also continue to have the same
amount of litigation and audit risk and will do nothing to simplify the contracting tax system.
Additionally, significant changes in how contracting activity is taxed will undoubtedly have
unintended consequences that will be disruptive to both taxpayers and those governmental
entities that rely on these critical revenues.
•

The creation of the Maintenance, Repair, Replacement and Alteration (MRRA) tax
system has created more complexity for taxpayers and should be modified to improve
compliance and simplify the system.

Small contractors raised concerns about the impact of the contracting tax on their segment of
the construction industry. Many of these concerns were addressed as part of the
implementation of the 2013 TPT Simplification legislation (HB 2111). However, the statutory
changes that created MRRA also had many unintended consequences that need to be
resolved.
•

Use tax should be made uniform across all jurisdictions with the state, county and local
Use tax rates set at the same rate as Retail in each jurisdiction.

Use tax is intended to simply be the mirror of the tax on Retail. This discrepancy in our tax code
creates an economic advantage to purchase goods from out-of-state businesses and unfairly
burdens local businesses with paying a disproportionate share of taxes. Use tax should also be
included in the regular Shared Revenue pool in the same manner as Retail tax. This was
recommended by the 2013 TPT Simplification Task Force and should be included in any tax
reform proposed by the legislature.
•

The legislature should avoid undermining the principles of the state’s existing transaction
privilege tax system by making sweeping changes to our tax code for the benefit of one
industry.

The state of Arizona’s tax system has always operated on the principle of taxing gross receipts.
No industry is taxed solely on materials. If this is enacted for the construction industry, it could
lead other businesses to seek this same tax treatment.
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PSPRS ADVISORY
COMMITTEE
LOCAL BOARD CONSOLIDATION
Nick Ponder – Pension Policy Analyst

Local Boards

• A.R.S. § 38-847 states:
D) ….a local board shall have such powers as may be necessary to
discharge the following duties:
1. To decide all questions of eligibility for membership, service
credits and benefits and determine the amount, manner and time
of payment of any benefits under the system
2. To prescribe procedures to be followed by claimants in filing
applications for benefits
3. To make a determination and handle member appeals based on
board determinations
4. To coordinate with employers and the Board

Medical Board

• A.R.S. § 38-859 states:
A. The purposes of a medical board are to:
1. Identify a physical or mental condition or injury that existed or
occurred prior to the member's date of membership in the system
2-5. Evaluate a member's eligibility for an accidental, ordinary,
temporary, and catastrophic disability pension.
6. For death benefits, determine through appropriate medical
evidence the proximate cause of death for members who are killed
in the line of duty if the death occurs more than one year after the
date of injury.
B. For the purpose of determining a disability, the medical board
shall be composed of a designated physician or physicians
working in a clinic other than the employer's regular
employee or contractee.

Current Disability Process

Current Disability Process
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Member applies for disability and provides relevant medical
docs to local board
Local board reviews application and determines whether to
order an Independent Medical Examination (IME)
Local board orders IME and provides information to medical
board
Medical board completes IME report and submits
recommendation to local board
Local board approves (or denies) medical board
recommendation and submits report to PSPRS
PSPRS reviews documentation for approval and, if approved,
authorizes disability payments

Issues with Current Process

• Some employers are very active in their local board process while
others are not
• Apart from medical board review, which some employers have
little to no information about, there are typically no other
medical professionals involved in the process
• Creates additional bureaucracy
• Despite all the apparent fail-safe measures in the stated process
there are wide discrepancies in disability rates by employer
• Governance-related training varies greatly by local board

Legislative Authority

• SB1428 (2016) established the PSPRS Advisory Committee as a
liaison between the PSPRS Board, members, and employers
• PSPRS was asked to study risk pooling and local board consolidation
with the results to be presented to the PSPRS Board by 01/15/2017
with recommendations made to the legislature by 02/15/2017

• SB1603 (2017), based in part by recommendations that came out
of the study required under 1428, established a risk pool for
employers with ≤ 250 employees and individual employer plans
for employers with > 250 employees
• SB1603 did not address local board consolidation leaving that
discussion for a subsequent session
• Based upon the statutorily established framework of the Advisory
Committee we believe it is well within the Committee’s
scope to discuss and make recommendations on board
consolidation

Cortex Recommendation
• 3 Alternatives:
1.
2.
3.

Maintain current structure of 230+ local boards
Have one unified local board for the entire state
Establish individual local boards based on county and maintain
local boards for employers w/ > 250 employees

• Recommendation was to maintain Local Board structure for all
employers w/ more than 250 employees
• Establish an additional 27 Local Boards (separate boards for
police and fire) along county lines and 1 state Local Board
• Total Local Boards = 45
• Board membership is unclear but seems to consist of 3 nonmembers

City/Town Data
FY2016 Valuation

• Fire Personnel Data

• 4,704 active, 2,069 retired, 239 disabled
• Disabilities account for 3.4% of total

• Police Personnel Data
• 7,989 active, 4,106 retired, 899 disabled
• Disabilities account for 6.9% of total

• On the surface these numbers aren’t unreasonable

Police % Disabled
of total workforce

35.00%

30.00%

25.00%

20.00%

15.00%

10.00%

5.00%

0.00%
City and Town Employers

Fire % Disabled
of total workforce

25.00%

20.00%

15.00%

10.00%

5.00%

0.00%

City and Town Employers

Benchmarking Other Plans

PLAN

DISABILITY PROCESS

CalPERS

Independent Medical Review with recommendation provided
to Worker’s Compensation Appeals Board for final
determination.

Colorado FPPA

FPPA contracts with physicians, appellant must meet with 3
physicians with a recommendation being made to the FPPA
board, 2 of the 3 physicians MUST recommend disability.

Indiana PRS

Similar to Arizona where a local board makes a
recommendation to the Indiana Medical Authority for a final
determination.

Maine PERS

Member medical documentation provided to independent
Medical Review Board made up of doctors who make the final
determination.

Michigan ERS

Member medical documentation provided to 3rd party review
company who will make a recommendation to MERS within 3
months.

Benchmarking Other Plans

PLAN

DISABILITY PROCESS

Missouri LAGERS

A medical committee composed of member’s personal physician,
a LAGERS physician, & a 3rd physician agreed upon by the first
two review the disability case and make a recommendation to the
LAGERS Board of Trustees.

Rhode Island ERS

Information is provided from member’s employer, physician, and
insurance company, three independent medical examinations
performed by doctors selected by ERSRI, recommendation is
made to ERSRI Board.

Tennessee
Consolidated RS

TCRS provides member’s medical information to 3 physicians
licensed in TN who will serve as advisors, physicians make
recommendation to Board based on medical evidence.

Texas Municipal RS

Member’s medical documentation provided to TMRS Medical
Board, which is made up of 3 licensed doctors, and the Medical
Board will make final determination.

Ohio Police & Fire

Fund schedules appointment with Independent Medical Examiner
who makes recommendation based on appt and medical
documentation, based on level of disability recommendation is
made to Board.

Analysis

• While total disability rates are relatively low there are some
high rates of disability on an individual employer level
• This analysis is consistent with the analysis from Cortex
which indicates there are inconsistencies in governance,
education, and determinations at the Local Board level
• The PSPRS Board as well as PSPRS staff (see step 10 on slide
4) are not made up of experienced medical professionals
• Apart from employment eligibility, the Local Board
structure adds an unnecessary layer of bureaucracy where
most information can be handled directly with PSPRS
• Based on risk pooling outlined in SB1603 the
current structure is antiquated and could present
issues if left unchanged

Recommendation

• 1 Medical Board for employers in the risk pool while non-pooled
employers would maintain their Local Boards or opt-in to the
singular pooled Medical Board
• Administrative decisions such as retirement eligibility, time and
manner of payment, service credits, and benefits are determined by
PSPRS
• Medical decisions made by medical professionals
• Independent Medical Examiner (IME) receives medical documents,
employer incident report, any additional relevant information
• IME can request secondary review by independent doctor/physician
w/in 50-100 miles of member’s current employer
• Establish a 3 person Medical Board of licensed doctors
who will review IME recommendation and make final determination
• Establish ad hoc agreements amongst large and small
employers to assist in light duty situations

Proposed Process (simplified)
Member applies for
disability through
“Medical Board”

Medical Board
assigns IME to
member’s case

Member provides
medical information
& employer
statement to IME

IME reviews
member’s case

IME recommends
approving disability
claim, forwards
report to medical
board

IME requests/
schedules
independent doctor
review

IME determines
information provided
does not support
disability claim [END]

Medical Board
reviews IME report

If Medical Board
disagrees w/ IME the
Medical Board can
reinitiate process

Medical Board
accepts IME
recommendation
(approval or denial
determination) [END]

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 3, 2017

Agenda Item #3

SB1487 Developments

Summary:

As of the publication date of this material there have been two more SB
1487 investigation requests filed with the Attorney General. The
Executive Committee will receive an update on the latest status of those
and any other claims that may be filed.

Responsible Person:

Christina Estes-Werther, General Counsel

Attachments:

SB 1487 Brief Update
Phoenix Investigative Report
Bisbee Investigative Report
Documentation regarding Request 17-002 against the City of Phoenix
and Request 17-003 against the City of Bisbee
ARTICLE: Petersen asks Brnovich to probe Bisbee’s plastic bags ban
ARTICLE: Facing state complaint, Phoenix defends police policies on
immigration checks
Voluntary Legal Fees Assessment

Note: If necessary to discuss legal strategy with our attorney, the Executive Committee may
choose to convene in Executive Session.

Senate Bill 1487 Brief Update

Overview of Legislation
Senate Bill 1487 (Laws 2016, Ch. 35) was signed into law on March 17, 2016 and effective
on August 6, 2016. The Attorney General, at the request of a legislator, is required to investigate
and determine whether a law, regulation, or other act by a city or town 1 violates state law or the
Arizona Constitution. The Attorney General has 30 days to investigate and make a written report
of findings and conclusions and submit the report to the Senate President, House Speaker and the
legislator(s) who requested the investigation. A.R.S. § 41-194.01.
In practice the Attorney General has been providing the city or town with 10-14 days to
respond to the complaint before issuing a decision although it is not required by the law. At the
end of the 30-day investigation, the Attorney General must decide on one of three options:
1. If the Attorney General finds no violation, the Attorney General will not take any further
action.
2. If the Attorney General determines only that the local law may violate state law or the
Arizona Constitution, the Attorney General is required to file a special action in the
Arizona Supreme Court to resolve the issue, and the Supreme Court must give the action
precedence over all other cases. The Court must also require the municipality to post a
bond equal to the amount of state shared review paid to it over the preceding six months.
3. If the Attorney General determines that the local law violates state law or the
Constitution, the Attorney General is required to notify the municipality, which has 30
days to cure the violation. If the violation is not cured in 30 days, the Attorney General
must notify the State Treasurer, who is required to withhold and redistribute state shared
revenues from the municipality to others who are not in violation until the violation is
cured.
The State Treasurer does not have to withhold any amount of state shared revenues that are
required for payment of debt services on bonds or other long-term obligations incurred before
committing the violation. The city or town must certify to the Attorney General and State
Treasurer that these monies meet the criteria. A.R.S. §§ 42-5029, 43-206.

Complaints
Since the legislation took effect, there have been five official complaints filed and
investigated by the Attorney General. 2 Three complaints are closed and two are pending review.

1

SB1487 also applies to counties but this brief focuses on cities and towns; no complaints have
been filed against any county.
2
There have been other attempted filings but the complaints were incomplete and not accepted
by the Attorney General.
1

Senate Bill 1487 Brief Update
Closed Complaints
16-001: On August 11, 2016, Rep. Paul Boyer submitted a complaint alleging violation of Open
Meeting Law, notice requirements for zoning, illegal contract zoning, referendum and access to
public records against the Town of Snowflake regarding its special use permit for a medical
marijuana dispensary. The Attorney General found the Town may be violating the law relating
to illegal contract voting (other issues dismissed) and the Town repealed its ordinance. The
matter was closed.
16-002: On October 12, 2016, Rep. Mark Finchem filed a complaint alleging that the City of
Tucson’s destruction of firearms violates state law. The Attorney General found Tucson may be
violating state law and since Tucson refused to repeal the ordinance, the Attorney General filed a
special action in the Arizona Supreme Court. On August 17, 2017, the Supreme Court held that
Tucson’s ordinance violates state law because firearm destruction is a statewide concern and was
not protected by their charter authority. The Court also upheld the investigative process and the
“may violate” procedures of SB1487, although the bond requirement is unenforceable.
17-001: On August 17, 2017, Rep. Don Shooter submitted a complaint against Somerton alleging
the city’s ordinance requiring a church to obtain a conditional use permit to operate in a
commercial zone (while not requiring the same from others) violates state law. He withdrew the
complaint and the matter was closed once the City provided the Attorney General with
documentation that ordinance was in the process of being repealed as part of a resolution with
the Department of Justice.
Pending Complaints
17-002: On September 14, 2017, Sen. John Kavanagh filed a complaint alleging that Phoenix
Police Department’s Operations Orders relating to immigration violate state law. Phoenix
responded that the Orders are not within the scope of the Attorney Generals’ powers to
investigate under SB1487 because it is not an ordinance, regulation or other official act by the
council – the Orders were written by the Department’s Chief of Police with the guidance of legal
advisors. Alternatively, if the Attorney General investigates, Phoenix argued that the Orders are
compliant with state and federal law. The Attorney General must issue a decision by October 15,
2017.
17-003: On September 28, 2017, Sen. Warren Petersen filed a complaint against Bisbee alleging
that the city’s plastic bag ban violates state law. Bisbee responded that the ban is a local matter
protected by their city charter and the ban has produced positive results in the community. The
Attorney General has until the end of October to issue a decision.
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STATE OF ARIZONA
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT

No. 17-002

By

Re: City of Phoenix Police Operations
Order 4.48

MARK BRNOVICH
ATTORNEY GENERAL
October 16, 20 17

To:

The Honorable Doug Ducey, Governor of Arizona
The Honorable Steve Yarbrough, President of the Arizona Senate
The Honorable J.D. Mesnard, Speaker of the Arizona House of Representatives
The Honorable John l(avanagh, Requesting Member of the Arizona Legislature
The Honorable Michele Reagan, Secretary of State of Arizona

I.

Summary
Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes ("A.R.S.") § 41-194.01 , the Attorney General's

Office ("Office") has investigated the City of Phoenix's ("City") Police Operations Order 4.48,
as amended in July 2017 ("Operations Order"). Based on a review of relevant authorities and
materials during the limited 30-day period in § 41-194.01(B), the Attmney General has
determined that the Operations Order does not violate state law.

1

II.

Background
A.

The Office's Investigation

On September 15, 201 7, the Office received a request for legal review of the Operations
Order pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-194.01 from Senator John Kavanagh ("Request"). 1 The Office
asked the City to provide a voluntary response. The City cooperated with the Office's review by
providing a voluntary response and responding to a public records request from the Office. In
performing the required investigation during the limited 30-day period, the Office reviewed
relevant materials and authorities.
The Office's legal conclusions are set forth below. The facts recited in this report serve
as a basis for those conclusions, but they are not administrative findings of fact and are not made
for purposes other than those set forth in A.R.S. § 41-194.01.

B.

Relevant State Law

In 2010, the Arizona Legislature enacted the Support Our Law Enforcement and Safe
Neighborhoods Act, often referred to as S.B. 1070, which amended several A.R.S. titles with the
self-stated intent to "discourage and deter the unlawful entry and presence of aliens and
economic activity by persons unlawfully present in the United States." Among the statutes
enacted by S.B. 1070 was A.R.S. § 11-1051, which (pertinent to present purposes) mandates that
"[n ]o official or agency of this state or a county, city, town or other political subdivision of this
state may limit or restrict the enforcement of federal immigration laws to less than the full extent
permitted by federal law." See Ariz. Sess. Laws ch. 113, § 2 (2nd Reg. Sess.); Ariz. Sess. Laws
ch. 211, § 3 (2nd Reg. Sess.). While certain provisions resulting from S.B. 1070 have been held

1

The Request was submitted outside normal business hours on Thursday, September 14,
meaning it was received for purposes of the statutory scheme on the following business day,
Friday, September 15.
2

to be preempted by federal law, A.R.S. § 11-1051 has been held to be not facially preempted.
See, e.g., Arizona v. United States, 567 U.S. 387, 415 (2012).

C.

Phoenix's Operations Order

The Operations Order was issued in July 2017 at the direction of the Phoenix City
Council. On April 19, 2017, at a duly scheduled Council meeting, and after hearing testimony
and debate, the Phoenix City Council adopted by a vote of 6-3 a recommendation of a Mayorinitiated Council subcommittee, which included the following instruction:
That the City Manager direct the Police Department to modernize Phoenix Police
Operations Order 4.48 to align with the policies outlined in Mesa Police
Department Policy Manual 2.4.35, Tucson Police Department General Order
2300, and Maricopa County Sheriffs Office Policies EB-1, EB-2, and EA-11.
Additionally, Operations Order 4.48 should be in compliance with recent court
decisions.
City of Phoenix City Council Formal Meeting 4/19/2017 Agenda Item No. *137.2 at Attachment
A; see also City Council Formal Meeting Minutes April19, 2017 at 140-1; City Council Formal
Meeting Results April 19, 2017, at 17. The April 19 Council proceedings confirm that the April
19, 2017 vote was understood to be directory and reflect the policy intent of the City Council, the
governing body of the City. See, e.g., Testimony of City Manager Zuercher (City Council was
"directing" issuance of Police Operations Order and direction "is a statement by the Council" of
its "policy intent"); City Council Formal Meeting Minutes April 19, 2017 at 133, 136, 138-40
(understanding of members of the City Council and Mayor Stanton).

III.

Analysis
The Request raises concerns that the Operations Order limits or restricts information

sharing relating to immigration status and "the enforcement of federal immigration laws to less
than the full extent permitted by federal law" in violation of A.R.S. § 11-1051, but the
Operations Order affirms (and is not contrary to) S.B. 1070. The Operations Order confirms a

3

I

I

I

role for the Phoenix Police Department in immigration enforcement in partnership with ICE
(U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement). It mandates that officers reach out to ICE. See,

e.g., Operations Order at 3, Sections 4-5. It repeats the legislature's instructional language from
A.R.S. § 11-1051(L), making plain that "all immigration enforcement activities" shall be
conducted "in a manner consistent with federal and state laws regulating immigration." Id at 1,
Section 1. And, echoing A.R.S. § 11-1051(A), the Operations Order affirms that "[t]his policy
will not limit the enforcement of federal and state immigration laws to less than the full extent
I

permitted by law." Id Moreover, it bears mention that the Operations Order followed the City
Council's February 2017 refusal (by a 7-2 vote) to become a "sanctuary city" and affirmance of
the City's immigration enforcement role under S.B. 1070?
The Request's contents fall into two categories: (1) concerns regarding the presence (or
lack) of certain language in parts of the Operations Order; (2) concerns regarding certain routine
procedural parameters that are to be applied in connection with police enforcement duties under
S.B. 1070 and other state laws outside the context of stops, detentions, or arrests.

A. The Language Of Sections l.E, l.J, And S.A Of The Operations Order, Which In
Large Part Repeats Or Restates Relevant Statutory And Opinion Language,
Does Not Conflict With State Law
The Request identifies Operations Order Sections l.E, l.J, and 5.A as potentially
conflicting with A.R.S. § 11-1051 based on the exclusion (or inclusion) of certain statutory
language from these Sections. Read as a whole, the language of these sections does not conflict
with state law. First, Operations Order Section 1.J details circumstances when officers may
transport persons in custody to ICE. This is consistent with the discretionary language of A.R.S.
§ 11-1051 (D), which does not require transport, but instead provides that "a law enforcement
2

See David Schwartz, "Phoenix city council rejects bid to become 'sanctuary city,"' Reuters,
February 15, 2017, https://www.reuters.com/article/us-arizona-sanctuarycity/phoenix-citycouncil-rejects-bid-to-become-sanctuary-city-idUSKBN15V085 .
4

I

agency may securely transport an alien who the agency has received verification is unlawfully
present in the United States." (Emphasis added). 3 Second, Operations Order Section 5.A, which
provides that "[i]f a person is detained for a violation of any law and during this detention an
officer develops reasonable suspicion the detained person is unlawfully present in the U.S., the
officer shall make a reasonable attempt to contact ICE and verify the person's immigration status
(ARS 11-1051.B)," is consistent with the language of A.R.S. § 11-1051(D). Section 5.A's use of
the overarching phrase "any law" does not conflict with Section 11-1051 (D)'s use of "any other
law or ordinance of a county, city, or town." Third, the related notation in Operations Order
Section 1.E of "two situations where officers are mandated by Arizona Revised Statute (ARS)
11-1051 to contact the federal government [U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE)]
to verify a person's immigration status" also is not in conflict with state law.

Section 1.E

identifies the two mandatory situations (which are also covered by Sections 4 and 5) as follows:
(1) A person is under ARREST based on probable cause (adult or juvenile)
(see section 4 of this order for more information).
•

This means ALL persons ARRESTED regardless of lawful status in
the United States (U .S.), race, color, national origin, OR presumptive
ID; the arrestee shall have their immigration status verified by the
federal government prior to release of the arrestee.

(2) When a person is lawfully stopped/detained for a state or local crime AND
only when the officer develops further reasonable suspicion the detained
person is unlawfully present in the U.S. (see section 5 of this order for
more information).
Although ambiguously drafted, noting two examples in which immigration inquiries are
mandated by A.R.S. § 11-1051 does not cabin mandatory inquiries solely to criminal offenses.
Because Section 5 's use of "any law" includes mandatory reporting for civil violations when

See State v. Lewis, 224 Ariz. 512, 515 ~17 (App. 2010) ("A general principle of statutory
construction is that the use of the word 'may' generally indicates a permissive provision.").

3

5

reasonable cause is present, Section I.E is best understood as illustrating two examples of many
possible mandatory reporting situations. 4
B. The Procedural Parameters Set Forth In Sections 1 And 2 Of The Operations
Order Do Not Conflict With State Law
The procedural parameters set forth in Operations Order Sections I.D, I.H, 2, and
4.A(3), like Sections I.F and I.G, apply outside the context of stops, detentions, or arrests and do
not represent restrictions in violation of A.R.S. § II-I 05I. These parameters explain procedures
for how officers should contact ICE, and they furthermore govern everyday officer conduct on
school grounds and during traffic enforcement in connection with the fulfillment of an officer's
duties under A.R.S. § II-I 05I. Critically, these routine parameters give way when officers
encounter the specific, mandatory circumstances set forth in Sections I.E, 4, and 5.

The

Operations Order is explicit that: (I) "all immigration enforcement activities" shall be conducted
"in a manner consistent with federal and state laws regulating immigration"; (2) "[t]his policy
will not limit the enforcement of federal and state immigration laws to less than the full extent
permitted by law"; and (3) there are situations where "officers are mandated to contact the
federal government [U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement]." Operations Order at I,
Sections I.B and I.E; see also id. at 3-4, Sections 4 and 5 (further detailing situations in which
"persons . . . shall have their immigration status verified" and officers "officer[s] shall make a
reasonable attempt to contact ICE"). These specific provisions apply in each of the procedural
circumstances covered generally by Sections l.D, l.F, l.G, l.H, and 2. Where the circumstances
set forth in Sections I.E, 4, and 5 are triggered, officers are under an obligation to carry out their
mandatory duties under state law, regardless of whether they are on school grounds, involved in
traffic enforcement, or otherwise.
4

Whether these or any other sections of Operations Order may be susceptible to
misinterpretation by officers is beyond the scope of this report.
6
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The Operations Order affirms the effective provisions of S.B. 1070 as well as a role for
the Phoenix Police Department in immigration enforcement in partnership with ICE.
Notwithstanding the inclusion of aspirational language in the Operations Order and its
presentation by Members of the City Council as a "welcoming" outreach, the Operations Order's
operative provisions do not on their face rescind any duties imposed by A.R.S. § 11-1051.
Whatever gloss has been placed on it by local elected officials, the Operations Order by its terms
does not conflict with state law or appear to put the City in conflict with the federal government.
Indeed, the U.S. Department of Justice, led by Attorney General Jeff Sessions, has not included
the City in its recent "last chance" warning over "sanctuary city" laws. 5 Whether the City's
practice proves to be consistent with the terms of the Operations Order is a separate question,
one doubtless subject to the continued vigilance of the U.S. Department of Justice.

Regardless,

this investigation and report are constrained by A.R.S. § 41-194.01(A) to "official action adopted
or taken by the government body," and on that basis there is no state law violation here.
IV.

Conclusion
The Office concludes under A.R.S. § 41-194.01(B) that the Operations Order does not

violate state law.

Oram 1 . .H.) Skinner
Chief o Government Accountability
& Special Litigation Unit

5

See Department of Justice, "Justice Department Provides Last Chance for Cities to Show 13 73
Compliance," October 12, 2017, https://www.justice.gov/opa/pr/justice-department-provideslast-chance-cities-show-13 73 -compliance.
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STATE OF ARIZONA
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT

No. 17-003

By

Re: City of Bisbee Ordinance 0-13-14
Regulating Disposable Carryout Bags

MARK BRNOVICH
ATTORNEY GENERAL
October 23, 2017

To:

The Honorable Doug Ducey, Governor of Arizona
The Honorable Steve Yarbrough, President of the Arizona Senate
The Honorable J.D. Mesnard, Speaker ofthe Arizona House of Representatives
The Honorable Warren Petersen, Requesting Member of the Arizona Legislature
The Honorable Michele Reagan, Secretary of State of Arizona

I.

Summary

Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes ("A.R.S.") § 41-194.01 , the Attorney General's
Office ("Office") has investigated the City of Bisbee's ("City") Ordinance 0-13-14
("Ordinance") and, as amended by the Ordinance, Bisbee City Code art. 9.7 ("Code," and
together with the Ordinance, "City's Regulation"), which presently regulates disposable carryout
bags. Based on a review of relevant authorities and materials during the limited 30-day period in
§ 41-194.01(B), the Attorney General has determined that the City's Regulation violates state
law.

1

II.

Bacliground
A.

The Office's Investigation

On September 28, 2017, the Office received a request for legal review of the Ordinance
pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-194.01 from Senator Warren Petersen ("Request"). The Office asked
the City to provide a voluntary response. The City cooperated with the Office's review by
providing a voluntary response, along with supporting materials. In performing the required
investigation during the limited 30-day period, the Office reviewed relevant materials and
authorities.
The Office's legal conclusions are set forth below. The facts recited in this report serve
as a basis for those conclusions, but they are not administrative findings of fact and are not made
for purposes other than those set forth in A.R.S. § 41-194.01.

B.

Relevant State Law

In relevant part, A.R.S. § 9-500.38 provides that:
A. A city or town may not:

1. Impose a tax, fee, assessment, charge or return deposit on a
consumer or an owner, operator or tenant of a business,
commercial building or multifamily housing property for auxiliary
containers.
2. Regulate the sale, use or disposition of auxiliary containers by an
owner, operator or tenant of a business, commercial building or
multifamily housing prope1iy.
A.R.S. § 9-500.38(A).

It further defines "auxiliary container" to include "reusable bags,

disposable bags ... and containers ... that are used for transp01iing merchandise or food to or
from a business[.]" Id at (D).
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C.

The City's Code And Ordinance

The Code provides that "no retail establishment in the City of Bisbee shall provide a
single use plastic carryout bag to a customer." Bisbee City Code mi. 9.7.3(B) (2016). It ftuiher
states that "a retail establishment may provide a customer with one or more recycled paper bags
... but only if each such bag is subject to a reasonable fee ... in an amount not less than five
cents ($.05)[.]" Bisbee City Code mi. 9.7.3(D). These requirements were adopted by the City
through the Ordinance, which was entitled "Regulation of Disposable Carryout Bags." And the
presence of these provisions subjects retail establishments to the threat of enforcement, including
up to $500 per violation. Bisbee City Code art. 9.7.6.
III.

Analysis
The City's Regulation conflicts with A.R.S. § 9-500.38-the City regulates disposable

bags through the Code and Ordinance, and A.R.S. § 9-500.38(A) prohibits municipalities from
regulating such bags, which are included in the definition of "auxiliary container" in A.R.S. § 9500.38(D). The City acknowledged this conflict in its voluntary written response to the Office.
The only remaining question is whether the City's Regulation addresses a matter of
"purely local interest" such that it prevails against A.R.S. § 9-500.38. See State ex. rel. Brnovich

v. City of Tucson, 242 Ariz. 588, 598 1f42 (2017). As the Arizona Supreme Collli recently
explained in connection with a prior Attorney General investigation and report under A.R.S.
§ 41-194.0 I, Arizona courts have recognized only two areas as matters of "purely local interest,"
such that a charter city municipal ordinance could prevail over a conflicting state law: (!) the
method and manner of conducting city elections; and (2) the method and manner in which

3

municipal real property is disposed. See Tucson, 242 Ariz. at 602 ~~55-56. 1 Therefore, the
City's Regulation does not address a matter of purely local interest and does not prevail.
When conflicting state and local laws touch on interests that are validly both statewide
and local, Tucson instructs that the statewide interest must prevail. See Tucson, 242 Ariz. at 602
~54.

The City has certainly identified valid areas of concern for municipalities, including

reducing waste management costs and improving the appearance of the City. But whether some
local concern exists is not the dispositive inquity for pmposes of this review under A.R.S. § 41194.01.

Under Tucson, the dispositive inquiry is whether a statewide interest exists in the

regulated subject matter. And given the several statewide interests identified by the Legislature
in connection with A.R.S. § 9-500.38, any valid local interests addressed by the Code and
Ordinance must give way. The Legislature identified several statewide interests in enacting
A.R.S. § 9-500.38, for instance, interests in: (1) avoiding regulations which could burden small
businesses that are "particularly sensitive to costs and expenses incurred in complying with
regulatory actions"; and (2) ensuring that "inconsistent regulation by cities, towns and counties
[do not] hinder[ ] a small business from benefiting from free and open competition." See Ariz.
Sess. Laws ch. 28, § 5 (2016). The statewide nature of these interests is patent. Thus, the City's
stated interests in regulating disposable carryout bags cannot result in the City's Regulation
prevailing against A.R.S. § 9-500.38.

*

*

1

*

Generally, municipalities possess "no greater powers than those delegated to them" by the
State. See City of Scottsdale v. Maricopa Cnty., 103 Ariz. 204, 205 (1968). However, a city that
has framed for itself a charter pursuant to Atiicle XIII, § 2 of the Arizona Constitution may act in
the absence of state-level legislative action "consistent with, and subject to, the Constitution and
the laws of the state[.]" See also Tucson, 242 Ariz. at 598-99 ~~39-40. The "purely local
interest" analysis applies only to charter cities, of which the City is one; for non-chatter cities,
the presence of a conflict with state law in and of itself would establish a violation of state law
for purposes of A.R.S. § 41-194.01, without the need for further analysis.
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The presence of statewide interests, and the fact that the Code and Ordinance do not fit
into the two recognized areas of purely local interest, mandate the determination that the City' s
Regulation violates state law. The City has offered policy arguments for why it believes local
regulation of disposable canyout bags is preferable. But the Legislature has spoken. See A.R.S.
§ 9-500.38.

To be clear, A.R.S. § 9-500.38 does not prohibit the City from establishing

voluntary initiatives and using simple persuasion to increase the use of reusable carryout bags
and reduce or eliminate use of disposable plastic carryout bags. Indeed, as reflected in the
materials the City submitted, suppmi for such effmis could be robust. And no state law compels
businesses to offer these bags-businesses across the state are free to choose, and if the business
conmmnity in the City wishes to voluntarily stop using single use canyout bags they may do so.
Regardless, the City may not impose regulatory mandates on private citizens and businesses to
accomplish its policy goal.

IV.

Conclusion

The Office concludes under A.R.S. § 41-194.01(B) that the City's Regulation, reflected
in the Code and Ordinance, violates state law. Pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-194.01(B)(l), the City
has thirty days from the issuance of this written report to resolve the violation. If the City fails to
resolve the violation within thiliy days, the Attomey General will, pursuant to A.R.S. § 41 194.01(B)(l), "[n]otify the state treasurer who shall withhold and redistribute state shared
monies from the county, city or town as provided by § 42-5029, subsection L and from the city
or town as provided by§ 43-206, subsection F."

.H. Skinner
Chief of ov · ent Accountability
& Special Litigation Unit
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Attachment A
1487 Complaint of Senator John Kavanagh Regarding
Phoenix Police Operations Order 4.48: Immigration Enforcement
ARS 11-1051. Cooperation and assistance in enforcement of immigration laws;
indemnification (see Attachment B) mandates a high level of police enforcement of
federal immigration laws. Specifically, ARS 11-1051 subsection A states,

No official or agency of this state or a county, city, town or other political
subdivision of this state may limit or restrict the enforcement of federal
immigration laws to less than the full extent permitted by federal law.

In addition, subsection B states,

For any lawful stop, detention or arrest made by a law enforcement official or a
law enforcement agency of this state or a law enforcement official or a law
enforcement agency of a county, city, town or other political subdivision of this
state in the enforcement of any other law or ordinance of a county, city or town
or this state where reasonable suspicion exists that the person is an alien and is
unlawfully present in the United States, a reasonable attempt shall be made,
when practicable, to determine the immigration status of the person, except if
the determination may hinder or obstruct an investigation.

Furthermore, Section F goes on to state that,

Except as provided in federal law, officials or agencies of this state and
counties, cities, towns and other political subdivisions of this state may not be
prohibited or in any way be restricted from sending, receiving or maintaining
information relating to the immigration status, lawful or unlawful, of any
individual or exchanging that information with any other federal, state or local
governmental entity for the following official purposes:
3. If the person is an alien, determining whether the person is in
compliance with the federal registration laws prescribed by title II,
chapter 7 of the federal immigration and nationality act.

In its totality, ARS11-1051 mandates that all police officers make a reasonable
attempt, when practicable, to determine the immigration status of any person when
the officer has reasonable suspicion to believe that the person is an alien and is
unlawfully present in the United States, except if the determination may hinder or
obstruct an investigation. ARS11-1051 goes on to prohibit any official or agency of
this state or a county, city, town or other political subdivision of this state from

restricting the enforcement of federal immigration laws to less than the full extent
permitted by federal law.
Seven sections of Phoenix Police Operations Order 4.48: Immigration
Enforcement (see Attachment C) violate the provisions of ARS11-1051 by limiting
under what circumstances and where Phoenix police officers can make immigration
inquiries in a manner more restrictive than the mandates of ARS11-1051. A list of
these violations follows.
1. Phoenix Police Operations Order 4.48 section 1D requires pre-approval of ICE
immigration status verification requests.
Phoenix Police Operations Order 4.48: 1D states

The pre-approval requirement for ICE checks violates ARS11-1051 F, which states,

Except as provided in federal law, officials or agencies of this state and
counties, cities, towns and other political subdivisions of this state may not be
prohibited or in any way be restricted (emphasis mine) from sending,
receiving or maintaining information relating to the immigration status, lawful
or unlawful, of any individual or exchanging that information with any other
federal, state or local governmental entity for the following official purposes:
3. If the person is an alien, determining whether the person is in
compliance with the federal registration laws prescribed by title II,
chapter 7 of the federal immigration and nationality act.

Phoenix police officers are not required to get pre-approval to conduct other
routine checks, such as those involving traffic-related issues. Nor are they required
to contact a special unit, the Violent Crimes Bureau (VCB,) for such approval.
Consequently, the pre-approval for immigration checks is an unnecessary
restriction prohibited by ARS11-1051 F.
The pre-approval requirement is also unreasonable, in light of the fact that
the courts have ruled that a person undergoing an immigration check may not be
held longer than the time needed to accomplish the objectives of the initial stop.
This extraordinary approval requirement amounts to a limiting and restricting of
“the enforcement of federal immigration laws to less than the full extent permitted by

federal law,” which is a violation of ARS11-1051 subsection A both facially and
practically applied by “running the clock out” and requiring the release of the
suspect before the check can be completed.

In addition, section 1 D is also in violation of 8 U.S.C. section 1373 (see
Appendix D,) which prohibits policies that impede cooperation between federal,
state, and local officials, when it comes to the sending, requesting, maintaining, or
exchanging of information regarding immigration status. Under that provision, any
federal, state, or local government entity or official may not prohibit, or in any way
restrict, any government entity or official from sending to, or receiving from the
federal government, information regarding the citizenship or immigration status,
lawful or unlawful, of any individual. A policy that ignores a federal prohibition
impeding communication between police and ICE constitutes an action that limits or
restricts the enforcement of federal immigration laws to less than the full extent
permitted by federal law in violation of ARS 11-1051 A.
2. Phoenix Police Operations Order 4:48 section E 2 restricts immigration inquiries
to stops or detentions based upon possible criminal activity but ARS11-1051
mandates inquiries based upon stops initiated upon suspicion of any law or
ordinance violation of a county, city or town or this state.
Phoenix Police Operations Order 4.48: E states,

Section 1E (2) only allows Phoenix police officers to make immigration inquiries
when the stop or detention is based upon suspicion of the violation of the criminal
law, specifically “a state or local crime.” However, ARS11-1051 B states,

For any lawful stop, detention or arrest made by a law enforcement official or a
law enforcement agency of this state or a law enforcement official or a law
enforcement agency of a county, city, town or other political subdivision of this
state in the enforcement of any other law or ordinance of a county, city or town
or this state.

Clearly, “of any other law or ordinance of a county, city or town or this state”
also encompasses non-criminal violations, including civil transgressions. In fact, U.S.
Supreme Court Justice Anthony Kennedy in his opinion finding this section
constitutional offered the example of a stop for simple, non-criminal jaywalking .
(See 567 U.S. 387 ARIZONA, et al., Petitioners v. UNITED STATES pp12-13.)
3. Phoenix Police Operations Order section 1 H prohibits officers from making any
immigration status inquiry during a traffic stop unless the stop is for a criminal law
violation.
Section 1 H states,

Section 1 H restates the illegal restriction on immigration inquiries contained
in section 1E (2,) discussed above, and is in violation of ARS11-1051 B for the
reasons cited above.
4. Phoenix Police Operations Order section 1 J unlawfully restricts when police may
transport an illegal alien to federal authorities.
Section I J only allows police transport to federal authorities of illegal aliens in two
circumstances:

This section contradicts two sections of ARS11-1051:
1. Subsection A states,

No official or agency of this state or a county, city, town or other political
subdivision of this state may limit or restrict the enforcement of federal
immigration laws to less than the full extent permitted by federal law.
2. Subsection D states,

Notwithstanding any other law, a law enforcement agency may securely
transport an alien who the agency has received verification is unlawfully
present in the United States and who is in the agency's custody to a federal

facility in this state or to any other point of transfer into federal custody that is
outside the jurisdiction of the law enforcement agency.
Phoenix Police Operations Order 4.48 1 J unlawfully limits and restricts the
enforcement of federal immigration law as mandated in ARS11-1051 A and ARS111051’s transportation section. When combined, these two sections of ARS11-1051
mandate the transportation to federal authorities of persons verified to be in the
United States illegally. No state or federal court ruling applicable to Arizona
prohibits such action. This section of ARS11-1051 survived U.S. Supreme Court
scrutiny.

Finally and perhaps unintentionally, section 1J also prohibits the transportation of a
person wanted for a criminal immigration violation who also has state charges
pending. For the reasons listed above, this is also a violation of state law.
5. Phoenix Police Operations Order 4.48 section 2 C unlawfully prohibits the police
from asking anyone on school grounds about their immigration status, although
ARS11-1051 requires such an inquiry when the officer has reasonable suspicion
that the subject is an illegal alien and it is practicable to do so and will not hinder or
impede an investigation.
Section 2 C states,

This blanket ban makes schools sanctuary sites, where anyone -child, adult, student,
staff member or visitor - in the country illegally, is protected from otherwise lawful
immigration inquiries mandated by ARS11-1051 B (see above.) This prohibition is
illegal for the same reasons that section E2 is illegal.
In addition, section 2 C’s establishment of “sanctuary islands” within Phoenix may
violate federal law by preempting the federal government’s exclusive regulation of
immigration law. In De Canas v. Bica (424 U.S. 351) the Supreme Court held that any
state law or policy related to immigration will be per se preempted, if it is a
regulation of immigration because the “power to regulate immigration is
unquestionably exclusively a federal power.” Creating areas where persons illegally
in the country are safe from enforcement amounts to pre-empting federal law by
shielding such persons from detection and prosecution. Clearly, such a policy
constitutes an action that limits or restricts the enforcement of federal immigration
laws to less than the full extent permitted by federal law in violation of
ARS 11-1051 A.

6. Phoenix Police Operations Order section 4 A (3) requires pre-approval of ICE
immigration status verification requests for adults and juveniles in certain
situations.
Section 4 A (3)’s pre-approval requirement is illegal for the same reasons that
section 1 D’s pre-approval requirement is illegal (see above.)

7. Phoenix Police Operations Order section 5 A restricts immigration inquiries to
situations in which a person is detained based upon violation of any law but ARS111051 mandates inquiries based upon stops initiated upon suspicion of a violation of
any law or ordinance of a county, city or town or this state.
Phoenix Police Operations Order 4.48: 5 A states,

Section 5 A restates part of the restriction on immigration inquiries contained in
section 1 E (2) and 1H, discussed above, and is in violation of ARS11-1051 B.

Oddly, 5 A is less restrictive than 1 E (2) and 1 H and actually contradicts them but is
still overly and illegally restrictive because it excludes “or ordinance of a county, city
or town or this state.”
While a case could be made that the term “law” technically includes ordinances of a
county, city or town or this state, this wording is not written in a contract, legal brief
or other legal document but in an operations order that is instructional in nature
with an overwhelmingly non-attorney audience. Consequently, the omission of the
statutes full language (“of any other (emphasis mine) law or ordinance of a county,
city or town or this state”) is likely to illegally limit the application of the law
through misinterpretation by some officers.

Petersen asks Brnovich to probe Bisbee’s plastic bags ban


By: Rachel Leingang



September 28, 2017 , 2:47 pm

The City of Bisbee’s ban on plastic bags is still bothering lawmakers, who already passed a law to bar
bag bans.

Sen. Warren Petersen, R-Gilbert, has filed a complaint with the Attorney General’s
Office and asked if the City of Bisbee’s ban on single-use plastic bags violates state
laws.

Sen.
Warren
Petersen
(R-Gilbert)

Bisbee prohibited plastics bags in 2014, and lawmakers responded with legislation
banning such local ordinances the following year.

Cities across the country have banned plastic bags as a way to lessen environmental
impacts associated with the disposable bags, like littering and recycling problems.

In 2015, lawmakers approved legislation sponsored by Petersen that made it illegal for local
governments to impose a fee or deposit on plastic bags.

At the time, Bisbee was the only city with a bag ban in place. Several other cities, including Tempe,
were considering a ban before the law passed.

Bisbee, along with Tempe City Councilwoman Lauren Kuby, sued the state over the law, arguing it is

unconstitutional. Kuby was dismissed as a plaintiff because she lacked standing since Tempe did not
actually have a bag ban. Meanwhile, Bisbee voluntarily dismissed the lawsuit earlier this month,
court docket shows.

Petersen told the Capitol Times citizens and businesses should be able to rely on cities to abide by
laws, and keeping a bag ban on the books blatantly disregards the law.

“It may not be the most important law to some people, but it’s tyranny all the same,” Petersen said in
a text message.

Petersen filed his complaint under SB1487, a 2016 law that allows lawmakers to ask Attorney
General Mark Brnovich to investigate whether local governments are flouting state laws. There have
been four such complaints investigated by the Attorney General so far.
Ken Strobeck, director of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns, which opposed

both the plastic bags ban and SB1487, said Bisbee now has less litter because of the
ban.
“Everybody seems to be getting along with that fine and they like doing it down
there,” Strobeck said.

Strobeck
Strobeck said today’s complaint is further proof that the process spelled out under
SB1487 is inappropriate. The Legislature shouldn’t be intruding on cities’ duties, and if
legitimate differences of opinions exist as to what cities can or cannot do, the courts should iron
those out, he said.



Instead, SB1487 can be “misused and abused,” and it allows the state to threaten cities with

withholding state-shared revenues, which fund vital local government services, if a complaint is
found to be valid by the Attorney General, Strobeck said.
“It’s killing a fly with a sledgehammer,” he said.

Calls to the City of Bisbee were not immediately returned.
The AG’s office has 30 days to investigate the complaint.
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SB1487

ARIZONA
TEMPE

ATTORNEY GENERAL MARK BRNOVICH

BISBEE

KEN STROBECK

LAUREN KUBY

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS

PLASTIC BAGS BAN

WARREN PETERSEN

YOU MIGHT ALSO LIKE

State taking steps to
make parks
accessible for
people with
disabilities

Dental therapist
proposal to get new
hearing before
lawmakers

Budget process
DES asks for
brings more discord permanent funding
among utility
to cover cost of
regulators
minimum wage hike

October 2, 2017 ,
4:30 am





September 29, 2017
, 4:10 am





Carpenters express
safety concerns,
demand leadership
change at Industrial
Commission


October 2, 2017 ,
4:10 am

September 29, 2017  September 29, 2017
, 4:30 am
, 4:20 am

State employees,
retirees will pay for
health insurance
trust sweeps
September 28, 2017
, 8:00 pm

Copyright © 2017 Arizona Capitol Times 1835 W. Adams Street, Phoenix, AZ 85007 (602) 258-7026



Facing state complaint, Phoenix
defends police policies on
immigration checks
By Howard Fischer Capitol Media Services
Oct 10, 2017 Updated 14 hrs ago

In this July 29, 2010 file photo, Maricopa County sheriff’s deputies, left, checked the shoes of a
suspect arrested during a crime suppression sweep in Phoenix.
Ross D. Franklin / The Associated Press 2010

PHOENIX — Attorney General Mark Brnovich has no legal right to look into the
policies of the Phoenix police in dealing with people suspected of being in this
country illegally, a lawyer for the city is charging.
In a letter to Brnovich, Jean-Jacques Cabou said a 2016 law requires him to
investigate when a legislator asks whether any ordinance, regulation, order or
other official action taken by a city council runs afoul of state law.

But he said the complaint by Sen. John Kavanagh, R-Fountain Hills, concerns a
police department “operations order.”
“The order is not an ordinance or regulation, nor was it an action adopted or taken
by the governing board of a city,” Cabou told Brnovich. “Therefore your office
lacks jurisdiction to investigate or report.”
And Cabou said even if Brnovich is empowered to review the order — a point he
is not conceding — he said Kavanagh’s complaint “lacks merit.”
He said the order simply details the procedures Phoenix’s police chief determines
are necessary for officers to lawfully carry out their duties. And he noted the U.S.
Supreme Court has said there are “limited circumstances in which state officers
may perform the functions of an immigration officer.”
“The complaint is an unfounded attempt by a legislator from Fountain Hills to
micromanage the police of a city he neither lives in nor represents,” Cabou told
Brnovich. “Neither Arizona law nor common sense allows him to do so.”
If Brnovich disagrees and concludes the order about how police deal with
suspected undocumented immigrants violates state law, he can seek to withhold
the city’s state revenues.
The implications stretch beyond Phoenix.
Several other cities, including Tucson, have similar policies about what officers
can and cannot do when they encounter people who they believe may be in this
country illegally. Those policies could be voided if Brnovich determines they are
precluded by state law and courts uphold his conclusions.
Kavanagh’s complaints are based on SB 1070, a 2010 state law designed to give
police more power to detain and arrest those in this country illegally.
Some of the provisions were declared illegal by the U.S. Supreme Court. But the
justices did leave some provisions intact.
One says when an officer stops someone for any reason, he or she must make “a
reasonable attempt ... when practicable, to determine the immigration status of the
person.” Another section says police cannot be prohibited from sending or

receiving information from federal officials to determine if someone is in the
country legally.
Kavanagh finds fault with Phoenix’s directives to officers on when they must
contact Immigration and Customs Enforcement and when they cannot ask
immigration-related questions during traffic stops.
He said another order illegally keeps police and school-resource officers from
asking immigration questions or contacting ICE while on school grounds.
“This blanket ban makes schools sanctuary sites, where anyone — child, adult,
student, staff member or visitor — in the country illegally is protected from
otherwise lawful immigration inquiries mandated by law,” the senator contends.
Cabou told Brnovich that the 2016 law empowering him to investigate the actions
of city councils does not extend to what in effect are policies enacted by the
Phoenix police chief, who alone is entitled to alter them.
Anyway, Cabou said, nothing in the order tells police officers to violate SB 1070
but instead instructs them on how and when to enforce immigration laws.
For example, he said the procedures for school-resource officers recognize that
their primary duty is to “foster trust and cooperation when interacting with
students and provide for the overall safety and security of everyone on school
campuses.” Cabou said that means placing emphasis on being educators and
mentors, acting “as enforcement officers when necessary.”
He also said it would be “impractical” for officers to inquire about the
immigration status of everyone they stop for a traffic violation. Also, he said,
police cannot use someone’s race or ethnicity in deciding who to question about
their legal presence in the country.

VOLUNTARY LEGAL FEES ASSESSMENT
PERKINS COIE Legal Costs: $125,000
State of Arizona v. City of Tucson regarding SB1487
At the meeting of November 4, 2016, the League Executive Committee voted to pay half of the costs from
League reserves and request the other half from member cities and towns.
Formula: $150 base + .00903 per capita
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APACHE JUNCTION
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BISBEE
BUCKEYE
BULLHEAD CITY
CAMP VERDE
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CAVE CREEK
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2015 CENSUS
Assessed Share of
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4,888
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62,582
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39,445
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11,155
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3,610
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51,460
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5,341
$198
260,828
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4,240
$188
3,685
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4,832
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16,592
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799
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33,935
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17,059
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70,320
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23,899
$365
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240,126
$2,311
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79,003
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650
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5,019
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1,755
$166
456
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2,038
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41,315
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48,602
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471,825
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20,252
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ORO VALLEY
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PARADISE VALLEY
PARKER
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PHOENIX
PIMA
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PRESCOTT VALLEY
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WILLIAMS
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Total Legal Fees
43,565
$543
7,490
$218
13,922
$276
3,046
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890
$158
15,345
$289
171,237
$1,696
1,563,025
$14,264
2,524
$173
4,345
$189
41,899
$528
42,197
$531
3,626
$183
34,614
$463
9,683
$237
25,707
$382
31,520
$435
236,839
$2,289
10,388
$244
10,860
$248
43,355
$541
5,666
$201
15,048
$286
5,715
$202
1,954
$168
3,483
$181
2,277
$171
2,943
$177
128,422
$1,310
4,151
$187
175,826
$1,738
4,992
$195
7,008
$213
1,312
$162
531,641
$4,951
567
$155
2,936
$177
6,806
$211
3,552
$182
3,122
$178
346
$153
9,600
$237
6,613
$210
94,139
$1,000
5,409,491
$62,439

October 13, 2017

TO:

Bryant Powell, City Manager, Apache Junction

FROM:

Ken Strobeck, Executive Director

SUBJECT:

Special Voluntary Assessment for Legal Fees

SAMPLE

On August 17, 2017, the Arizona Supreme Court ruled in the case of State of Arizona v. City of Tucson
that the city’s ordinance calling for the destruction of seized firearms was in violation of state law. State
Representative Mark Finchem (R-11) had filed a request for an investigation by the Attorney General on
October 12, 2016 under SB 1487.
That law, passed in the 2016 legislative session, allows any one or more state legislators to file
paperwork alleging that a city or town ordinance violates state law and sets in motion a series of steps
including investigation and determination of facts by the Attorney General, hearing before the Arizona
Supreme Court and potential withholding of shared revenue funds until the local ordinance is repealed.
As has been our precedent in other court cases, the League took a prominent role challenging the legality
of SB 1487 along with the cities of Tucson, Phoenix and Yuma. The League engaged the services of the
firm of Perkins Coie and lead attorney Paul Eckstein, who has represented us in previous lawsuits, to
represent the interests of all cities and towns in filing briefs and making oral arguments in the case
before the state Supreme Court.
The Perkins Coie firm’s legal fees in this case were capped at $125,000. At its meeting of November 4,
2016, the League Executive Committee voted to pay for half of those legal costs out of the League’s
reserve funds, and ask our members for the other half through a special assessment.
The assessment is calculated on a $150 base fee for each city and town, and a per capita rate of $.00903
based on the 2015 Census Bureau population estimates. The specific amount for your city or town is
indicated on the statement on the back of this letter. We would appreciate your payment at the earliest
possible date.
If you have any questions about the lawsuit or this assessment, please contact me.

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT STATEMENT
for
FY 2017-2018
LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
1820 West Washington Street
Phoenix, Arizona 85007
Phone: (602) 258-5786

APACHE JUNCTION

Reimbursement of legal fees paid to Perkins Coie to represent the interests of all cities and towns before the state
Supreme Court, State of Arizona v. City of Tucson.
Assessment Formula: $150 base + .00903 per capita (using 2015 Census Population Estimates)

$150 + (.00903 x 38074) = $494
Total Amount Due: $494
Please make checks payable to League of Arizona Cities & Towns.

Thank you!

Please use the information below if you wish to make an ACH
payment:
FINANCIAL INSTITUATION: JPMorgan Chase
NAME ON ACCOUNT: League of Arizona Cities & Towns
ROUTING NUMBER: 122100024
ACCOUNT NUMBER: 68101
REMITTANCE EMAIL: ACHpayments@azleague.org

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 3, 2017

Agenda Item #4

Recap of 2017 Annual Conference

Summary:

Staff will give an overview of the 2017 Annual Conference Survey and
Financial Report from the August Conference in Oro Valley.

Responsible Person:

Matt Lore, Communication & Education Director

Attachments:

Attendance / Financial Report
Conference survey results

2017 LEAGUE ANNUAL CONFERENCE
ATTENDANCE REPORT
Date:

August 22-25, 2017

Location:

Hilton El Conquistador Resort
Oro Valley, Arizona

1,131 persons attended the conference. 82 of the 91 cities and towns (90%) were
representated at the event. The following is a summary of those who attended.
Position
Mayors
Vice Mayors
Councilmembers
Manager/Assistant Manager
Clerk/Deputy Clerk
Attorney/Assistant Attorney
Intergov
Other City/Town
Spouse (Includes " 45 Badge Only"; 12 Comps)
Complimentary
Life Member
COG Director
State Department
State Representatives
State Senators
Speakers
Sponsors
Other
Youth
TOTAL

Total
Registrants
71
39
235
68
14
12
20
66
135
4
6
5
20
16
8
39
130
64
179
1,131

2017 Annual Conference - Hilton El Conquistador, Oro Valley
SPONSORS
Arizona Pipe Trades UA Local 469
Arizona Public Service
Arizona State University
Cigna
The University of Arizona
American Legal Publishing
AMRRP
BMO Harris Bank
H-PACT
National League of Cities Service Line Warranty Program
U.S. Communities
Kairos Health Arizona, Inc.
Kasdan LippSmith Weber Turner, LLP
Swire Coca-Cola, USA
The Nature Conservancy in Arizona
Union Pacific Railroad
Waste Management
Ballard Spahr LLP
Brown & Associates Certified Inspection Service, Inc.
CenturyLink
EPCOR Water
LECET Southwest
Pueblo Mechanical & Controls, Inc.
Republic Services
Stifel
Verizon
Aetna
Agenda Discovery, LLC
Ameresco
American Airlines
Arizona Food Marketing Alliance
Arizona Metropolitan Trust
Arizona Office of Tourism
AT&T
Central Arizona Project
Comcast
Cox Business (Arizona)
Gammage & Burnham
Gust Rosenfeld, P.L.C.
Harris ERP
Kutak Rock LLP
McKinstry
Molera Alvarez l A Government & Public Affairs Firm
Mountain States Employers Council (MSEC)
Public Trust Advisors, LLC
RBC Capital Markets
Salt River Project
SeeClickFix
Siemens
Southwest Gas Corporation
T-Mobile USA
Tucson Electric Power / UniSource Energy Services
West Safety Services

I N C O M E

Level
Platinum
Platinum
Platinum
Platinum
Platinum
Endorsed
Endorsed
Endorsed
Endorsed
Endorsed
Endorsed
Gold
Gold
Gold
Gold
Gold
Gold
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Bronze
Bronze (Endorsed)
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze

Contribution
$10,000
$10,000
$10,000
$10,000
$10,000
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$8,000
$8,000
$8,000
$8,000
$8,000
$8,000
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$3,000
$2,500
$0
$1,700
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500

Additional

Totals

$2,000

$52,000.00

$48,000.00

$800
$800

$44,600.00

$800

$800
$800

$800

Total Sponsors

$67,400.00
$212,000.00

Registrations
Member (Early) [Includes 10 No-Shows]
Non-Member (Early) [includes 2 No-Shows]
Member [Includes 0 non-refundable registration]
Non-Member [includes 1 No-Show]
Member Cancellation Fees
Member Cancellations [Non-Refundable]
Sponsor (NBO)
Miscellaneous (Single Day)
Miscellaneous (Evenings Only)
Miscellaneous (Single Day)
Special Rate (Thursday Only)
Miscellaneous (NBO)
Miscellaneous (Two-Day)
Miscellaneous ( NBO & General Lunch)
Miscellaneous (NBO; & Dinner)
Miscellaneous (Dinner)
Miscellaneous (Lunch)
Golf (paid only)
Golf (paid only)
Spouse (Name Badge Only)
Additional General Lunch Tickets Purchased
Additional Tour Tickets Purchased
Additional Dinner Tickets Purchased (incl. 1 No Show)
Spouse (Full Program Registration incl. 2 no show)
Showcase Booths (includes 14 Cities with extra booths)
Showcase Booths (with electricity)
Showcase Booth (add extra table)
Pre-Conference Workshop - Conflict to Conversation
Mobile Tour
Youth Program

507
43
26
26
43
7
12
9
1
1
21
9
0
3
0
2
2
37
4
45
6
4
16
78
60
26
16
65
5
179

Fee
$295
$350
$315
$400
$25
$295
$25
$175
$175
$140
$70
$25
$0
$65
$100
$75
$40
$90
$85
$25
$40
$40
$75
$135
$200
$70
$25
$40
$40
$65

EXPENDITURES
BANQUET / HOTEL CHARGES
Hilton El Conquistador
Rooms
AV
Events / Food
Reibursement (HPACT reception)
GOLF
Golf & Food
Golf bags
80 @ .52
Amazon gift cards (prizes - $50 for 1st place foursome; $25 for 2nd place foursome; 3 individual $25 prizes)
SHOWCASE
CSI, etc. (68 booths)
TRANSPORTATION
U-Haul 15' (Phoenix to Oro Valley)
U-Haul 15' (Oro Valley to Phoenix)
Fuel charges
Fuel charges
Staff mileage reimbursements
SPEAKER FEES/EXPENSES, ENTERTAINMENT
Lowell Catlett (Wednesday opening session)
Steve Holgate (Friday closing session)
Amazon gift cards - thank you to speakers
70 @ 25
Twilight Productions (Wednesday dinner entertainment)
Ferrari LLC (HPACT reception band - to be reimbursed)
AWARDS
Award Mart - Service Award, Legislator plaques & Exec Com President gavels
Marco (wood frames) - Legis Friend Award (43); 12-year Service Award (8)

Total
$149,565
$15,050
$8,190
$10,400
$1,075
$2,065
$300
$1,575
$175
$140
$1,470
$225
$0
$195
$0
$150
$80
$3,330
$340
$1,125
$240
$160
$1,200
$10,530
$12,000
$1,820
$400
$2,600
$200
$11,635
Total Registrations

$236,235.00

TOTAL REVENUE

$448,235.00

$8,912.16
$31,032.55
$153,667.76
-$11,460.32

$182,152.15

$4,575.30
$41.60
$375.00

$4,991.90

51 @ 14.60

$5,484.50
$147.80
$168.55
$35.01
$22.00
$473.29

$846.65

$13,500.00
$1,285.00
$1,750.00
$2,000.00
$1,500.00

$20,035.00

$2,396.40
$876.00

MTM Recognition - 8 year Service Award covers (34)
Fusion Frames - Sponsor Awards (Platinum, Gold & Endorsed - 17)
Certificate Folders - Sponsor Awards (Silver & Bronze - 35)
PRINTING / Banners, Posters, Brochures, Flyers, etc.
Gordon Graphics (program - 900)
Marco (900 printed canvas bags)
Black copy charges
Color copy charges
Postage
Marco (ribbons)
Marco (black wallet badge holders)
Marco (clear plastic badge holders)
Alphagraphics (banners and new retractable banner stands)
SPOUSE PROGRAM
Tohono Chul Garden Bistro
Mountain View Tours (bus)
YOUTH PROGRAM
Marco (clear plastic badge holders)
Marco (ribbons)
Candy for prizes
MISCELLANEOUS
Expo Plu$/CCI Program (conference insurance)
Cvent registration fees (2.00 per registrant/per event) - Regular Registration
Cvent registration fees (2.00 per registrant/per event) - Single Day Registration
Cvent registration fees (2.00 per registrant/per event) - Golf
Cvent registration fees (2.00 per registrant/per event) - Tours
Cvent registration fees (2.00 per registrant/per event) - Showcase
Planning Committee Meeting - March 22, 2017 (Duck & Decanter)
Conference Briefing meeting with League President - Aug 18, 2017 (Duck & Decanter)
Mobile App (Attendify)
Miscellaneous - staff meals
Steve Lambesis Photography
Miscellaneous tips & supplies (poster paper, boxes, envelopes, etc.)
Surprise 1st Young Women's Group donation for stuffing canvas bags

34 @ 10.57
17 @ 22.40
35 @ 7.45

1,262 @ .04
4,406 @ .10
517 @ .21
747 @ 1.01
134 @ .35

179 @ .35
179 @ .21

745 @ 2.00
101 @ 2.00
40 @ 2.00
5 @ 2.00
60 @ 2.00

$359.38
$380.80
$260.75

$4,273.33

$1,623.58
$4,826.00
$50.48
$440.60
$247.50
$108.57
$754.47
$46.90
$399.82

$8,497.92

$1,703.95
$786.50

$2,490.45

$62.65
$37.59
$21.10

$121.34

$1,137.79
$1,490.00
$202.00
$80.00
$10.00
$120.00
$163.44
$62.97
$599.00
$305.38
$850.00
$552.33
$1,000.00

TOTAL EXPENSES
Excess Revenue Over Expenditures

$6,572.91

$235,466.15
$212,768.85

2017 League Annual Conference Survey

Q1 Opening General Session
Answered: 96

Skipped: 6

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

AVERAGE

0.00%
0

Average
GOOD

4.49%
4

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

15.73%
14

Excellent

EXCELLENT

26.97%
24

TOTAL

52.81%
47

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

89

4.28

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Fantastic speaker!

9/6/2017 2:48 PM

2

OUTSTANDING speaker. Glad I attended.

9/5/2017 4:53 PM

3

Speaker was very entertaining, knowledgeable and engaging. There were times when his voice
was too low or he was too far from the microphone.

9/5/2017 2:33 PM

4

Parade of Flags was stunning and Lowell was dynamic and thought-provoking.

8/31/2017 11:05 AM

5

Great Speaker!! Best time to be alive!

8/30/2017 3:17 PM

6

Understand sponsors are important, but too many, especially with plaque recognition

8/30/2017 11:53 AM

7

Entertaining and informative

8/30/2017 10:46 AM

8

The keynote was the conference highlight, he knocked it out of the park.

8/29/2017 9:44 PM

9

The Parade of Flags and the Keynote Speaker - Lowell Catlett, Ph.D were excellent

8/29/2017 5:23 PM

10

Guest Speaker was very good.

8/29/2017 4:16 PM

11

Excellent speaker

8/29/2017 3:38 PM

12

Lots of time on the flags.

8/29/2017 2:40 PM

13

A bit odd and more theoretical than I would have hoped.

8/29/2017 2:36 PM

14

Could listen to Lowell Catlett for hours on end.

8/29/2017 1:18 PM

15

I loved the main speaker. He was engaging and funny.

8/29/2017 1:18 PM

16

The session was entertaining, but I do not feel like there were concrete take-aways from the
content. I would prefer to hear about the state of the economy from an entertaining speaker.

8/29/2017 12:51 PM

17

Love the parade of flags!!

8/29/2017 11:37 AM

1 / 39

2017 League Annual Conference Survey

Q2 Water and Wastewater: Needs, Trends and Investment
Answered: 77

Skipped: 25

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

0.00%
0

AVERAGE
14.81%
4

Average
GOOD
29.63%
8

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

40.74%
11

14.81%
4

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

27

3.56

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:17 PM

2

Did not address the issue of increased population and the affect on the current water shortage.

8/29/2017 4:02 PM

2 / 39

2017 League Annual Conference Survey

Q3 Forming Partnerships for Rural Economic Development
Answered: 82

Skipped: 20

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

3.45%
1

AVERAGE
20.69%
6

Average
GOOD
31.03%
9

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

34.48%
10

10.34%
3

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

29

3.28

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

The speakers were not from rural cities. Yuma, Phoenix, Tucson, really? Get some small towns up
there. Also they mainly spoke about college campuses, that isnt a realistic option for most small
towns.

8/30/2017 3:17 PM

2

Speakers talked about the partnerships they had formed but there was not enough information as
to how to form them.

8/30/2017 10:46 AM

3 / 39

2017 League Annual Conference Survey

Q4 Inspiring Intentional Inclusion: The Women Leading Government
Movement is Underway. What Elected Officials Need to Know, Why They
Should Care, and How They Can Take Action
Answered: 78

Skipped: 24

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

7.14%
1

AVERAGE
7.14%
1

Average
GOOD
35.71%
5

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

14.29%
2

TOTAL

35.71%
5

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

14

3.64

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

more discussion of policies/programs local governemnts are implementing to assist in these efforts

9/7/2017 9:35 AM

2

Useless and discriminatory against white males. never do this one again.

8/31/2017 10:54 AM

3

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:17 PM

4

It's really a shame this wasn't better attended by a more diverse audience. This should be a
mandatory session for all attendees, otherwise people remain uneducated and attitudes will
remain the same.

8/29/2017 12:51 PM

4 / 39

2017 League Annual Conference Survey

Q5 Public Records, Public Meetings and Communications in the Social
Media Age: What You Need to Know as an Elected Official
Answered: 77

Skipped: 25

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

8.70%
2

AVERAGE
13.04%
3

Average
GOOD
17.39%
4

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

47.83%
11

TOTAL

13.04%
3

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

23

3.43

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Not enough seating, walked in and had to walk out. It was the only seminar where they used round
tables instead of stadium seating.

9/1/2017 9:01 AM

2

Bad speakers, shitty presentation.

8/31/2017 10:54 AM

3

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:17 PM

4

Unfortunate that the speaker canceled at last minute.

8/29/2017 8:00 PM

5

There was good information provided

8/29/2017 5:23 PM

6

Learned a lot and the speaker there tried to cover for the one who didn't show up.

8/29/2017 3:38 PM

7

As one of the presentor was not present and information was presented by the a differnet
presentor some confussion arose durring the session

8/29/2017 11:06 AM

5 / 39

2017 League Annual Conference Survey

Q6 Autonomous Vehicles: The Changing Economic Landscape and How
Arizona Cities Can be at the Fore of New Economic Trends
Answered: 75

Skipped: 27

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

4.76%
1

AVERAGE
0.00%
0

Average
GOOD
28.57%
6

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

33.33%
7

TOTAL

33.33%
7

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

21

3.90

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Would like more straight talk from Gov's office. Seemed a bit watered down.

9/5/2017 4:53 PM

2

Useless librol speakers. Horrible subject. A librol's wet dream.

8/31/2017 10:54 AM

3

Great session, solid presenters. Very informative, and questions were answered well.

8/29/2017 2:36 PM

6 / 39

2017 League Annual Conference Survey

Q7 City and Town Youth Councils: The Steps Needed to Create and
Maintain a Successful Youth Program in Your Municipality
Answered: 72

Skipped: 30

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

0.00%
0

AVERAGE
11.11%
2

Average
GOOD
5.56%
1

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

27.78%
5

55.56%
10

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

18

4.28

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:17 PM

2

Great information and pannel provided alot of great insight

8/29/2017 11:06 AM

7 / 39

2017 League Annual Conference Survey

Q8 Update on Important Legislative Issues from Past Sessions: Where
Are They Now and How Are They Currently Impacting Your City and
Town
Answered: 70

Skipped: 32

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

4.00%
1

AVERAGE
4.00%
1

Average
GOOD
12.00%
3

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

48.00%
12

32.00%
8

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

25

4.00

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Already done throughout the year. Too much justifying on how the league screwed up on the small
cell site bill.

8/31/2017 10:54 AM

2

OUTSTANDING! Though, would love for the pension presentation portion to be made available
too.

8/29/2017 8:00 PM

3

Sober living was good

8/29/2017 1:34 PM

4

It was really hard to hear in the room.

8/29/2017 11:10 AM

8 / 39

2017 League Annual Conference Survey

Q9 The Basics of Analyzing Your City/Town Budget: What Elected
Officials Need to Know and Knowing the Right Questions to Ask Your
Staff
Answered: 71

Skipped: 31

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

AVERAGE

0.00%
0

5.00%
1

Average
GOOD
50.00%
10

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

20.00%
4

25.00%
5

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

20

3.65

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Informative and helpful

8/30/2017 10:46 AM

2

Very good class

8/29/2017 5:23 PM

3

Need to provide trick of the trade to identify dramatic increases or decreases for any line item of
the budget. This subject should be a constant presentation subject.

8/29/2017 4:02 PM

4

Very informative.

8/29/2017 2:36 PM

9 / 39

2017 League Annual Conference Survey

Q10 Increasing Jobs and Growth: Driving Economic Development
through Travel and Tourism
Answered: 75

Skipped: 27

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

3.85%
1

AVERAGE
19.23%
5

Average
GOOD
23.08%
6

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

23.08%
6

30.77%
8

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

26

3.58

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

No direction for towns that have less than 50,000 people.

8/31/2017 10:54 AM

2

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:17 PM

10 / 39

2017 League Annual Conference Survey

Q11 Sustainable Cities and Towns: Reducing Costs, Attracting Business,
and Improving Quality of Life
Answered: 68

Skipped: 34

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

5.88%
1

AVERAGE
0.00%
0

Average
GOOD
47.06%
8

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

29.41%
5

17.65%
3

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

17

3.53

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

No trealistic for small cities---only Fenix and Tooscum

8/31/2017 10:54 AM

2

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:17 PM

11 / 39

2017 League Annual Conference Survey

Q12 Update from Our Endorsed Partners: Programs That Can Save Your
City or Town Money
Answered: 63

Skipped: 39

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

AVERAGE

12.50%
1

0.00%
0

Average
GOOD
37.50%
3

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

37.50%
3

12.50%
1

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE
8

3.38

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Bad speakers.

8/31/2017 10:57 AM

2

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:18 PM

3

I was able to make follow up[ contact with each partner. Our community will benefit from these
contacts.

8/30/2017 10:49 AM

12 / 39

2017 League Annual Conference Survey

Q13 City of Maricopa: 100% Paperless Process and How Your City Can
Implement this System
Answered: 68

Skipped: 34
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1
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Average
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VERY GOOD

33.33%
6

Excellent

EXCELLENT

16.67%
3

33.33%
6

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

18

3.61

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Librols' wet dream. Not applicable to most entities.

8/31/2017 10:57 AM

2

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:18 PM

3

This was an interesting class

8/29/2017 5:24 PM
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Q14 How Cities Must Take Control of Their Economic Futures
Answered: 73

Skipped: 29
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11

25.71%
9

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

35

3.69

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

I found this session to be inspiring and it was presented in a way that even the smallest towns
could benefit from the conversation.

9/4/2017 9:26 PM

2

Not realistic---especially on PSRS.

8/31/2017 10:57 AM

3

Where's the beef.

8/29/2017 4:07 PM

4

Great information shared. Interesting session and good question responses.

8/29/2017 2:42 PM
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Q15 League 2017 Legislative Report and Look Ahead to 2018 Legislative
Session
Answered: 67

Skipped: 35
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35.00%
7

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

20

3.85

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Already discussed. Too much League arrogance. It really screwed up on the small cell legislation.

8/31/2017 10:57 AM

2

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:18 PM

3

Seemed to be a repeat of the prior day's legislative session

8/29/2017 4:33 PM
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Q16 Building and Maintaining Effective Mayor, Council and Manager
Relationships
Answered: 70

Skipped: 32
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10

TOTAL

35.71%
10

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

28

3.93

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

It was hijacked by crazy questions by crazy Council members

8/31/2017 9:56 PM

2

Bad speakers.

8/31/2017 10:57 AM

3

Great job Mayor Evans

8/30/2017 3:18 PM

4

Nice refresher

8/30/2017 10:49 AM

5

Did not address how to handle an elected official how believes he is smarter than the entire city
staff and other councilors.

8/29/2017 4:07 PM

6

Great panel of speakers. Best one I have ever been tou

8/29/2017 1:25 PM

7

I loved your panel of speakers. This has been the best one I have been to on this topic.

8/29/2017 1:20 PM

8

Great information and pannel was very informative

8/29/2017 11:06 AM
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Q17 Reading the Tea Leaves: Pundits Discuss the Current Political
Climate and Next Year's Legislative Session
Answered: 66

Skipped: 36
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TOTAL

47.37%
9

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

19

4.00

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Useless speculative topic that should not be done again

8/31/2017 10:57 AM

2

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:18 PM

3

Focused too much on federal level and speakers were biased, making plugs for their clients

8/29/2017 11:33 AM
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Q18 Smart Cities: What They Are and How Your Community Can be a
Smart City/Town
Answered: 69

Skipped: 33
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7

40.91%
9

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

22

4.05

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Dumb item

8/31/2017 10:57 AM

2

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:18 PM

3

Excellent session. Panel was on-point and their knowledge regarding the subject was evident.

8/29/2017 2:42 PM
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Q19 Who Does the City/Town Attorney Represent and How Can I
Effectively Utilize my City/Town Attorney?
Answered: 66

Skipped: 36

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

0.00%
0

AVERAGE
6.25%
1

Average
GOOD
12.50%
2

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

50.00%
8
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5

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

16

4.06

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

The panel was too heavily private atty and pool oriented.

8/31/2017 10:57 AM

2

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:18 PM
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Q20 Preparing the Workforce for the Future: Are we Ready?
Answered: 69

Skipped: 33

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

0.00%
0

AVERAGE
15.00%
3

Average
GOOD

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

30.00%
6

Excellent

EXCELLENT
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5

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

20

3.65

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Would have liked more details on implementation.

9/13/2017 7:21 PM

2

Nothing really ground breaking, woudl like to see more substance in what is being done in State
Ed and USDs.

9/5/2017 4:55 PM

3

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:18 PM

4

Thank you for including JTEDs into conversation!

8/29/2017 8:01 PM
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Q21 What Challenges Small Communities Face in Arizona
Answered: 69

Skipped: 33
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TOTAL

21.43%
6

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

28

3.71

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Far more personal stories than I felt were needed. Did not need to know in-depth analyses
regarding each presenter, but would have benefited from a solutions-based session.

8/29/2017 2:42 PM

2

Great topic

8/29/2017 1:25 PM

3

great panel of speakers

8/29/2017 1:20 PM
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Q22 Cybersecurity – What You Need to Know to Protect Your City or
Town
Answered: 69

Skipped: 33
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TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

16

3.31

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Was hoping for more specific technical information on how to prevent.

9/13/2017 7:21 PM

2

Speaker had good information.

9/5/2017 4:55 PM

3

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:18 PM

4

Panel was incredible. Presentation was informative to both those who are tech gurus and those
who are not technology-fluent. The presenter knew her information and did a fantastic job.

8/29/2017 2:42 PM

5

The person speaking talked as though the crowd were in the 5th grade. As a retired IT guy, many
of her answers to questions were incomplete. The session was geared to the personal use and not
a network that most cities and Town's have.

8/26/2017 7:12 AM
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Q23 Get Out of Your Element and Get Into the Elements
Answered: 66

Skipped: 36
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TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE
8

3.50

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:18 PM

2

Boring.

8/29/2017 2:42 PM
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Q24 Speed Networking Breakfast for Municipal Officials
Answered: 72

Skipped: 30
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TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

22

3.82

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Third time, and always very informative.

9/5/2017 4:55 PM

2

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:18 PM

3

Not much fun anymore.

8/30/2017 1:09 PM

4

Generated new ideas for next years conference.

8/29/2017 4:10 PM

5

Listening to various ideas.

8/29/2017 2:43 PM

6

The conference should Always start with this. Don't put it on the last day. Thank you.

8/25/2017 11:33 AM
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Q25 Closing General Session: A Town Hall with Abraham Lincoln
Answered: 75

Skipped: 27
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TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

34

4.09

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

OUTSTANDING close. Awsome speaker.

9/5/2017 4:55 PM

2

However, should have been on Wed or TH not the last day

8/31/2017 10:58 AM

3

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:18 PM

4

Very moving and inspirational

8/30/2017 11:55 AM

5

I enjoyed the presentation. Nice job to whom ever thought of this closing.

8/30/2017 10:51 AM

6

I believe that actors portraying famous leaders was an excellent idea.

8/29/2017 4:10 PM

7

How unique?!!!

8/26/2017 7:13 AM

8

I was surprised how good he was.

8/25/2017 11:33 AM
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Q26 Tuesday Education Pre-Conference Session: Arizona's Education
Progress Meter and Statewide Attainment Goal
Answered: 68

Skipped: 34
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3

TOTAL
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8

4.38

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS HERE.

DATE

1

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:18 PM

2

Great Google speaker. Started 35 minutes late.

8/29/2017 2:45 PM
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Q27 Tuesday Pre-Conference Session: From Conflict to Conversation:
Practical Skills for Better Public Dialogue
Answered: 67

Skipped: 35
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4

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE
8

3.50

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS HERE.

DATE

1

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:18 PM

2

Great presentor and information

8/29/2017 11:07 AM
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Q28 Golf at Conquistador Course
Answered: 67

Skipped: 35
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TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE
6

4.33

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS HERE.

DATE

1

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:18 PM

2

Well put togethert. I did think that the tee selection should have been moved up one tee box. The
length of play with the elevated greens favored any team with long hitters.Food was excellent for
the event. .thank you

8/30/2017 10:54 AM
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Q29 Spouse/Guest Tour: Experience Arts & Culture in Oro Valley
Answered: 69

Skipped: 33
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5

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE
8

4.38

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS HERE.

DATE

1

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:18 PM

2

My spouse enjoyed the tour.

8/30/2017 10:54 AM
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Q30 Showcase of Cities and Towns Event
Answered: 85

Skipped: 17
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TOTAL

57.33%
43

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

75

4.47

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS HERE.

DATE

1

Should be same day as youth day- it is something good for them to attend too!

9/5/2017 9:44 PM

2

Always fun. Great networking and selling opportuinuty for all cities

9/5/2017 4:56 PM

3

Need more space for booths and more they would not let us have a margarita machine and know I
have 19 bottles of margarita mix I need to get rid of

8/31/2017 9:58 PM

4

The stuff given out was shit and to do a contest to win something is getting way too old and
irritating. Also, the mariachees were too loud and obnoxious.

8/31/2017 10:59 AM

5

Awesome!~

8/30/2017 3:18 PM

6

Nice to see all the cities getting involved. Very enjoyable.

8/30/2017 10:54 AM

7

Needs to start at 5 instead of 6:00 PM

8/30/2017 9:44 AM

8

So fun! And wonderful families can attend!

8/29/2017 8:02 PM

9

Always fun.

8/29/2017 4:10 PM

10

It was a really tight fit and very hot in the room. The showcase itself was great, love what the cities
and towns put together.

8/29/2017 11:39 AM

11

Maybe have the event say that it starts at 5:00 because people were walking around early with not
all booths set up.

8/29/2017 11:31 AM

12

It seemed that the event started before the printed start time so when we got there a lot of the stuff
was already taken

8/29/2017 11:11 AM

13

event was great, there could have been more space though.

8/29/2017 11:07 AM

14

Seemed disconnected socially with tables outside room

8/29/2017 10:58 AM

15

It's always fun

8/26/2017 7:13 AM
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Q31 Tuesday Welcome Reception
Answered: 83

Skipped: 19
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TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

62

3.89

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS HERE.

DATE

1

The food was much better than last year!

9/5/2017 3:25 PM

2

The lobby acoustics were so loud! But still very good!

8/29/2017 8:08 PM

3

Too crowded

8/29/2017 4:27 PM

4

Reduced food selection from last year. This reception is always in conflict with the APS dinner.
Too much food at this reception directly affects how much you can eat at the APS dinner.

8/29/2017 4:12 PM

5

The lobby area was too crowded

8/26/2017 7:14 AM
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Q32 Tuesday APS Dinner and Entertainment
Answered: 84

Skipped: 18
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TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

59

4.14

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS HERE.

DATE

1

weird having fish hidden in the mash potatos

8/31/2017 9:59 PM

2

didnt attend

8/30/2017 3:19 PM

3

Very enjoyable. Great way to kick off the conference.

8/30/2017 10:56 AM

4

Lots of excitement to get together! Easy conversation!

8/29/2017 8:08 PM
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Q33 Wednesday Dinner (President's Update and Entertainment)
Answered: 86

Skipped: 16
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TOTAL

39.71%
27

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

68

4.04

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS HERE.

DATE

1

Good band.

9/5/2017 4:57 PM

2

Food, ok. Seating, really shitty. Too many reserved spots. Also, should let people in so the mad
dash to the tables is avoided. Very irritating wait. Band was not needed.

8/31/2017 11:01 AM

3

Very nice job.

8/30/2017 10:56 AM

4

Try a comedian

8/29/2017 9:43 PM

5

What an event! Outstanding! Great speeches, food and entertainment! Such a special night!

8/29/2017 8:08 PM

6

Disappointed that the awards program was moved and that it wasn't a dress up affair as in the
past!

8/29/2017 1:44 PM

7

Was'nt able to attend.

8/29/2017 11:08 AM
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Q34 Thursday Lunch (Service Awards and Legislative Recognition)
Answered: 89

Skipped: 13
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TOTAL

36.71%
29

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

79

3.87

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS HERE.

DATE

1

Venue was crowded.

9/13/2017 7:22 PM

2

Same seating problems. Not enough, too many reserved tables, food was average, no water just
ice tea which I hate, speakers irritating.

8/31/2017 11:01 AM

3

Congratulations to all.

8/30/2017 10:56 AM

4

you need to check your criteria and how you determine how representatives and senators are
good for the cities. Kelly Townsend should have never gotten an award

8/29/2017 9:43 PM

5

Format is still somewhat dry and overly long.

8/29/2017 5:49 PM

6

Room was too small for the amount of people/tables. Tables were too close together and nobody
could move.

8/29/2017 4:35 PM

7

Delicious lunch.

8/29/2017 2:43 PM

8

Preferred awards for service at the dinner. Has always been a dress up affair I was disappointed
that this changed. My wife was disappointed also as she came all the way enjoy a special
presentation and it didn't happen!!

8/29/2017 1:44 PM

9

This event goes on way too long. Why not mention the nominees' names and only have the top 1
or 2 go on stage to speak. Also, for the service awards, why not move it along by having a group
come up while another is getting pictures taken? Most of the time was spent watching people take
pictures, with dead time on stage.

8/29/2017 12:50 PM

10

Making everyone wait outside until exactly noon made people very restless and it was
uncomfortably hot in the foyer

8/29/2017 11:12 AM
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Q35 Please rate your overall satisfaction with resort accommodations
Answered: 89

Skipped: 13
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TOTAL
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3.31

#

OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY)

DATE

1

Rooms were dirty, old, etc.

9/6/2017 3:01 PM

2

Nice place.

9/5/2017 4:58 PM

3

We were unable to stay onsite but our accommodations at the Fairfield were nice.

9/4/2017 9:29 PM

4

The Lookout location was alittle run down. Being bussed back and forth was inconvenient and
counterproductive.

9/4/2017 5:36 PM

5

Impossible to get accomodations, parking horrible.

9/1/2017 5:51 PM

6

Parking was awful, had to walk quite a distance. Had to walk uphill in heat from room to main hotel,
employees would zip by in golf cart and not offer a ride. Food was less than average for a
convention. Continental breakfast was nothing more than coffee and a small blueberry square.

9/1/2017 9:11 AM

7

We could not get rooms in the Conference hotel!!!! My Council felt so slighted and staff was being
blamed

8/31/2017 10:05 PM

8

Could not get a fucking room at the event, had to go to WL which is old and too far. The buses
sucked, too long a wait. Too expensive for room.

8/31/2017 11:05 AM

9

The resort was too small for a group this size. Also, the cell service and wi-fi availability was poor.

8/31/2017 10:34 AM

10

The parking at this resort is terrible. There is no room to load/unload and no place to park once
you do. The room I was inwas in building #3. It did not have any comfortable chairs and the bed
was very uncomfortable. My wife had to use a wash cloth to keep the bath water in the tib as the
pluming was not right a the stopper would not work. The hallway always smelled bad. The room
was the worst park of our staff. Two weeks ago I stayed in a hotle in South Corolina not a resort
hotel and that room was much better that the Tucson resort room. The employees were friendly.

8/31/2017 10:22 AM

11

Beautiful resort, but not that impressed with resort accomdations. Too far spread out, especially for
older Councilmembers

8/30/2017 3:19 PM

12

Had issues getting into room upon arrival. Day 2 and 3 had issues with coffee pot. Room was
never cool enough even though I turned air down to 68.

8/30/2017 2:40 PM

13

We should avoid venues that cannot accommodate all of the participants. Being at a different hotel
limits the quality of the experience.

8/30/2017 1:12 PM
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14

Nice room, nice pool, nice facilities and the staff was very accommodating.

8/30/2017 10:58 AM

15

At Westward Look

8/30/2017 10:50 AM

16

Not at the host hotel

8/29/2017 9:52 PM

17

Great food! Attentive staff.

8/29/2017 8:10 PM

18

Very nice facility but seems that this conference has outgrown this resort.

8/29/2017 4:29 PM

19

Climbing a steep hill can be very tiring for us mature individuals. All other features were excellent.

8/29/2017 4:26 PM

20

had to stay 5 miles away from conference is a poor motel

8/29/2017 4:21 PM

21

The food was not good, including eating at the restaurants. Multiple cockroaches in my room and
staff often did not replenish things such as coffee or towels. I believe the resort was overwhelmed
by the size of our group.

8/29/2017 3:37 PM

22

Beautiful setting, clean, great service. Perfect place.

8/29/2017 2:46 PM

23

Too small and showing its age

8/29/2017 1:37 PM

24

Couldn't stay at the conference hotel again.

8/29/2017 1:02 PM

25

Fairfield Marriot was very nice - Good People

8/29/2017 11:51 AM

26

Was not able to stay on site due to being booked at the time registration was opened. Host hotel
room had dead bugs everywhere and they never came to clean it. The shuttle was not an option
due to the amount of time it took to get back and fourth.

8/29/2017 11:41 AM

27

It was very hot in the room with the showcase of the cities.

8/29/2017 11:32 AM

28

The resort itself is in need of some updates/general clean-ups. My room had some weird musty
smell so I bought a room freshener.

8/29/2017 11:26 AM

29

Food just average, rooms had many bugs

8/29/2017 11:18 AM

30

I was very disappointed in the availability of accomodations. We tried to book rooms on the
morning that registration opened and were told that the bloc was sold out. It may not make sense
to got back to that location again. Especially because the alternative hotels are not easy to get to

8/29/2017 11:13 AM

31

Service was terrible. Waited for over an hour for a shuttle that was promised. Was seated outside
at lunch with my party of 5, despite having a reservation and was they ignored by servers for 18
minutes.

8/29/2017 11:10 AM

32

AC issues-room not clean(trash left from previous guest) and had musty smell

8/29/2017 11:02 AM

33

Room was dirty and looks like its aged

8/29/2017 11:01 AM

34

Food was not good-Very basic and bland.

8/29/2017 10:59 AM

35

I was in the overflow and that facility is old and not will cared for.

8/26/2017 7:15 AM

36

Our town stayed at West look.

8/25/2017 11:34 AM
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Q36 Please let us know what worked well and what we can do to improve
the League Annual Conference for next year
Answered: 44

Skipped: 58

#

RESPONSES

DATE

1

All communities should be guaranteed at least 2-3 rooms. Room distribution system should be
updated

9/19/2017 5:34 PM

2

Be sure to have students there at the same time as the showcase event. Also recommend that
student leaders do a workshop FOR adult participants.

9/5/2017 9:46 PM

3

Ran smooth. Staff did great job keeping thing rolling. No complaints at all. From my perspective,
flawless.

9/5/2017 4:58 PM

4

The complexity of putting on an event with this many break-out sessions, speakers, meals and
special requests is enormous. I experienced nothing but professional sessions, on-time events and
happy attendees. Thank you for all your efforts.

9/5/2017 2:40 PM

5

The luncheon for the Youth was a little unorganized. We ended up not being able to eat with our
students.

9/4/2017 9:29 PM

6

House all participants in the same hotel.

9/4/2017 5:36 PM

7

More spacious rooms with more seating space to write on

9/4/2017 9:55 AM

8

Some of the sessions were housed in rooms too small for number of participants

9/3/2017 8:42 PM

9

Venue is important -same format each year is becoming stale

9/1/2017 5:51 PM

10

Other conferences I have attended had each seminar given twice so you didn't miss two important
issues that were given at the same time. We found the conference informative but the
accommodations and food to be less than expected.

9/1/2017 9:11 AM

11

Cannot improve on what is already excellent

9/1/2017 1:15 AM

12

YOU NEED TO OFFER MORE ROOMS!!!!! It creates the haves and the have nots... We called
within Hours of the email coming out and no rooms.... everyone knows that Exc Committee
members get first dibs and they all reserve ten rooms in advance and then check with there
council to see who is attending! its Antifa of the Conference Hotel rooms !!! One ofvthese days you
going to have a Councilmember get a DUI because of the room situation and then where will we all
be :-)

8/31/2017 10:05 PM

13

Do not have it in the Too-Sun area. Roads are shitty, too many people, shitty drivers, the politiks
suk---everyone voted for Hilari and Oblahblah. Fenix area has much better accomodations. Do
something different next year: Have it at the El Tovar overlooking the Grand Canyon!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

8/31/2017 11:05 AM

14

I believe leadership programs for elected officials so they are better prepared to represent their
communities. These could include public speaking, how to lead a conversation, how to use your
influence in a positive way to drive better communities, etc.

8/31/2017 10:34 AM

15

Take a lesson from star pass and do something about your parking. Make sure the location you
hold next years conference has plenty of room and parking. I think is is a shame when a number of
the people have to stay somewhere else .Actually the sessions were much better this year that the
prior ten or so years I have attended. The food, except for one lunch, was better than usual.

8/31/2017 10:22 AM

16

I heard from several that the next place needs to be bigger to accommodate everyone. To many
offsite.

8/30/2017 2:40 PM

17

I believe you did a great job. Thank you

8/30/2017 10:58 AM

18

It was one of the best conferences in terms of session topics. Lots of networking time.

8/30/2017 9:54 AM

19

Everything went well. Resort and meeting rooms were crowded. Need a larger place to meet.

8/30/2017 9:46 AM
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20

Quite honestly, not sure Ill be back. This is my 3 time to the conference in my 12 years of service. I
was very disappointed in the sessions and find there is way to much time free. Compared to other
similar conferences we need to pick up the pace. The schedule could easily be tightened up and
frankly the conference is long overdue for a re-vamp. I certainly don't want to just complain but I
was surprised it is the same on each of my visits. My time value was not high and I was
disappointed overall. It is seriously time to start looking at this effort with new planning and really
asking if it is an effective and meaningful conference.

8/29/2017 9:51 PM

21

MY first conference and I was SO IMPRESSED! Constantly! SO WELL DONE!! Was an absolute
joy to attend! So informative and such great opportunities to make connections. Any way that I can
help you in the future, I'd love to! You knocked it out of the park!

8/29/2017 8:10 PM

22

Having enough rooms at the host hotel and/or having the shuttle bus go to more than one overflow
hotel

8/29/2017 5:27 PM

23

The handling of the room reservations was very poorly done. I attempted to get a room reservation
prior to the block of rooms being opened up and was declined. Within 2 hours of the rooms
opening up I called the host hotel again and was told the rooms were all sold out. Something here
stinks. I spoke to many others who had similar experiences only to find out the highest elected
officials (Mayors for example) were allowed rooms while other Council Members and staff were
not. I was clear that there was a selection hierarchy occurring which turned many people off. This
reflects poorly on the League.

8/29/2017 4:39 PM

24

Too many goods sessions that were in conflict with one another. Maybe we should have fewer
session, but repeat the popular sessions, during the conference. The Wednesday dinner and
Thursday luncheon was not worth $40 dollars for my wife to attend, therefore neither one of us
attend. Several of my fellow councilors from my city and other cities followed my action. Reduce
the price and maybe we'll attend.

8/29/2017 4:26 PM

25

If you cannot accommodate all guests at one location, find a location that can!

8/29/2017 4:21 PM

26

Good job done by all.

8/29/2017 3:42 PM

27

As always, staff did an outstanding job. It is unfortunate that the resort is unable to handle this size
of group. Several hotel staff mentioned that they had to bring in additional people from other
hotels. The hotel needs to be refurbished and sprayed for insects.

8/29/2017 3:37 PM

28

Set up a focus group immediately after the conference for following year suggestions.

8/29/2017 2:47 PM

29

More informative opening speaker. Continue focus on cyber security, smart cities, autonomous
vehicles and other concrete technical changes cities are in the process of experiencing. Provide a
conference app like that of the Alliance for Innovation conferences - helps to make people feel
invested in the conference, and allows for direct communication between individuals following the
conference. Allows for easy networking.

8/29/2017 2:46 PM

30

Excellent work by all staff!

8/29/2017 2:13 PM

31

Stick to the old format it made those who were getting service awards extra special. A formal
dinner I the evening was always something to look forward to.

8/29/2017 1:46 PM

32

Registration

8/29/2017 1:37 PM

33

To far to drive between overflow hotels and main hotel. Whenever it is in Tucson this is always a
problem.

8/29/2017 1:26 PM

34

Shorten the Awards Luncheon

8/29/2017 12:50 PM

35

I found the event to be very enjoyable and well worth the time and effort to attend. Perhaps there
could have been more shuttle service from the parking lots. Otherwise an excellent event.

8/29/2017 11:51 AM

36

The only negative I saw at the conference was the breakfast on Wednesday and Thursday. They
were pretty slim.

8/29/2017 11:51 AM

37

There was not a question on here for the youth track, but my youth enjoyed it very much and I
would rank it as excellent. This location is probably not a good choice for future years just due to
the size of the facility and the amount of people that attend the conference.

8/29/2017 11:41 AM

38

Do away with the one big bus and run several small shuttles between venues.

8/29/2017 11:32 AM

39

Please provide water to drink in addition to the coffee/tea

8/29/2017 11:29 AM
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40

I attended the Wednesday sessions with our Youth Commission and this survey did not ask for
feedback on our sessions. Some of the speakers were great while others not so much.
Accommodations were very nice and spacey for such a large amount of people. The lunch was
very poor and all of the youth were disappointed at the options. I wish the displays that the youth
had for their groups was set up in a different location as the hallway was overcrowded and it was
very difficult to hear eachother due to the noise.

8/29/2017 11:14 AM

41

League staff did a wonderful job and the content was great. Please do not ever return to the El
Conquistador. Facilities lack working equipment (broken faucets in bathrooms, no soap, etc.) and
service was incredibly bad. They were understaffed and didn't accommodate reservations. Also,
they limited their lunch menu on property to 4 items while providing horrific service. The Marriott
Starr Pass is a much better option when in Southern Arizona. Rooms are much nicer, food options
abound and the service is fantastic.

8/29/2017 11:10 AM

42

My only suggestion is to make sure all presentors are there the day of the event

8/29/2017 11:08 AM

43

as always, well done.

8/29/2017 10:59 AM

44

Allow more room for the welcome reception.

8/26/2017 7:15 AM
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 3, 2017

Agenda Item #5

League Annual Survey Results

Summary:

The annual survey of League services was e-mailed to mayors, council
members, managers, clerks, attorneys, finance directors, public
information officers and intergovernmental coordinators. Results are
summarized in the following pages.

Responsible Person:

Matt Lore, Communication & Education Director

Attachment:

2017 League Annual Survey Results

2017 League of Arizona Cities and Towns Member Survey

Q1 I am a city or town:
Answered: 106

Skipped: 0

Elected
Official

38
38

City/Town
Clerk, Deput...

21
21

City/Town
Manager or...

17
17

Other, please
specify

10
10

City/Town
Attorney,...

8
8

City/Town
Finance Officer

6
6

Intergorvenment
Dept.

5
5

PIO/Communicati
ons

1
0

1

10

20

30

40

50

#

OTHER, PLEASE SPECIFY

DATE

1

Assistant to the City Manager

10/10/2017 12:47 PM

2

I am both a Town Clerk and Administrator

10/6/2017 8:46 AM

3

Interim City Clerk

10/4/2017 9:14 AM

4

DCM

10/3/2017 4:00 PM

5

Management Analyst

10/3/2017 3:33 PM

6

Auditor

10/3/2017 3:20 PM

7

City Finance Staff

10/3/2017 2:38 PM

8

City Clerk Management Assistant

10/3/2017 2:10 PM

9

Prefer not to say, but am a city employee

10/3/2017 1:56 PM

10

Budget Analyst

10/3/2017 1:54 PM
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Q2 How many years have you served in your city or town office?
Answered: 106

Skipped: 0

48

0 - 5 years

48
21

6 - 10 years

21
21

11 - 15 years

21
4

16 - 20 years

4
12

Over 20 years

12
0

10

20
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Q3 What population category does your city or town fall into?
Answered: 106

Skipped: 0

14

0 - 4,999

14

17

5,000 - 9,999

17
10,000 100,000

54
54

21

Over 100,000

21
0

10

20

30

40
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100
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Q4 Please rank the services that the League provides that are most
valuable to your municipality (1 being the most valuable service to your
city/town, 2 being the next most valuable service, etc.)
Answered: 104

Skipped: 2

Legislative
Advocacy

11.08
11.08

League Staff
Assistance

9.36
9.36

Trainings and
Seminars

8.57
8.57
8.22

Elections
Training and...

8.22

Newly Elected
Officials...

7.86
7.86
7.67

Legal Resource
Service

7.67

Annual
Conference

7.54
7.54
7.17

Budget and
Finance...

7.17

Model City Tax
Code Assistance

6.74
6.74
6.63

Affiliate
Group Staffi...

6.63
6.35

Website

6.35
6.15

General and
Technical...

6.15

E-Connection
Newsletter

4.57
0

2

4

4.57

6

8

10
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Q5 Are there other services not listed above that are valuable to your city
or town?
Answered: 26

Skipped: 80

#

RESPONSES

DATE

1

visits to our city

10/12/2017 3:54 PM

2

Regular visits and updates by League staff.

10/10/2017 9:57 AM

3

Programs involving youth commissions/councils

10/6/2017 4:51 PM

4

Getting information out to all the towns at the same time.

10/6/2017 8:46 AM

5

Not possible to rank - all so valuable!

10/5/2017 1:59 PM

6

no.

10/5/2017 10:54 AM

7

Code revision

10/4/2017 9:07 PM

8

No

10/4/2017 7:02 PM

9

It was hard to value the League's services as they are all really important.

10/4/2017 5:51 PM

10

Being able to call and get answers quickly is fantastic

10/4/2017 1:27 PM

11

It is tough to rank them because the first 6 services ranked are all equally important and
appreciated.

10/4/2017 12:38 PM

12

May be beneficial for new intergovs to receive some informal training or insight on best practices
in establishing working relationships with their legislators and staff.

10/4/2017 9:11 AM

13

Addressing pension costs involving public safety. Addressing importance for security of
Communites who have invested in license plate readers to protect communities

10/3/2017 10:05 PM

14

None

10/3/2017 6:55 PM

15

NA

10/3/2017 5:26 PM

16

Regional Apache & Navajo Counties Mayors & Councilmembers Association

10/3/2017 4:12 PM

17

None

10/3/2017 4:00 PM

18

Provide coordination efforts on working groups related to issues pertinent to all cities and towns
such as pensions, intergovernmental agreements, etc. Also serves as the coming together point
for cities and towns to work together to get the ear of legislators and to provide feedback on major
peices of legislation.

10/3/2017 3:55 PM

19

bringing issues to the League through the committees

10/3/2017 3:27 PM

20

Government Directory, Reminders of due dates and notices, and referrals.

10/3/2017 3:27 PM

21

Environmental Protection for our water and air.

10/3/2017 3:14 PM

22

No.

10/3/2017 2:32 PM

23

no

10/3/2017 1:56 PM

24

n/a

10/3/2017 1:46 PM

25

No. But ranking very hard because many services equally valuable.

10/3/2017 1:41 PM

26

The League staff is very approachable and seem to help in any area we ask.

10/3/2017 1:39 PM
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Q6 In what way(s) could the League enhance or improve services to your
municipality?
Answered: 40

Skipped: 66

#

RESPONSES

DATE

1

share success stories from each community.

10/11/2017 3:12 PM

2

Keep doing what you are doing, I'm very satisfied with the assistance from the League.

10/10/2017 4:55 PM

3

Stronger advocacy at the legislature and at the federal level.

10/10/2017 3:43 PM

4

Diversify the governing board. All Mayors is does not represent the cross section of municipal
interests.

10/6/2017 5:30 PM

5

For state conference have more rralistic workshops that will help elected officials help staff and
citizens.

10/6/2017 4:51 PM

6

At all seminars more discussions she be approached many leave still not having their questions
answered.

10/6/2017 8:46 AM

7

An annual report, after each legislative session, at each county by the executive director.

10/5/2017 2:18 PM

8

You do a really good job!

10/5/2017 1:59 PM

9

The annual conference should work on creating opportunities to have interchange with elected &
appointed state officials. I've seen tremendous gains made for municipalities through the
interactions & liaison opportunities afforded to municipal conferences that integrate opportunities
for local leaders to meet state officials. There was scant representation from the state... perhaps
this is uncommon here, but it's extraordinary effective where I've seen it done elsewhere.

10/5/2017 11:25 AM

10

Promptness with tax code revisions.

10/5/2017 10:54 AM

11

Quarterly or semi annual one on worksession with council on open meeting and emphasizing
participation of council members to be invoked with rules committee.

10/4/2017 11:00 PM

12

We are one of the most remote towns in Arizona and have very unique but real challenges.

10/4/2017 9:07 PM

13

Small town grants and funding

10/4/2017 7:02 PM

14

I may be in the minority here, but I find the annual conference much too heavy on socializing and
lobbying and much too light on quality presentations and discussions.

10/4/2017 1:51 PM

15

As far as the conference itself I attended in Oro Valley it would have been nice at the beginning to
do a speed connections to get to know other elected officials and then be able to build on those
connections that would help me as elected official. For at the end I was ready to get home.
Thanks!

10/4/2017 1:45 PM

16

I think you do a fine job covering all the areas.

10/4/2017 12:38 PM

17

Thank you for all you do for us!

10/4/2017 10:40 AM

18

Balance the needs of both large and small members in advocacy efforts. On occasion it appears if
you are not Phoenix, Tempe, or Mesa your needs aren't as great or as important.

10/4/2017 9:11 AM

19

The League does a great job representing the cities and towns!!

10/4/2017 8:49 AM

20

More focused trainings for affiliate groups. Also there is no training for Planning Commission
Members even though they are required by statute.

10/4/2017 7:21 AM

21

Need to get more business oriented Republican on board to assist with efforts that benefit local
government. For whatever reason, perception is that league is liberal and therefore discounted at
legislature. League performs many important functions but league needs to also address reality of
who the az legislature is and build l relations accordingly. Hire people from duceys office or az
Chamber etc. Think outside box as better way to reinvent

10/3/2017 10:05 PM

22

Continue to enhance and improve your strategies in working with the legislators and the Governor

10/3/2017 8:32 PM
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23

None

10/3/2017 6:55 PM

24

Improved, more up to date bill tracking. Announcements of days and time that bill hearings will
take place.

10/3/2017 6:19 PM

25

Perhaps a synopsis of what legal activities you are engaged in for the benefit of the cities and
towns. I found the presentation very interesting at the Conference - I had no idea what all you did
in this area.

10/3/2017 5:51 PM

26

You are doing a very good job. thank you

10/3/2017 5:26 PM

27

Not sure.....

10/3/2017 4:12 PM

28

Increase the level of advocacy relating to legislation. It seems that the League has recently taken a
step back on certain pieces of legislation. I'm still baffled as to why we can negotiate a good piece
of legislation to "simplify" the portions of the tax code that need to be fixed. Instead, our strategy is
to play defense which will likely result in the passage of some future "ugly" bill that will damage
cities and towns.

10/3/2017 4:00 PM

29

Just keep doing what you do!

10/3/2017 3:55 PM

30

can't think of any at the moment.

10/3/2017 3:27 PM

31

I honestly think the League provides such a variety of services that I can't think of any additional
services.

10/3/2017 3:21 PM

32

Lobby for water and air.

10/3/2017 3:14 PM

33

Continue your fine work representing municipalities in Arizona!

10/3/2017 2:32 PM

34

small community economic development discussions

10/3/2017 2:30 PM

35

Better tracking and knowledge of proposed (and approved) legislation that affects municipalities,
including the areas of Public Records and Records Management, Public Bodies
(Boards/Commissions) and the Open Meeting Law, Liquor License Applications, Elections and
Campaign Finance, etc.

10/3/2017 2:10 PM

36

Staying on top of legislaywhore tricks and traps. The league screwed its members on the small
wireless facility law entirely, as well as the ADOR takeover of the sales tax collection. Really big
blunders. A new league should be formed just for those blunders alone. You favor Tucson and
Fenix way too much and ignore the other cities and towns. Tucson and Fenix, Snottsdale, Tempe
and Bisbee to name a few are communistic republics and should have their own league. They
make cities and towns look bad and that's why we get shitty legislation targeted at us. U need to
stop supporting their librol bullshit anti white mail efforts.

10/3/2017 1:56 PM

37

n/a

10/3/2017 1:46 PM

38

Keep up the great work. Your advocacy is critical.

10/3/2017 1:42 PM

39

N/A

10/3/2017 1:41 PM

40

More Training. For Staff

10/3/2017 1:39 PM
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Agenda Item #6

2016-2017 Audit Report

Summary:

The report from the annual audit of the League of Arizona Cities and
Towns is presented for your review and approval.
The Property Corporation of Cities and Towns is a separate nonprofit
organization which owns and operates the League building. However,
rather than prepare a separate audit for the Property Corporation, our
auditors have recommended that it be included in the League’s financial
statement. The audit report you have implements that recommendation.

Responsible Person:

Ken Strobeck

Attachment:

Audit Report for FY ended June 30, 2017

Action Requested:

Approval of Audit Report.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

Board of Directors
League of Arizona Cities and Towns
Phoenix, Arizona
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns (League) for the year
ended June 30, 2017, and have issued our report thereon dated October 2, 2017. We have previously
communicated to you information about our responsibilities under auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. Professional standards also require
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.
Significant audit findings
Qualitative aspects of accounting practices
Accounting policies
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the League of Arizona Cities and Towns are described in Note 1 to the
financial statements.
No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed
during 2017.
We noted no transactions entered into by the League during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.
Accounting estimates
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them
may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial
statements were:


Management’s estimate of the useful lives and remaining useful lives of capital assets is based
on the League’s previous experience and current condition of capital assets. We evaluated the
key factors and assumptions used to develop the useful lives and remaining useful lives in
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Board of Directors
League of Arizona Cities and Towns
Page 2

Accounting estimates (Continued)
 Management’s estimate of compensated absences is based on employees who have currently
vested and those who are expected to vest. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions
used to develop compensated absences balance in determining that it is reasonable in relation
to the financial statements taken as a whole.


Management’s estimate of the pension liability is based on actuarial assumptions prepared by a
third party actuary. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the pension
liability in determining it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Financial statement disclosures
Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. There were no particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures.
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties encountered in performing the audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.
Uncorrected misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other
than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management did not identify and we did not notify them of any uncorrected financial statement
misstatements.
Corrected misstatements
None of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management
were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.
Disagreements with management
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditors’ report. No such disagreements arose during our audit.
Management representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated October 2, 2017.
Management consultations with other independent accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the League’s financial statements or a determination
of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Board of Directors
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Significant issues discussed with management prior to engagement
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to engagement as the League’s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our engagement.
Other information in documents containing audited financial statements
With respect to the required supplementary information (RSI) accompanying the financial statements,
we made certain inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the RSI, including whether
the RSI has been measured and presented in accordance with prescribed guidelines, whether the
methods of measurement and preparation have been changed from the prior period and the reasons
for any such changes, and whether there were any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying
the measurement or presentation of the RSI. We compared the RSI for consistency with management’s
responses to the foregoing inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge obtained
during the audit of the basic financial statements. Because these limited procedures do not provide
sufficient evidence, we did not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.
Our auditors’ opinion, the audited financial statements, and the notes to financial statements should
only be used in their entirety. Inclusion of the audited financial statements in a document you prepare,
such as an annual report, should be done only with our prior approval and review of the document.
* * *
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors and
management of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns and is not intended to be, and should not be,
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Phoenix, Arizona
October 2, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
League of Arizona Cities and Towns
Phoenix, Arizona
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns (League), as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the League’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the League’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the League’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
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Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the major fund, the aggregate remaining
fund information, and the General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance – Budget and Actual of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns as of June 30, 2017, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and the schedule of the League’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability and contributions on pages 3 – 9 and page 34, respectively, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 2, 2017, on our consideration of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns’ internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the League’s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the League of Arizona Cities and Towns’ internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Phoenix, Arizona
October 2, 2017
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

We, the League of Arizona Cities and Towns (the League), are pleased to provide an overview of our
financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. The intended purpose of the Management
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is to provide an introduction to the basic financial statements and
notes, that provides an objective and easy to read analysis of our financial activities based on currently
known facts, decisions, and conditions, by providing an easily readable summary of operating results
and reasons for changes, which will help to determine if our financial position improved or deteriorated
over the past year. This report addresses current operational activities, the sources, uses, and changes
in resources, adherence to budget, service levels, limitations, and significant economic factors.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
 While the League does not have any governmental authority, it is an instrumentality of the
incorporated cities and towns, created and operated for their benefit. It is governed by elected
city and town officials and its only members are the cities and towns of Arizona. Therefore, the
League reports under Government Accounting Standards based on the composition of
the board.
 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns
exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal
year by $480,832 (net position). Of this amount, $305,695 is invested in capital assets while
unrestricted net position had a surplus balance of $175,137.
 As of the close of the current fiscal year, the League of Arizona Cities and Towns’ general fund
reported an ending fund balance of $2,097,790, an increase of $117,613 in comparison with the
prior year.
 At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$2,055,143 or 76% of total General Fund expenditures.
 General Fund revenues exceeded budgeted revenues by $108,936 for fiscal year 2017.
Additionally, expenditures were under the budget by $27,251 in the General Fund.
 General Fund revenues were more than expenditures by $117,613; a positive variance of
$136,187 from the budget.
 The League includes one separate legal entity in its report - The Property Corporation of
Arizona Cities and Towns. Although legally separate, the “component unit” is important because
the League is financially accountable. A description of the component unit is available in Note 1
on page 20. Separate Financial Statements are not available for this entity.
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the League’s basic financial
statements. The League’s financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) governmentwide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements.
In addition to the basic financial statements, this report also includes a Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.
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Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
the League of Arizona Cities and Towns’ finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business. The
statement of net position presents information on all of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns’ assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference
between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns is
improving or deteriorating.
The statement of activities presents information showing how the League’s net position changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected dues or fees and earned but unused vacation leave).
The governmental activities of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns include general government
expenses provided to support Arizona governments. The government-wide financial statements also
include the activity of the Property Corporation, reported as an internal service fund, included as a
blended component unit. The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 10 - 11 of
this report.
Fund Financial Statements
Also presented are the traditional fund financial statements for governmental funds. The fund financial
statements focus on major funds of the League, rather than fund type. A fund is a grouping of related
accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The League of Arizona Cities and Towns, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns can be divided into two
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Governmental Funds – Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements. Since the governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
spendable resources, while the governmental activities on the government-wide financial statements
have a longer term focus, a reconciliation of the differences between the two is provided with the fund
financial statements. The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 12 - 16
of this report.
Proprietary Funds – The League of Arizona Cities and Towns maintains one type of proprietary fund.
The internal service fund is an accounting device used to account for the activity of the Property
Corporation that owns and operates the League’s office space. Because these services predominantly
benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The basic proprietary fund financial statements
can be found on pages 17 - 19 of this report.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
The notes to the basic financial statements (pages 20 - 33) provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements and should be read with the financial statements.
Required Supplementary Information Other Than MD&A
Governments have an option of including the budgetary comparison statements for the General Fund
and major special revenue funds as either part of the fund financial statements within the basic financial
statements or as required supplementary information after the footnotes. The League has chosen to
present these budgetary statements as part of the basic financial statements.
The League reports the schedule of the League’s proportionate share of the net pension liability and
contributions following the notes to the financial statements on page 34.
Government-Wide Financial Analysis
Net Position
Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. Table A-1
reflects the condensed statement of net position of the League at June 30, 2017 showing that assets
and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $480,832.
The League does not currently have any enterprise funds that would otherwise be classified as
business-type activities; all funds are considered governmental activities.
Table A-1
Net Position
Governmental Activities
2017
Assets
Current and Other Assets
Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable (Net)
Total Assets

2016

Percent
Change

2,516,362

4.0 %

51,611
254,084
2,921,745

51,611
238,641
2,806,614

6.5
4.1

387,898

286,511

35.4

433,786

440,015

(1.4)

79,148
2,158,052
2,670,986

82,450
1,985,850
2,508,315

(4.0)
8.7
6.5

Deferred Inflows of Resources

157,825

208,294

(24.2)

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

305,695
175,137
480,832

290,252
86,264
376,516

5.3
103.0
27.7

$

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year
Total Liabilities

$

(5)

2,616,050

$

$

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

The League of Arizona Cities and Towns’ net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
furniture, fixtures and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding is the majority of the League’s total net position. The League of Arizona Cities and Towns
uses these capital assets to provide services to Arizona governments and its members; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. The unrestricted net position can be used for
ongoing League operations. The League does not have any restricted net position, other than those
invested in capital assets.
Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities. Table A-2 compares the revenue and expenses for the current and prior year.
The program revenues include charges for services and intergovernmental revenues that are clearly
identifiable to an operating function of governmental activities. The League’s revenues are not identified
with any operating function and are therefore reported as general revenues.
Table A-2
Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities
2017
REVENUES
General Revenues:
Affiliate Group Contributions
Annual Conference
Membership Dues
Risk Management
Rental Revenue
Seminars and Meetings
Miscellaneous
Investment Income
Total Revenues

2016

Percent
Change

132,950
429,145
1,897,377
143,531
14,774
38,660
84,853
6,843
2,748,133

3.0 %
3.2
2.1
2.6
(4.2)
37.1
3.4
139.6
3.2

1,738,979
342,178
341,105
9,408
12,996
67,010
63,218
5,802
68,234
63,095
20,253
2,732,278

1,691,271
302,350
287,188
6,007
11,535
60,397
64,874
3,455
66,462
68,959
39,962
2,602,460

2.8
13.2
18.8
56.6
12.7
10.9
(2.6)
67.9
2.7
(8.5)
(49.3)
5.0

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

104,316

145,673

(28.4)

Net Position - Beginning of Year

376,516

230,843

63.1

376,516

27.7

$

EXPENSES
Salaries and Employee Benefits
Annual Conference, Seminars, and Travel
Consultant and Professional Services
Executive Committee
Insurance
Membership Dues and Subscriptions
Office Supplies, Printing, and Rentals
Postage and Shipping
Rent, Utilities, and Communication
Maintenance Services and Agreements
Depreciation
Total Expenses

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

$
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136,950
442,969
1,938,081
147,314
14,159
53,018
87,710
16,393
2,836,594

480,832

$

$
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Revenues increased $88,461. The major increase in revenues included a $40,704 increase in
membership dues, a $14,358 increase in seminars and meetings, and a $13,824 increase in annual
conference revenue. The increase in revenues from membership dues was the result of an increase in
the dues formula adopted by the Executive Committee. The cities and towns pay varying dues based
on population thresholds.
The increase in annual conference revenues is attributed to the usual variables that affect each annual
conference. These variables include registration fees, location, and sponsorships. Every year is
different based on the location of the conference as well as the economy at the time. Typically
conferences held in the Valley have a higher attendance rate than those outside of the Valley. The
FY17 conference was held in Phoenix and therefore resulted in an increase in attendees registration
fees. Sponsorship revenue is generally consistent from year to year.
Expenses increased $129,818. The major increases in expenses included a $53,917 increase in
consultant and professional services, $39,828 increase in the conferences, seminars, and travel line
item and a $47,708 increase in salaries and employee benefits which was partially offset by a decrease
of $19,709 in depreciation expense.
The 18.8% increase in consultant and professional services is attributed to the contract hire of a
legislative director. This position was previously paid through salaries, but midway through the year was
paid as a contract consultant. This resulted in less salaries and benefits, but as discussed below,
salaries and benefits increased due to 2017 wage increases and temporary hires.
The 13.2% increase in annual conferences, seminars, and travel is largely attributed to the difference in
facility costs of the previous year’s annual conference host hotel and increased attendance. The annual
conference, seminars, and travel budget categories are unpredictable and vary from year to year.
The 2.8% increase in salaries and employee benefits was largely due to an overall 3% salary increase
during fiscal year 2017, as well as the hiring of interns.
The decrease in depreciation expense was due to fully depreciated assets that continue to be in use.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE LEAGUE’S FUNDS
The focus of the League’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of resources that are available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the
League’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of the League’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. The League
only reports one governmental fund - the General Fund. The General Fund is the chief operating fund
of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns.
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the League’s General Fund reported an ending fund balance of
$2,097,790, an increase of $117,613 in comparison with the prior year. As a measure of the General
Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare the General Fund fund balance and total fund
expenditures. The General Fund unassigned fund balance represents 76% of total General Fund
expenditures.

(7)

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

The increase in annual conference revenues is attributed to the usual variables that affect each annual
conference. These variables include registration fees and sponsorships. Every year is different based
on the location of the conference as well as the economy at the time. Typically conferences held in the
Valley have a higher attendance rate than those outside of the Valley. The FY17 conference was held
in Phoenix and therefore resulted in an increase of attendees, which resulted in an increase in
registration fees. Sponsorship revenue is generally comparable from year to year.
The increase in revenues from membership dues was the result of an increase in the dues formula
adopted by the Executive Committee. The cities and towns pay varying dues based on population
thresholds.
In addition to the increases and decreases in revenues, the League reported an increase in General
Fund expenditures of $124,997. The increase in expenditures was the result of the convergence of
several factors: the annual conference expenses were $39,828 more due to its location in Phoenix,
salaries and employee benefits increased $22,650 primarily due to an overall 3% salary increase and
the hiring of interns, and consultant and professional services increased $53,497 largely due to the
hiring of a contract consultant for legislative director.
BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS
The League’s annual budget is the legally adopted expenditure control document of the League.
Budgetary comparison statements are required for the General Fund and all major special revenue
funds and may be found on page 16. This statement compares the original adopted budget, the budget
if amended throughout the fiscal year, and the actual expenditures prepared on a budgetary basis. The
League did not amend its budget during the fiscal year.
General Fund revenues of $2,820,962 exceeded budgeted revenues of $2,712,026 by $108,936 and
expenditures of $2,703,349 fell below budgeted expenditures of $2,730,600 by $27,251.
The excess of revenues over budget was largely due to $47,969 excess revenues over budget for
annual conference fees and $19,274 excess revenues over budget for miscellaneous revenues. The
excess of revenues over budget was due to the unpredictable nature of these budget categories. The
annual conference revenues exceeded budget due to the usual variables that affect each annual
conference. These variables include registration fees, location, and sponsorships. Every year is
different based on the location of the conference as well as the economy at the time. Typically
conferences held in the Valley have a higher attendance rate than those outside of the Valley. The
FY17 conference was held in Phoenix and therefore resulted in additional attendees resulting in an
increase in registration fees over the prior fiscal year. The League increased the budget over the prior
fiscal year by $25,000 based on the prior year conference attendance; however, the current year
conference attendance continued to exceed expectations. Sponsorship revenue is highly unpredictable
from year to year.
Major expenditure budget variances during the current fiscal year included salaries and benefits falling
below budget by $151,065, consultant and professional services exceeded budget by $162,985, and
annual conference, seminars and travel exceeded budget by $39,178. Salaries and benefits fell below
budget and the consultant and professional services exceeded budget due to the contract hire of the
legislative director position. This position was previously paid through salaries, but midway through the
year were paid through a contract consultant. The annual conference, seminars, and travel line item
exceeded budget due to higher hotel costs for the annual conference and additional seminars.
(8)
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
The League’s capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2017 amount to $305,695 (net
of accumulated depreciation), an increase of 5%. For government-wide financial statement
presentation, all depreciable capital assets were depreciated from acquisition date to the end of the
current fiscal year. Governmental fund financial statements record capital asset purchases as
expenditures, whereas the proprietary fund financial statements record capital asset purchases as
assets. See Note 3.A.2. in the Notes to the Financial Statements for further information regarding
capital assets.
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:
 A commercial lift for $17,158, a network server for $7,558, and an elevator drill core for $9,995.
Table A-3 provides a breakdown of the capital assets of the League at June 30, 2017 and 2016.
Table A-3
Capital Assets (Net)
Governmental Activities

Land
Buildings and Building Improvements
Equipment and Furniture
Total Capital Assets

$

$

2017
51,611
242,414
11,670
305,695

$

$

2016
51,611
231,810
6,831
290,252

Percent
Change
- %
4.6
70.8

The League did not have any outstanding bonded indebtedness.
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES
The 2018 budget was constructed with minimal increases to overall expected revenues and expenses.
Spending will remain conservative.
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the League’s finances for all of those
with an interest in the League’s finances and to demonstrate accountability for the use of those funds.
Questions about any of the information provided in this report, or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to:
League of Arizona Cities and Towns
1820 West Washington Street
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Or visit our website at:
http://www.azleague.org
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2017

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Receivables:
Accounts Receivable, Net
Prepaid Items

$

2,503,249
64,352
48,449

Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable Assets
Total Capital Assets
Total Assets

51,611
254,084
305,695
2,921,745

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflow of Resources Related to Pension Liability

387,898

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue
Long-Term Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year
Total Liabilities

42,855
390,931
79,148
2,158,052
2,670,986

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflow of Resources Related to Pension Liability

157,825

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

305,695
175,137

Total Net Position

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Governmental Activities:
General Government:
Expenses:
Salaries and Employee Benefits
Annual Conference, Seminars, and Travel
Consultant and Professional Services
Executive Committee
Insurance
Membership Dues and Subscriptions
Office Supplies, Printing, and Rentals
Postage and Shipping
Rent, Utilities, and Communication
Maintenance Services and Agreements
Depreciation
Total Expenses

$

General Revenues:
Affiliate Group Contributions
Annual Conference
Membership Dues
Risk Management
Rental Revenue
Seminars and Meetings
Miscellaneous
Investment Income
Total General Revenues

1,738,979
342,178
341,105
9,408
12,996
67,010
63,218
5,802
68,234
63,095
20,253
2,732,278

136,950
442,969
1,938,081
147,314
14,159
53,018
87,710
16,393
2,836,594

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

104,316

Net Position - Beginning of Year

376,516

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
(11)

480,832

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017

General
Fund
ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable, Net
Prepaid Items
Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue
Total Liabilities

$

2,424,859
54,165
42,647

$

2,521,671

$

37,886
385,995
423,881

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable for Prepaid Items
Unassigned
Total Fund Balance

42,647
2,055,143
2,097,790

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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2,521,671

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO
THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2017

Total fund balances for governmental funds

$

2,097,790

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position is different because:
Capital assets used in governmental funds are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. Those
assets consist of:
Governmental capital assets
Less: accumulated depreciation
Capital assets used in governmental activities

$

93,757
(83,012)
10,745

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are
applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

387,898
(157,825)

Long-term liabilities, including compensated absences, are not due
and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in
the governmental funds.
Net pension liability
Compensated absence payable
Total long-term liabilities

(2,158,052)
(79,148)
(2,237,200)

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certain activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the
Internal Service Funds are included in governmental activities in the
statement of net position
Total net position of governmental activities

379,424
$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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480,832

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

General
Fund
REVENUES
Affiliate Group Contributions
Annual Conference
Membership Dues
Risk Management
Seminars and Meetings
Miscellaneous
Investment Income
Total Revenues

$

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Salaries and Employee Benefits
Annual Conference, Seminars, and Travel
Consultant and Professional Services
Executive Committee
Insurance
Membership Dues and Subscriptions
Office Supplies, Printing, and Rentals
Postage and Shipping
Rent, Utilities, and Communication
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

136,950
442,969
1,938,081
147,314
53,018
86,274
16,356
2,820,962

1,721,935
342,178
333,985
9,408
7,633
67,010
63,218
5,802
132,170
20,010
2,703,349

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

117,613

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

1,980,177

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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2,097,790

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

$

117,613

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, assets are capitalized and the cost is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation
in the current period.
Capital outlays - improvement costs
Depreciation expense
Net change in capital assets

$

7,558
(3,644)
3,914

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures
when made. However, in the statement of activities, pension expense
is the cost of benefits earned, adjusted for member contributions, the
recognition of changes in deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to pensions, and the investment experience.
Pension contributions
Pension expense

128,672
(149,018)
(20,346)

Compensated absences do not require the use of current financial
resources in the governmental funds and are therefore not reported
as expenditures in the governmental funds; however, the net change in
compensated absences is reported as a net increase or decrease
in the government-wide financial statements.

3,302

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge rent for the
use of the facility owned by the property corporation. The net revenue
of the Internal Service Fund is reported with governmental activities.

Change in net position of governmental activities

(167)

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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104,316

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Original and
Final
Budget
REVENUES
Affiliate Group Contributions
Annual Conference
Membership Dues
Risk Management
Seminars and Meetings
Miscellaneous
Investment Income
Total Revenues

$

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Salaries and Employee Benefits
Annual Conference, Seminars, and Travel
Consultant and Professional Services
Executive Committee
Insurance
Membership Dues and Subscriptions
Office Supplies, Printing, and Rentals
Postage and Shipping
Rent, Utilities, and Communication
Contingency
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

132,950
395,000
1,938,076
145,000
30,000
67,000
4,000
2,712,026

$

1,873,000
303,000
171,000
10,000
7,600
62,000
68,000
6,000
200,000
10,000
20,000
2,730,600

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

1,932,536
$

1,913,962

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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136,950
442,969
1,938,081
147,314
53,018
86,274
16,356
2,820,962

Variance
$

1,721,935
342,178
333,985
9,408
7,633
67,010
63,218
5,802
132,170
20,010
2,703,349

(18,574)

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

Actual

$

4,000
47,969
5
2,314
23,018
19,274
12,356
108,936

151,065
(39,178)
(162,985)
592
(33)
(5,010)
4,782
198
67,830
10,000
(10)
27,251

117,613

136,187

1,980,177

47,641

2,097,790

$

183,828

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017

Governmental
Activities Internal
Service Fund
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable, Net
Prepaid Items
Total Current Assets

$

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable (Net)
Total Assets

78,390
10,187
5,802
94,379

51,611
243,339
389,329

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue
Total Current Liabilities

4,969
4,936
9,905

NET POSITION
Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

294,950
84,474

Total Net Position

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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379,424

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Governmental
Activities Internal
Service Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Rental Revenue
Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues

$

OPERATING EXPENSES
Utilities
Repairs and Maintenance Services and Agreements
Accounting and Auditing
Insurance
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

119,159
1,436
120,595

41,064
50,643
7,120
5,363
16,609
120,799

OPERATING LOSS

(204)

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Investment Income

37

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

(167)

Net Position - Beginning of Year

379,591

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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379,424

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Governmental
Activities Internal Service
Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers
Payments to Suppliers
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

$

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Capital Assets

113,052
(96,867)
16,185

(28,138)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment Income

37

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(11,916)

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

90,306

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

$

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Loss

$

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Depreciation Expense
Change in Assets/Liabilities:
Receivables
Prepaid Items
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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78,390

(204)

16,609

$

(8,170)
7,108
215
627
16,185

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accompanying financial statements of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns (the
League) have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America applicable to governmental units adopted by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). A summary of the League’s more significant
accounting policies follows.
A. Reporting Entity
The League of Arizona Cities and Towns was established in 1937, and is a voluntary
association of all the incorporated cities and towns in Arizona. The League is comprised
of 90 members and provides legislative framework for municipal needs and concerns
and is a technical assistance resource for all of the incorporated communities in Arizona.
League policy is established by all members at the annual meeting and policy direction
is provided during the year by a 25 member Executive Committee composed of elected
officials from cities and towns around the state.
The accompanying financial statements present the League and its component unit
entity for which the League is considered to be financially accountable. Blended
component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the
League’s operations.
Included within the reporting entity:
The Property Corporation of Arizona Cities and Towns is a nonprofit corporation which
was incorporated in 1970 as a 501(c)(4) by the incorporated cities and towns in the State
of Arizona to construct and operate the office space for the League and other
governmental units. The Corporation’s officers and board of directors consist of officers
and members of the Executive Committee for the League. The operations of the
Property Corporation of Arizona Cities and Towns are reported as an internal service
fund because the Property Corporation largely charges rent to the League and other
governmental entities. The activity is included in the governmental activities on the
League’s financial statements and is reported as a blended component unit because the
Corporation provides a financial benefit almost exclusively to the League of Arizona
Cities and Towns. Separate financial statements are not prepared for the Property
Corporation of Arizona Cities and Towns.
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
primary government and its component units. The effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which are normally supported
by intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. The League did not
have any business-type activities.
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that
are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include
1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Internally dedicated resources such as
intergovernmental, membership dues, fees and other items are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. All revenues of the League are considered
to be general revenues.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary
funds. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Significant revenues susceptible to accrual
include dues, seminars and meetings, risk management, annual conference and
investment income and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. Monies received in advance of the revenue recognition criteria are reported as
unearned revenues. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and
available only when cash is received by the League.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the League
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as
under accrual accounting, except expenditures related to compensated absences which
are recorded only when payment is due.
(21)

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)
The League reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund – the General Fund is the League’s primary operating fund. It
accounts for all financial resources of the League, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.
Additionally, the League reports the following fund type:
Internal Service Fund – the Internal Service Fund accounts for the Property
Corporation’s financing of operating and maintaining office space provided to the
League and other governmental entities.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the internal service fund are rental
income charged to the League and other governmental entities. Operating expenses for
the internal service fund include the cost of maintaining the facilities and utilities. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.
When restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned resources are available for use, for
governmental activities it is the League’s policy to use restricted resources first, then
committed, assigned and unassigned resources as they are needed.
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position or Equity
1. Deposits and Investments
Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
cash and investments held by the State Treasurer, and highly liquid investments with
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
State statutes authorize the League to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and
U.S. agencies, certificates of deposit in eligible depositories, repurchase
agreements, obligations of the State of Arizona or any of its counties or incorporated
cities, towns or duly organized school districts, improvement districts in this state and
the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool. Investments are stated at
fair value.
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position or Equity (Continued)
2. Receivables
All receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.
3. Prepaid Items
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods
and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial
statements. Expenditures/expenses are recognized in the fund and government wide
financial statements when the goods or services are received.
4. Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, and furniture,
fixtures and equipment, are reported in the governmental activities column in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the League as
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $750 and an estimated useful life in
excess of one year.
Capital assets purchased or acquired are carried at historical cost or estimated
historical cost. Contributed assets are recorded at fair market value as of the date
received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend
the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and
maintenance are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation on all assets is provided on a straight-line basis over the following
estimated useful lives:
Buildings and Improvements
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment

10-40 Years
3-10 Years

5. Deferred Outflows of Resources
The difference between the expected and actual expenses for its actuarially
determined pension obligation is reported as a deferred outflow of resources and will
be amortized over a five-year period. Additionally, contributions made after the
measurement date for the League’s pension plan are reported as deferred outflows
of resources and will reduce the pension liability in the next fiscal year.
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position or Equity (Continued)
6. Compensated Absences
The liability for compensated absences reported in the government-wide financial
statements consists of unpaid, accumulated leave balances. The liability has been
calculated using the vesting method, in which leave amounts for both employees
who currently are eligible to receive termination payments and other employees who
are expected to become eligible in the future to receive such payments upon
termination.
7. Pension Plans
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the Arizona State Retirement System
(ASRS) and additions to/deductions from ASRS’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by ASRS. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
8. Deferred Inflows of Resources
The League reports deferred inflows of resources for pension related inflows that will
be amortized in future periods.
9. Net Position
In the government-wide financial statements, net position is reported in three
categories: net investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and unrestricted
net position. Net investment capital assets are separately reported because the
League reports all of the League assets which make up a significant portion of total
net position. Restricted net position accounts for the portion of net position restricted
by parties outside the League. Unrestricted net position is the remaining net position
not included in the previous two categories. The League reported no restricted
net position.
10. Fund Equity
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report nonspendable fund
balance for amounts that are not available for appropriation. The League has not
adopted a fund balance policy defining restricted, committed, assigned, and
unassigned fund balances. The League therefore, does not define the terms under
which committed fund balances become committed or are released from such a
commitment. In addition, the board has not designated an individual or group of
individuals the authority to assign fund balances. The League did not report any
restricted, committed, or assigned fund balances.
(24)

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 2

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Budgetary Information
The League’s budget policy provides that the Executive Committee adopt and approve
an annual budget. The budget for the General Fund is prepared on the modified accrual
basis of accounting.

NOTE 3

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. Assets
1. Deposits and Investments
Deposits and investments at June 30, 2017 consist of the following:
Deposits:
Cash in Bank
Investments:
State Treasurer’s Investment Pool
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

$

236,898

$

2,266,351
2,503,249

Deposits
At June 30, 2017, the carrying amount of the League’s deposits was $236,898 and
the bank balance was $252,239 which was fully insured by federal depository
insurance.
Investments
Investments consist of funds invested with the Local Government Investment Pool,
an external investment pool. The League’s investment, stated at fair value, is not
identified with specific investments. Its investment in the pool has a net asset value
that approximates $1.00.
Interest Rate Risk – The League does not have an investment policy that addresses
interest rate risk; however, the League manages its exposure to declines in fair
values by limiting its investments to the Local Government Investment Pool which
has a weighted average maturity of 47 days.
Credit Risk – The State Board of Deposit provides oversight for the State Treasurer’s
pools, and the Local Government Investment Pool Advisory Committee provides
consultation and advice to the Treasurer. The fair value of a participant’s position in
the pool approximates the value of that participant’s pool shares. The shares are not
identified with specific investments and are not subject to custodial credit risk. The
LGIP maintains a rating of AAA from Moody’s.
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 3

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)
A. Assets (Continued)
1. Deposits and Investments (Continued)
Custodial Credit Risk – For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the League will not be able to recover the value of its
investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.
The League currently does not have a policy with regard to custodial credit risk. The
League’s investments consist only of funds deposited with the Local Government
Investment Pool which is overseen by the State Board of Deposits.
2. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Land

$

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Buildings and Building Improvements
Equipment and Furniture
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings and Building Improvements
Equipment and Furniture
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net

51,611

Increases

$

757,400
170,402
927,802

(525,590)
(163,571)
(689,161)
238,641
$ 290,252

$

-

Ending
Balance

Decreases

$

-

27,154
8,542
35,696

(39,863)
(47,964)
(87,827)

(16,550)
(3,703)
(20,253)
15,443
15,443

39,863
47,964
87,827
-

$

$

51,611

744,691
130,980
875,671

(502,277)
(119,310)
(621,587)
254,084
$ 305,695

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:
Governmental Activities:
General Government
Internal Service Fund
Total Depreciation Expense,
Governmental Activities

$

3,644
16,609

$

20,253

B. Unearned Revenue
Resources received are recognized as unearned revenue to the extent that the earnings
process has not been completed. These resources are recorded as revenue when the
related obligations have been satisfied. As of June 30, 2017, The League reported
$385,995 of unearned revenue in the governmental funds and $390,931 of unearned
revenues in the governmental activities. Unearned revenue was largely composed of
summer conference registration fees, sponsorship revenues and membership dues.
(26)

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 3

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)
C. Obligations Under Operating Leases
The League leases copiers and other equipment under the provisions of long-term lease
agreements classified as operating leases. Rental expenditures under the terms of the
operating leases totaled $9,774 for the year ended June 30, 2017.
The future minimum lease payments for these leases are as follows:
Year Ending June 30,
2018
2019
2020
Total

$

$

Amount
3,027
3,027
1,261
7,315

D. Long-Term Debt
The compensated absences are paid entirely by the General Fund of the League.
Changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2017 are as follows:
Beginning
of Year
Governmental Activities:
Compensated Absences

NOTE 4

$

Additions

82,450

$

112,929

End of
Year

Retirements
$

(116,231)

$

79,148

Due within
One Year
$

79,148

OTHER INFORMATION
A. Risk Management
The League of Arizona Cities and Towns is exposed to various risks of loss related to
torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions, and
natural disasters.
The League carries commercial insurance for all risks of loss, including workers’
compensation and employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting
from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage during any of the
past three fiscal years and no significant reduction in insurance coverage during the last
fiscal year.
B. Economic Dependence
The League receives 68% of its revenues from membership dues and 16% from its
annual conference. The League’s operations depend on continued support from these
funding sources.
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 4

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
C. Commitments
On December 17, 2015, the League signed a commitment with a hotel for the 2017
Annual Conference. At June 30, 2017, the League is liable for $170,904 if the League
cancels the agreement.
On November 10, 2015, the League signed a commitment with a hotel for registration
overflow for the 2017 Annual Conference. At June 30, 2017, the League is liable for
$15,168 if the League cancels the agreement.
On June 11, 2015, the League signed a commitment with a hotel for the 2018 Annual
Conference. At June 30, 2017, the League is liable for $10,000 if the League cancels the
agreement.
D. Retirement Plans
The League contributes to the Arizona Statement Retirement System pension plan
described below. The plan is a component unit of the State of Arizona. At June 30, 2017,
the League reported the following amounts related to the pension plan to which it
contributes:
Statement of Net Position and
Statement of Activities
Net Pension Liability
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension Expense

Governmental
Activities
$
2,158,052
387,898
157,825
149,018

Arizona State Retirement System
Plan Descriptions – League employees participate in the Arizona State Retirement
System (ASRS). The ASRS administers a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan; a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit health insurance
premium benefit (OPEB), and a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit longterm disability (OPEB). The Arizona State Retirement System Board governs the ASRS
according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Articles 2 and 2.1. The ASRS
issues a publicly available financial report that includes its financial statements and
required supplementary information. The report is available on its website at
www.azasrs.gov.
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 4

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
D. Retirement Plans (Continued)
Arizona State Retirement System (Continued)
Benefits Provided – The ASRS provides retirement, health insurance premium
supplement, long-term disability, and survivor benefits. State statute establishes benefit
terms. Retirement benefits are calculated on the basis of age, average monthly
compensation, and service credit as follows:
Before
July 1, 2011
Sum of years and age equals 80
10 years age 62
5 year age 50*
any years age 65

On or After
July 1, 2011
30 years age 55
25 years age 60
10 years age 62
5 years age 50*
any years age 65

Final average
salary is based on

Highest 36 Months
of last 120 months

Highest 60 months
of last 120 months

Benefit percentage
per year of service

2.1% to 2.3 %

2.1% to 2.3 %

Years of service
and age required
to receive benefit

* With actuarially reduced benefits

Retirement benefits for members who joined the ASRS prior to September 13, 2013, are
subject to automatic cost-of-living adjustments based on excess investment earnings.
Members with a membership date on or after September 13, 2013, are not eligible for
cost-of-living adjustments. Survivor benefits are payable upon a member’s death. For
retired members, the survivor benefit is determined by the retirement benefit option
chosen. For all other members, the beneficiary is entitled to the member’s account
balance that includes the member’s contributions and employer’s contributions, plus
interest earned.
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NOTE 4

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
D. Retirement Plans (Continued)
Arizona State Retirement System (Continued)
Contributions – In accordance with state statutes, annual actuarial valuations
determine active member and employer contribution requirements. The combined active
member and employer contribution rates are expected to finance the costs of benefits
employees earn during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded
accrued liability. For the year ended June 30, 2017, active ASRS members were
required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 11.48% (11.34% for
retirement and 0.14% for long-term disability) of the members’ annual covered payroll,
and the League was required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate
of 11.48% (10.78% for retirement, 0.56% for the health insurance premium benefit, and
0.14% for long-term disability) of the active members’ annual covered payroll. In
addition, the League was required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined
rate of 9.47% (9.17% for retirement, 0.21% for health insurance premium benefit, and
0.09% for long-term disability) of annual covered payroll of retired members who worked
for the League in positions that would typically be filled by an employee who contributes
to the ASRS. The League’s contributions to the pension plan for the year ended
June 30, 2017, were $128,672. The League’s contributions for the current and two
preceding years for OPEB, all of which were equal to the required contributions, were as
follows:
Health Benefit
Supplement

Year Ended June 30,
2017
2016
2015

Fund
$

6,684
5,962
6,928

Long-Term
Disability Fund
$
1,671
1,431
1,409

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the League paid all ASRS pension and
OPEB contributions out of the General Fund.
Pension Liability – At June 30, 2017, the League reported a liability of $2,158,052 for
its proportionate share of the ASRS’ net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2016. The total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined using update procedures to roll forward the total
pension liability from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015, to the measurement
date of June 30, 2016. The total pension liability as of June 30, 2016, reflects a change
in actuarial assumption for a decrease in loads for future potential permanent benefit
increases.
The League’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the League’s FY 2016
contributions. The League’s proportion measured as of June 30, 2016, was 0.013370%,
which was an increase of 0.00062 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2015.
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NOTE 4

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
D. Retirement Plans (Continued)
Arizona State Retirement System (Continued)
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources – For the year ended
June 30, 2017, the League recognized pension expense for ASRS of $149,018. At
June 30, 2017, the League reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings
on Pension Plan Investments
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between League
Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions
Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date
Total

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
$
13,114

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
$
148,458

119,683

-

126,429
128,672
387,898

9,367
157,825

$

$

The $128,672 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to ASRS pensions
resulting from the League contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2018.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to ASRS pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Year Ending June 30,
2018
2019
2020
2021
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$

Amount
(32,175)
(33,674)
101,676
65,574
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NOTE 4

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
D. Retirement Plans (Continued)
Arizona State Retirement System (Continued)
Actuarial Assumptions – The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the
total pension liability are as follows:
Actuarial Valuation Date
Actuarial Roll Forward Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Asset Valuation
Discount Rate
Projected Salary Increases
Inflation
Permanent Benefit Increase
Mortality Rates

June 30, 2015
June 30, 2016
Entry Age Normal
Fair Value
8%
3 - 6.75%
3%
Included
1994 GAM Scale BB

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial study for the 5-year period ended June, 2012.
The long-term expected rate of return on ASRS pension plan investments was
determined to be 8.75% using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:
Target
Allocation

Asset Class
Equity
Fixed Income
Real Estate
Multi-Asset Class
Commodities
Total
Inflation
Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return

58%
25
10
5
2
100%
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Real
Return

6.73%
3.70
4.25
3.41
3.84

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

3.90%
0.93
0.42
0.17
0.08
5.50%
3.25
8.75%
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NOTE 4

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
D. Retirement Plans (Continued)
Arizona State Retirement System (Continued)
Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the ASRS total pension liability was
8%, which is less than the long-term expected rate of return of 8.75%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from
participating employers will be made based on the actuarially determined rates based on
the ASRS Board’s funding policy, which establishes the contractually required rate under
Arizona statutes. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
total pension liability.
Sensitivity of the League’s Proportionate Share of the ASRS Net Pension Liability
to Changes in the Discount Rate – The following table presents the League’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 8%,
as well as what the League’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (7%) or 1
percentage point higher (9%) than the current rate.
Current
Discount
Rate
(8%)

1% Decrease
(7%)
The League’s Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability

$

2,751,681

$

2,158,052

1% Increase
(9%)
$

1,682,092

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued ASRS financial report.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
SCHEDULE OF THE LEAGUE’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET
PENSION LIABILITY AND CONTRIBUTIONS
ARIZONA STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEM (ASRS) PLAN
2017 AND THREE YEAR PRIOR

Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date)
2017
(2016)
League’s Proportion of the Net Pension Liability

2016
(2015)

2015
(2014)

2014
(2013)**

0.013370%

0.012749%

0.011847%

0.012466%

League’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

$ 2,158,052

$ 1,985,850

$ 1,753,013

$ 2,072,421

League’s Covered Payroll

$ 1,219,254

$ 1,217,272

$ 1,152,870

N/A *

League’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll

177.00%

163.14%

152.06%

N/A *

Plan Fiduciary Net Positon as a Percentage of the Total
Pension Liability

67.06%

68.35%

69.49%

Contractually Required Contribution
Contributions in Relation to the Contractually
Required Contribution

2017
$ 128,672

Fiscal Year
2016
2015
$ 129,371
$ 127,877

128,672

$

-

114,272

League’s Covered Payroll

$ 1,279,852

$ 1,219,254

$ 1,217,272

$ 1,152,870

10.05%

10.61%

10.51%

9.91%
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-

127,877

2014
114,272

$

* Information was not available.
** Information prior to the June 30, 2013 measurement date was not available.

$

$

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

-

129,371

57.28%

$

-

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS REPORT

THIS PAGE BLANK

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
League of Arizona Cities and Towns
Phoenix, Arizona
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the League of Arizona
Cities and Towns (League), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the League’s basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated October 2, 2017.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the League of Arizona
Cities and Towns’ internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
League’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
League’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the League’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Board of Directors
League of Arizona Cities and Towns

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the League of Arizona Cities and Towns’
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
League’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the League’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Phoenix, Arizona
October 2, 2017
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 3, 2017

Agenda Item #7

Cities and Towns Week 2017 and Other Communication Updates

Summary:

Update on 2017 Arizona Cities and Towns Week, League social media
activities and AZCities @ Work

Responsible Person:

Matt Lore, Communication & Education Director
Samantha Womer, Member Services Associate

Attachment:

Information on social media activities, 2017 Arizona Cities and Towns
Week and AZCities @ Work

The League’s website and Connection, our monthly on-line newsletter, provide updated information
and communication regarding the latest news, upcoming events, and general information for our
members.

The League website had over
160,000 visits in 2016 with the
most visited pages being:
1. Municipal Job Opportunities
2. League Annual Conference
3. Publications
4. Legislative Bill Monitoring
5. Training and Events

League Communication Update

League Website and E-News

League Communication Update

Arizona Cities @ Work Blog
The League continually updates its Arizona Cities @ Work blog with stories of municipal success and
promotes them through its social media accounts.

The League keeps in touch with cities and towns and continuously promotes the work of Arizona’s
municipalities through its variety of social media accounts.

Instagram – The League’s Instagram
includes a behind-the-scenes look at
the daily operations of the League,
highlights events and showcases
stories from cities and towns.

Stats: Comparison of
Instagram Followers
League of Arizona Cities & Towns:
922 Followers
Texas Municipal League:
472 Followers
Florida League of Cities:
230 Followers
National League of Cities:
913 Followers

League Communication Update

Arizona Cities Social Media

League Communication Update

Arizona Cities Social Media Cont.
Twitter – The League maintains two Twitter
accounts - @AZCities and @AZCitiesWork.
While @AZCities provides updates on
legislation and information about the
League and upcoming trainings and
events, the @AZCitiesWork account
shares positive stories of our municipalities,
their staff and elected officials.

Stats: Comparison of
Twitter Followers
AZ Cities @ Work:
746 Followers
League of Arizona Cities & Towns:
4,566 Followers
Kentucky League of Cities:
3,380 Followers
League of Wisconsin Municipalities:
2,928 Followers

Facebook – The Arizona Cities @ Work
campaign maintains a Facebook page as
a place to highlight municipalities and the
services they provide.

Stats: Comparison of
Facebook Likes
AZ Cities @ Work:
778 Likes
Virginia Municipal League:
512 Likes
Oklahoma Municipal League:
678 Likes

League Communication Update

Arizona Cities Social Media, Cont.

League Communication Update

League Annual Conference Social Media & App
At the League’s Annual Conference in Oro Valley, the League connected with conference attendees
through the creation and use of a mobile app. Additionally, conference-goers interacted through
Twitter and Instagram, through the shared #LACT17 hashtag.

In the fall issue of Arizona City & Town Magazine, the League will be showcasing some of the most
unique and historic city and town halls in Arizona.
To further highlight these exceptional municipal buildings, AZ Cities @ Work has content featured on
the website and will be promoting the #AZCityHallTour on social media.

League Communication Update

Arizona City & Town Hall Tour

League Communication Update

AZ Cities & Towns Week – Municipal Toolkit
To celebrate the 16th Annual Cities & Towns Week and assist the cities and towns in participating,
the League once again created an online toolkit, which featured a variety of tools, including sample
press releases, social media messaging, and event ideas.

AZ CITIES & TOWNS FACTS & STATISTICS
Cities and Towns Week 2017


Arizona is home to seven of the top 100 largest cities in the U.S.



Tucson is Arizona’s oldest city and was established in 1877. Tusayan is Arizona’s youngest city and was
established in 2010.



Twenty of Arizona’s cities and towns were incorporated prior to statehood.



10 Arizona cities have a population greater than 100,000 residents. Six Arizona cities have a population
of less than 1,000 residents.



47 of the 91 cities and towns have a population of less than 10,000 residents.



78.6 percent of Arizona’s residents live in an incorporated city or town.



Of Arizona’s 91 incorporated cities and towns, 20 of those are charter cities.



On average, cities and towns in Arizona spend more than 60 percent of their general fund budget on
public safety.



Phoenix is Arizona’s largest city, with a population of 1.4 million. Winkelman is Arizona’s smallest city,
with a population of 353.



Economic activity within Arizona’s cities and towns produces around 91 percent of the state income
tax and 93 percent of the state’s sales tax proceeds.



Arizona is home to the two largest municipal parks in the country – South Mountain Park in Phoenix
and McDowell Sonoran Preserve in Scottsdale.



86 of Arizona’s 91 cities and towns operate under the council-manager form of government.



Phoenix, Tucson, Prescott and Chino Valley have all served as Arizona’s state capital.



37 Arizona mayors and councilmembers participated in the U.S. Corporation for National and
Community Service Annual Mayor Recognition Day for National Service.



29 cities and towns in Arizona were designated as Tree City USA communities by the Arbor Day
Foundation.

SAMPLE SOCIAL MEDIA MESSAGING
Cities and Towns Week 2017

TWITTER
October 15-21 is AZ Cities & Towns Week! Find out how your city is working for you. #AZCityWeek
They say a city never sleeps. Thanks to Arizona’s cities & towns, that has never been so true. #AZCityWeek
Day in and out, sun up to sun down – Arizona’s cities and towns are working for you. #AZCityWeek
Arizona Cities & Towns Week is marking its 16th year. Help us celebrate! #AZCityWeek
AZ Cities Fun Fact: 79% of Arizonans live in an incorporated city or town. http://azcitieswork.com/economic-impact/
#AZCitiesWork #AZCityWeek
Did you know? Your local planning & zoning dept. is responsible for directing growth in your city or town. #AZCityWeek
Municipal water quality specialists make sure your town’s water meets every state and federal standard, so you know
it’s safe. #AZCityWeek
Cities & towns plan, budget, build & maintain roads so you can get to school or work, safely, every day.
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=g6LSQyVY7S0 #AZCityWeek
Cities & Towns ensure safety, protection, well-being, convenience and enrichment for all citizens to live, work & play.
#AZCityWeek
Cities and towns keep business at work, libraries open, traffic lights blinking, clean water flowing and much more.
#AZCityWeek
Cities and towns are working for you – 24/7, 365 days a year. Learn more about your city or town services:
http://azcitieswork.com/municipal-services/
Find out how your Arizona city or town is working for you: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=hrRp0XXvLJE
Economic Development in your city is possible when state and local governments work together to develop conditions
for the best economic impact. #AZCityWeek
Your town library and librarians provide information and knowledge just a book away. #AZCityWeek

Arizona’s cities and towns participated in the 16th Annual Cities & Towns Week in a variety of ways!
Proclamations – Many cities and
towns issued proclamations to let
their citizens know they were
participating in Arizona Cities
& Towns Week.

League Communication Update

AZ Cities & Towns Week Participation

League Communication Update

Press Releases, Websites & Articles
Other municipalities issued press releases and updated their websites. A few news outlets even
helped spread the word about the celebration!

Arizona’s cities and towns participated in the 16th Annual Cities & Towns Week in a variety of ways!
Facebook

League Communication Update

Social Media

Twitter

League Communication Update

Social Media, Cont.

Instagram

League Communication Update

Social Media, Cont.

League Communication Update

Social Media, Cont.

Snapchat & Instagram Stories
The Town of Gilbert commemorated
Arizona Cities & Towns Week
by highlighting a different town
service each day and giving a
behind-the-scenes look at the men
and women who provide those
services through Snapchat and
Instagram Stories.

NextDoor
The City of El Mirage shared with residents about Arizona Cities
and Towns Week in the NextDoor App!

Thank you to all of our cities and towns who participated in the
16th Annual Arizona Cities & Towns Week!

League Communication Update

Social Media, Cont.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 3, 2017

Agenda Item #8

League Director’s Report

Summary:

The League Executive Director will provide a brief update on additional
activities and issues of interest to the Executive Committee.

Responsible Person:

Ken Strobeck

Additional Informational Materials
Not Part of the Agenda

League Budget Report
Property Corporation Budget Report
Information on Arizona events at NLC Conference in Charlotte, NC
ARTICLE: Mayors of Columbus, Richmond, Salt Lake City and Tucson Selected
as 2018 Class of Daniel Rose Land Use Fellows

League of Arizona Cities & Towns
FY 2017-2018 Budget vs. Actual
July through September 2017
Jul - Sep 17
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 · Affiliate Group Contribution
4005 · Annual Conference
4010 · Dues
4020 · Miscellaneous
4030 · Risk Pool
4035 · Seminars & Meetings
4016 · Partnership Programs
4040 · Interest Income

Budget

$ Over Budget

% of Budget

22,825.00
445,050.32
1,818,487.00
2,154.86
37,764.11
2,500.00
4,700.00
7,066.80

136,950.00
395,000.00
2,046,956.00
10,000.00
147,000.00
30,000.00
72,900.00
4,000.00

-114,125.00
50,050.32
-228,469.00
-7,845.14
-109,235.89
-27,500.00
-68,200.00
3,066.80

16.7%
112.7%
88.8%
21.5%
25.7%
8.3%
6.4%
176.7%

2,340,548.09

2,842,806.00

-502,257.91

82.3%

Expense
5005 · Annual Conference (Expense)
5010 · Benefits
5015 · Capital Outlay
5025 · Contingency
5030 · Equipment Rental & Maintena...
5035 · Executive Committee
5050 · Insurance
5055 · Postage & Shipping
5057 · PR & Communications
5060 · Printing
5065 · Professional Services
5070 · Rent
5071 · Salaries
5075 · Seminars and Meetings
5085 · Subscriptions & Dues
5090 · Supplies
5095 · Telecommunications
5100 · Travel

247,547.76
130,661.66
0.00
0.00
1,289.89
105.07
2,009.75
403.34
10,060.00
0.00
26,835.24
26,250.00
358,557.24
996.23
39,930.40
7,360.60
3,932.76
6,363.70

230,000.00
558,000.00
20,000.00
10,000.00
15,000.00
10,000.00
8,000.00
6,000.00
46,000.00
10,000.00
165,000.00
105,000.00
1,490,000.00
48,000.00
62,000.00
38,000.00
30,000.00
25,000.00

17,547.76
-427,338.34
-20,000.00
-10,000.00
-13,710.11
-9,894.93
-5,990.25
-5,596.66
-35,940.00
-10,000.00
-138,164.76
-78,750.00
-1,131,442.76
-47,003.77
-22,069.60
-30,639.40
-26,067.24
-18,636.30

107.6%
23.4%
0.0%
0.0%
8.6%
1.1%
25.1%
6.7%
21.9%
0.0%
16.3%
25.0%
24.1%
2.1%
64.4%
19.4%
13.1%
25.5%

Total Expense

862,303.64

2,876,000.00

-2,013,696.36

30.0%

1,478,244.45

-33,194.00

1,511,438.45

-4,453.3%

1,478,244.45

-33,194.00

1,511,438.45

-4,453.3%

Total Income

Net Ordinary Income
Net Income

Property Corporation

FY 2016-2017 Budget vs. Actual
July through September 2017
Jul - Sep 17
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 · Rental Income
4005 · Miscellaneous
4010 · Interest

Budget

$ Over Budget

% of Budget

31,801.80
0.00
9.13

119,400.00
50.00
1,500.00

-87,598.20
-50.00
-1,490.87

26.6%
0.0%
0.6%

Total Income

31,810.93

120,950.00

-89,139.07

26.3%

Expense
5000 · Maintenance Services/Agreements
5015 · Utilities
5020 · Repairs and Maintenance
5025 · Operating Expenses
5030 · Accounting and Auditing
5035 · Insurance
5040 · Capital Outlay

10,486.85
7,685.01
1,981.38
752.79
770.00
1,340.75
0.00

35,000.00
34,000.00
12,000.00
6,250.00
7,200.00
5,500.00
21,000.00

-24,513.15
-26,314.99
-10,018.62
-5,497.21
-6,430.00
-4,159.25
-21,000.00

30.0%
22.6%
16.5%
12.0%
10.7%
24.4%
0.0%

Total Expense

23,016.78

120,950.00

-97,933.22

19.0%

8,794.15

0.00

8,794.15

100.0%

8,794.15

0.00

8,794.15

100.0%

Net Ordinary Income
Net Income

October 5, 2017
TO:

Arizona Municipal Officials Attending the 2017 NLC City Summit in Charlotte

FROM:

Matt Lore, Communication and Education Director

SUBJECT:

ARIZONA RECEPTION AT NLC CITY SUMMIT IN CHARLOTTE

The 2017 NLC City Summit will be held in Charlotte NC, November 15-18.
We hope you will join us for our special state-specific event—the annual League of Arizona
Cities and Towns Reception, to be held on Friday evening, November 17. All delegates and
guests from Arizona are invited. The reception will take place:
Friday, November 17, 2017
5:00 – 6:30 p.m.
The Westin Charlotte
Grand Ballroom B
601 South College Street
Charlotte, NC 28202
If you need assistance or have any questions, please feel free to contact me before or during
the meeting in Charlotte. My contact information is as follows: cell, (480) 495-7646 or email,
mlore@azleague.org.
I look forward to seeing you in November.

Mayors of Columbus, Richmond, Salt Lake City
and Tucson Selected as 2018 Class of Daniel Rose
Land Use Fellows
October 20, 2017

WASHINGTON, D.C. – October 20, 2017 – The National League of Cities (NLC) and the Urban
Land Institute (ULI) today announced that mayors from four cities—Columbus, Ohio; Richmond,
Virginia; Salt Lake City, Utah and Tucson, Arizona—have been selected as the 2018 class of Daniel
Rose Land Use Fellows by the Rose Center for Public Leadership. Mayors Andrew Ginther, Levar
Stoney, Jackie Biskupski and Jonathan Rothschild will lead teams from their respective cities who
will receive technical assistance on a local land use challenge from NLC, ULI and their peers from
the other fellowship cities. The four city teams will convene next week for a retreat at ULI's Fall
Meeting in Los Angeles.
“Land use decisions are critical to the overall success of city economic and community
development," said Clarence E. Anthony, CEO and executive director of the National League of
Cities (NLC). “We are thrilled to extend the expertise of the Rose Center for Public Leadership Land
Use Fellowship to the cities of Columbus, Richmond, Salt Lake City and Tucson, and we look
forward to seeing the opportunities and outcomes that these partnerships provide.”
“The Rose Center’s fellowship program has a consistent track record of mayoral teams effectively
working together to help solve the land use challenges of our nation’s leading metropolitan areas,”
said ULI Global Chief Executive Officer Patrick L. Phillips. “Cities are the heart of our country’s
economy, serving as hubs for human capital and innovation. We are excited to partner with NLC and
the new class of Rose fellows to highlight creative approaches and solutions that other communities
can replicate to become more healthy, prosperous, and sustainable.”
The Rose Center's mission is to encourage and support excellence in land use decision making by
public officials. Established at ULI in 2008 with a $5 million gift by ULI Foundation Governor Daniel
Rose, the Rose family and ULI in 2014 formed a strategic partnership with NLC to bring its expertise
in local government leadership to the Rose Center's programs. The center operates two, year-long
fellowship programs for large U.S. cities that emphasize leadership, inter-disciplinary problem
solving, public/private collaboration, and peer-to-peer learning—one focused on land use, the other
on equitable economic development. It also hosts forums, educational workshops, webinars and
conference sessions to bring private sector expertise to public sector implementation strategies.

Now in its ninth year, the land use fellowship begins with the selection of four mayors, each of whom
chooses three additional fellows (city department leaders or public agency directors with land use
decision-making authority) and a project manager to serve as their city's fellowship team. The
program of work includes working retreats at NLC and ULI annual conferences at the beginning,
mid-point and end of the program year, a study tour of another U.S. or foreign city, and peer
exchange panel visits to provide technical assistance to each of the four fellowship cities.
The 2018 Rose Land Use Fellowship teams are as follows:
•

•

•

•

Columbus: Mayor Andrew J. Ginther; his Deputy Chief of Staff for External Affairs Dawn Tyler
Lee; Department of Development Director Steven Schoeny; and Brent Sobczak, president of
CASTO Communities. The project manager is Mark Dravillas, assistant administrator of the
Department of Development’s Planning Division.
Richmond: Mayor Levar Stoney; District 7 City Councilmember Cynthia Newbille; Deputy Chief
Administrative Officer of Operations Robert Steidel; and Jane Ferrara, chief operating officer of
the Department of Economic & Community Development. The project manager is Ellyn Parker,
public art coordinator at the Department of Planning & Development Review.
Salt Lake City: Mayor Jackie Biskupski; Michael Akerlow, deputy director of the Department of
Community & Neighborhoods; Nick Norris, director of the Department of Community &
Neighborhoods’ Planning Division; and Danny Walz, chief operating officer of the Redevelopment
Agency of Salt Lake City. The project manager is Amanda Holty, marketing and communications
specialist at the Redevelopment Agency of Salt Lake City.
Tucson: Mayor Jonathan Rothschild; Assistant City Manager Albert Elias; Carolyn Laurie, a
principal planner in the Planning & Development Services Department; and Daniel Bursuck, a
lead planner in the Planning & Development Services Department. The project manager is Jaimie
Galayda, the mayor’s policy advisor for planning, transportation and sustainability.

"These mayors and their teams are bringing fresh approaches to the often-vexing challenges of land
use in their cities,” said Jess Zimbabwe, NLC’s director of urban development and leadership, who
directs the Rose Center. We look forward to sharing national best practices and expertise with them,
and also to learning from them how to apply those lessons to the unique contexts of their particular
political culture and real estate market."
To assist the fellowship city teams, the Rose Center has assembled eight urban development and
design leaders from around the nation who will serve as their faculty advisers over the course of the
fellowship year and co-chair their peer exchange panel:
•
•

•

•

Columbus’ advisers will be community engagement and planning expert Antoine Bryant, principal
of the Houston-based Bryant Design Group; and Lev Gershman, managing partner of San Diegobased Tideline Partners, a boutique real estate investment, development and management firm.
Richmond’s advisers will be Andre Brumfield, who leads Gensler’s planning and urban design
practice from its Chicago office; and Colleen Carey, president of the Minneapolis-based
Cornerstone Group, which seeks to transform communities through socially responsible
development projects.
Salt Lake City’s advisers will be Nolan Lienhart, principal and director of planning and urban
design at the Portland, Oregon office of ZGF Architects; and Molly McCabe, president of Bigfork,
Montana-based HaydenTanner, which provides development-impact analysis of community
renewal and social equity, health and productivity, job growth, energy/water efficiencies, as well
as risk and return.
Tucson’s advisers will be Jane Lin, founding partner of San Francisco-based Urban Field Studio;
and Tyrone Rachal, president of Atlanta-based Urban Key Capital Partners, which provides
financial services to impactful real estate development projects and operating companies in
distressed communities.

Since its inception, the Rose Fellowship has worked with 32 cities across the United States:
Anchorage, Alaska; Austin, Texas; Birmingham, Alabama; Boston, Massachusetts; Charlotte, North
Carolina; Denver, Colorado; Detroit, Michigan; Grand Rapids, Michigan; Hartford, Connecticut;

Honolulu, Hawaii; Houston, Texas; Indianapolis, Indiana; Kansas City, Missouri; Long Beach,
California; Louisville, Kentucky; Minneapolis, Minnesota; Memphis, Tennessee; Nashville,
Tennessee; Oakland, California; Omaha, Nebraska; Philadelphia, Pennsylvania; Phoenix, Arizona;
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania; Portland, Oregon; Providence, Rhode Island; Rochester, New York;
Sacramento, California; San José, California; Seattle, Washington; Tacoma, Washington; Tampa,
Florida; and Washington; D.C.
The fellowship teams have successfully led changes in their cities after receiving technical
assistance and strategic advice on topics such as revitalizing aging commercial areas to attract new
businesses and jobs; how new investment in older neighborhoods can more equitably benefit
existing residents; the role of transit and transportation infrastructure in city building; and developing
new community engagement models in transitioning neighborhoods.
###
About the National League of Cities
The National League of Cities (NLC) is dedicated to helping city leaders build better communities.
NLC is a resource and advocate for 19,000 cities, towns and villages. www.nlc.org
About the Urban Land Institute
The Urban Land Institute (ULI) is a global nonprofit education and research institute supported by its
members. Its mission is to provide leadership in the responsible use of land and in creating and
sustaining thriving communities worldwide. Established in 1936, the institute has almost 40,000
members representing all aspects of land use and development disciplines.

